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1 RES P ECTFULLY S UBMITTED this  3 le t da y of Augus t 2007.

2 UNS  Ele ctric, Inc

3

I [Vu
B y

5

6

7

r kw
Mic ] l W. Pa tten
J a s  . D. Ge llma n
RO HKA DE WULF & P ATTE N, P LC.
One  Arizona  Cente r
400 East Van Buren Stree t, Suite  800
Phoenix, Arizona  85004

8

9

and

10

11

12

Ra ymond S . He rma n
Miche lle  Live ngood
UniSource  Energy Se rvices
One  South Church Avenue
Tucson, Arizona  85702

Attorne ys  for UNS  Ele ctric, Inc.
13

14
Origina l and thirteen copies  of the  foregoing
filed this  31s t day of August 2007, with:

Docke t Control
Arizona  Corpora tion Commiss ion
1200 West Washington Street
Phoenix, Arizona  85007

15

16

17

18

19

Copy of the  foregoing hand-de live red
this  31st day of August 2007, to:

20

21

Chainman Mike  Gleason
Arizona  Corpora tion Commiss ion
1200 West Washington Street
P hoe nix, Arizona  85007

Commis s ione r Willia m A. Munde ll
Arizona  Corpora tion Commiss ion
1200 West Washington Street
P hoe nix, Arizona  85007

22

23

24

25

26

Commiss ione r J e ff Ha tch-Mille r
Arizona  Corpora tion Commiss ion
1200 West Washington Street
P hoe nix, Arizona  85007

27

2



1

2

Commiss ione r Kris te n K. Ma ye s
Arizona  Corpora tion Commiss ion
1200 West Washington Street
P hoe nix, Arizona  85007

3

4

5

Commiss ioner Gary P ie rce
Arizona  Corpora tion Commiss ion
1200 West Washington Street
P hoe nix, Arizona  85007

6

7

Danie l Poze fsky, Esq.
Re s ide ntia l Utility Consume r Office
1110 West Washington, Suite  220
Phoenix, Arizona  85007

8

9
Ma rsha ll Ma grude r
p. O. BOX 1267
Tubac, Arizona  85646

10

11

12

Thomas Mum aw
Deborah R. Scott
P innacle  West Capita l Corpora tion
P. O. Box 53999, S ta tion 8695
Phoenix, As  85072

1 3

1 4

1 5

Robe rt J . Me tli
S ne ll & Wilme r LLP
One  Arizona  Cente r
400 East Van Buren
P hoe nix, AZ 85004

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

Teena Wolfe , Esq.
Adminis tra tive  La w Judge
He a ring Divis ion
Arizona  Corpora tion Commiss ion
1200 West Washington Street
P hoe nix, Arizona  85007

20

2 1

22

Maureen A. Scott, Esq.
Ke vin Torre y, Esq.
Le ga l Divis ion
Arizona  Corpora tion Commiss ion
1200 West Washington Street
P hoe nix, Arizona  85007

23

24

25

Ernest Johnson, Esq.
Dire ctor, Utilitie s  Divis ion
Arizona  Corpora tion Commiss ion
1200 West Washington Street
P hoe nix, Arizona  85007

26

27

B y

3



BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION

COMMISSIONERS
MIKE GLEASON - CHAIRMAN
WILLIAM A. MUNDELL
JEFF HATCH-MILLER
KRISTIN K. MAYES
GARY PIERCE

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF )
UNS ELECTRIC, INC. FOR THE )
ESTABLISHMENT OF JUST AND )
REASONABLE RATES AND CHARGES )
DESIGNED TO REALIZE A REASONABLE )
RATE OF RETURN ON THE FAIR VALUE OF )
THE PROPERTIES OF UNS ELECTRIC, INC. )
DEVOTED TO ITS OPERATIONS )
THROUGHOUT THE STATE OF ARIZONA AND )
REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF RELATED )
FINANCING. )

DOCKET NO. E-04204A-06-0783

UNS  ELECTRIC, INC.

REJ OINDER TES TIMONY

August  31, 2007



Rejoinder Testimony
of

James S. Pignatelli



1 BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION

COMMISSIONERS
MIKE GLEASON - CHAIRMAN
WILLIAM A. MUNDELL
JEFF HATCH-MILLER
KRISTIN K. MAYES
GARY PIERCE

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

DOCKET NO. E-04204A-06-0783IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF
UNS ELECTRIC, INC. FOR THE
ESTABLISHMENT OF JUST AND
REASONABLE RATES AND CHARGES
DESIGNED To REALIZE A REASONABLE
RATE OF RETURN ON THE FAIR VALUE OF
THE PROPERTIES OF UNS ELECTRIC, INC.
DEVOTED TO ITS OPERATIONS
THROUGHOUT THE STATE OF ARIZONA
AND REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF
RELATED FINANCING.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

1 2

13

1 4

1 5

1 6 Raj binder Tes timony of

1 7

1 8 James S. Pignatelli

1 9

20 on Be ha lf of

2 1

22 UNS  Ele ctric, Inc.

23

24 Augus t 31, 2007

25

26

27

l



1
Q. Please state your name and address.

2

3

My na me  is  J a me s  S . P igna te lli. My bus ine s s  a ddre s s  is  One  S outh Church Ave nue ,

Tucson, Arizona, 85701 .
4

5 Q- Have you reviewed the Surrebuttal Testimony filed by the Commission Staff and

other parties (collectively, "other parties") to this rate case?6

7 Ye s  I ha ve .

8

9 Q- What is the purpose of your Rejoinder Testimony in this proceeding?

1 0

11

1 2

13

The  purpose  of my Re joinde r Tes timony is  to address : (i) the  proposed Purchased Power

and Fuel Adjustment Clause  ("PPFAC") and anticipa ted increases  in the  costs  of purchased

powe r a nd fue l, (ii) the  be ne fits  of our proposa l re ga rding the  Bla ck Mounta in Ge ne ra ting

S ta tion  ("BMGS "), a nd (iii) S ta ff" s  a s s e rte d  "fina ncia l d is tre s s " s ta nda rd  re ga rding

Cons truction Work in P rogre ss  ("CWIP").1 4

1 5

16 Q. Mr. Pignatelli, why does the Company believe that the PPFAC is in the public

interest?17

1 8

1 9

20

The  full requirements  purchased power agreement with P innacle  West Capita l Corpora tion

("P inna cle  We s t") e xpire s  a t the  e nd of Ma y 2008. Cons e que ntly, UNS  Ele ctric mus t

a rra nge  for re pla ce me nt powe r a nd ha s , in fa ct, be e n e nga ge d in a cquiring re pla ce me nt

re s ource s  for s ome  time  now. The  propos e d P P FAC is  a n e ffe ctive  me cha nis m for the2 1

22 t im e ly re c o v e ry o f th e  c o s ts  o f th o s e  re s o u rc e s . We  curre ntly e s tima te  the  cos t of

ZN

24

25

26

replacement power to be  approximate ly 15% grea te r than the  Pinnacle  West contract price .

The  Company's  reques t for a  5.5% increase  in ra te s  does  not include  any increa se  to the

cos t of purcha s e d powe r a nd fue l. Accordingly, it is  importa nt for the  fina ncia l he a lth of

UNS  Ele ctric tha t the  P P FAC be  in pla ce  to a llow the  Compa ny to time ly re cove r the s e

incre a se d purcha se  powe r a nd fue l cos ts . I be lie ve  a  PPFAC tha t provide s  for the  time ly27

A.

A.

A.

A.



1

2

re cove ry of the se  cos ts  not only prote cts  the  fina ncia l inte grity of UNS  Ele ctric but se nds

rea lis tic price  s igna ls  to our cus tomers .

3

4 Q-

5

What is your response to RUCO's recommendation of a cap and a 90/10 sharing

mechanism on the proposed PPFAC?

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 2

1 3

RUCO's  re comme nda tions  re ga rding a  ca p a nd a  sha ring me cha nism for the  PPFAC a re

unacceptable . The  cos ts  re cove re d through the  P P FAC a re  dire ctly re la te d to fue l a nd

purcha s e d powe r a nd do not include  a ny profit to UNS  Ele ctric. The  P P FAC is  s imply a

pa ss -through of those  cos ts  a nd UNS Ele ctric doe s  not profit the re from. A "ca p" a nd a

"sharing mechanism", as  proposed by RUCO, would be  confisca tory as  each would deprive

the  Compa ny of le gitima te  e xpe nse s  it incurs  dire ctly re la te d to the  provis ion of e le ctric

se rvice  to cus tome rs . Also, the  propose d sha ring me cha nism would se nd imprope r price

s igna ls  to UNS Electric's  cus tomers .

1 4

1 5 Q.

1 6

Are the cap and sharing mechanism that were imposed on the Arizona Public Service

Company ("APS") PPFAC relevant in this case?

1 7

1 8

1 9

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

No, it is  not be ca us e  UNS  Ele ctric is  in a  s ubs ta ntia lly diffe re nt s itua tion tha n AP S . The

Compa ny is  unde rgoing the  tra ns ition from a  full re quire me nts  contra ct to  building a

portfolio to supply its  loa d. UNS  Ele ctric owns  ve ry limite d ge ne ra tion a s se ts  a nd will s till

ne e d to purcha se  powe r to me e t its  cus tome rs ' ne e ds . In contra s t, AP S  ha s  a  dive rs ifie d

portfolio of ge ne ra tion a s s e ts , including s ta ble  cos t nucle a r a nd coa l fa cilitie s . I be lie ve

tha t these  key diffe rences  a re  s ignificant factors  in S ta ffs  recommendation aga inst a  cap or

sha ring me cha nism for UNS  Ele ctric. As  Mr. De Concini s ta te d in his  Re butta l Te s timony

"a  ca p could s e nd the  wrong me ssa ge  to ove r-e mpha s ize  short-te rm ra te  s ta bility a t the

de trime nt of wha t is  in the  be s t long-te rm inte re s t of our cus tome rs ." (Re butta l Te s timony

of Micha e l J . De Concini a t 14.)

27
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1

2

Q. What is UNS Electric doing to stabilize future Company fuel and purchase power

prices?

3

4

5

6

The Company has been procuring power in the wholesale markets on a forward basis.

Additionally, the proposed purchase of the BMGS will save substantial costs over the

long-run for generating capacity, transmission wheeling and ancillary services. Further,

in the pending 40-252 / TEP Rate Case proceeding (consolidated Docket Nos. E-01933A-

05-0650 and E-01933A-07-0402), TEP is proposing a hybrid plan whereby some of its

coal generation would remain out of rate base and available for wholesale sales, This

power could be made available to UNS Electric through a power agreement. Because it is

coal generation, it can be provided at terms that are more stable than market prices of gas

generated power.

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

Q- Has Staff recognized the benefits provided by the BMGS, including stabilizing the

Company's future power costs?

1 5

1 6

17

18

19

2 0

2 1

22

23

2 4

No. S ta ff s till s e e ms  unce rta in  whe the r the  BMGS  is  a n  e conomica l re s ource  for UNS

Ele c tric  a nd  its  c us tome rs . S ta ff's  te s timony s e e ms  to  s e nd  mixe d  s igna ls . In  h is

S urre butta l Te s timony, S ta ff witne s s  Ra lph S mith s a ys  tha t, "S ta ff re cognize s  tha t the re

ca n be  be ne fits  to  a  utility owning its  own ge ne ra tion". Howe ve r, Mr. S mith the n goe s  on

to s a y tha t "[i]t is  not known whe the r ha ving UNS  Ele ctric  purcha s e  a  pe a king unit s uch a s

BMGS  is  the  mos t e conomica l a lte rna tive  to  obta in  powe r for the  s hort, in te rme dia te  or

long-te rm." (S urre butta l Te s timony of Ra lph S mith  a t 67.) But, I ca nnot find a nywhe re

in  the  S ta ff te s timony a  s ubs ta ntive  a na lys is  to  re fute  the  be ne fits  of the  BMGS . On the

othe r ha nd the  te s timony of UNS  Ele ctric  witne s s e s  Micha e l De Concini a nd Ke vin La rs on

de mons tra te s  be yond a  doubt tha t (i) the  BMGS  would be  a  ke y pa rt of the  Compa ny's  ne w

e ne rgy portfolio , a nd (ii) ra te  ba s e  tre a tme nt of the  BMGS  would improve  the  Compa ny's

cre dit profile  a nd a bility to fund tra ns mis s ion a nd dis tribution proje cts .

25
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1 Q.

2

Staff suggests that a "financial distress" standard must be met to justify including

CWIP in rate base. Do you agree with that proposed standard?

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

No, I do not. I be lie ve  such a  s ta nda rd is  unre a lis tic a nd ignore s  the  fa ct tha t utilitie s  like

UNS  Ele ctric ne e d to be  he a lthy fina ncia lly in orde r to a ble  to provide  s a fe  a nd re lia ble

s e rvice . I think it is  dire ctly contra ry to the  public inte re s t to a llow a  public utility to fa ll

in to  "fina nc ia l d is tre s s " be fo re  inc lud ing  CWIP  in  ra te  ba s e  o r cons ide ring  o the r

ra temaking a lte rna tive s . I be lieve  tha t the  financia l dis tre ss  s tanda rd a lluded to by S ta ff is

va gue . Furthe rmore , it se e ms  to me  tha t by the  time  a  utility could de mons tra te  "fina ncia l

dis tre ss ," to sa tis fy S ta ff, the  damage  would a lready have  been done  to the  utility's  credit

a nd a cce s s  to ca pita l. I be lie ve  tha t it is  in the  pubic inte re s t to s e t ra te s  tha t ma inta in a

11 utility's  fina ncia l inte grity ra the r tha n a tte mpting to re s tore  it a fte r it ha s  be e n da ma ge d. I

think tha t this  ra te  case  is  one  in which CWIP should be  included in ra te  base .1 2

1 3

14 Q. Does this conclude your Rejoinder Testimony?

1 5 Ye s .

1 6

17

1 8

19

20

2 1

22

23

24

25

26

27

A.

A.

3



Rejoinder Tes timony
of

To<>mas J. Ferry



1 BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION

2

3

COMMISSIONERS
MIKE GLEASON - CHAIRMAN
WILLIAM A. MUNDELL
JEFF HATCH-MILLER
KRISTIN K. MAYES
GARY PIERCE

4

5

6

7
DOCKET NO. E-04204A-06-0783

9

10

11

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF
UNS ELECTRIC, INC. FOR THE
ESTABLISHMENT OF JUST AND
REASONABLE RATES AND CHARGES
DESIGNED TO REALIZE A REASONABLE
RATE OF RETURN ON THE FAIR VALUE OF
THE PROPERTIES OF UNS ELECTRIC, INC.
DEVOTED TO ITS OPERATIONS
THROUGHOUT THE STATE OF ARIZONA
AND REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF
RELATED FINANCING.

)
>
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6 Raj binder Tes timony of

1 7

1 8 Thomas J. Fen"y

1 9

20 on Behalf of

21

22 UNS Electric, Inc.

23

24 Augus t 31, 2007

25

26

27



l  al  mu llllllll ill Illllllll um l l l I I l ll lull ll

1

2

TABLE OF CO NTE NTS

Introduction ..
3

11.
4

IH.
5

6

Response  to S ta ff Witness  Julie  McNeely-Ki1'wan's  Surrebutta l Testimony ..

Response  to S ta ff Witness  Bing E. Young's  Surrebutta l Tes timony...

Response  to RUCO Witness  Rodney L. Moore 's  Surrebutta l Tes timony..

Response  To Witness  Marsha ll Magruder's  Suntebutta l Testimony ..
7

8

9

10

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

v.

Iv.

1.

.3

.5

.1

.2

.1

i



1 . INTRODUCTION.

2

3

4

Q. Please state your name and address.

My name  is  Thomas  J . Fe rry.

5

Q- Are you the same Thomas J. Ferry who filed Rebuttal Testimony in this

proceeding?

A. Yes, I am.

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

Q- What is the purpose of your Rejoinder Testimony in this proceeding?

15

The  purpos e  of my Re joinde r Te s timony is  to re s pond to the  S urre butta l Te s timonie s  of

S ta ff witne s s  J ulie  McNe e ly-Kirwa n re ga rding a dminis tra tion of CARES , S ta ff witne s s

Bing E. Young re ga rding Line  Exte ns ion policie s  a nd RUCO witne s s  Rodne y Moore

rega rding expense  adjus tments  and Marsha ll Magrude r's  Surrebutta l Tes timony rega rding

Billing Te rms  a nd Low-Income  P rogra ms .

16

17

18

19

20

11. RESPONSE STAFF

SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY.

TO WITNESS JULIE Mc NE E LY-KIR WAN' S

Q- What issues raised by Ms. McNeely-Kirwan in her Surrebuttal Testimony do you

wish to address?21

2 2

23

24

I  w i l l a d d re s s  th e  fo llo win g  is s u e s  ra is e d  b y Ms . McNe e 1y-Kirwa n: ( i)  h e r

re comme nda tions  for improve d ma rke ting of the  CARES  a nd Me dica l CARES  progra ms

a nd (ii) he r re que s t to include  a ll CARES  cus tome r disconne cts  on the  Compa ny's  s e mi-

annual reports .25

26

27

A.

A.

A.

1



1 Q- Do you agree with Ms. McNeely-Kirwan's recommendations for CARES marketing?

2

3

4

5

Yes. The  Company des ire s  to clea r up any poss ible  confus ion rega rding the  applica tion of

the  CARES programs. Whe the r the  Commiss ion accepts  the  Company's  recommenda tion

rega rding the  des ign of CARES and Medica l CARES plans  or not, we  will seek to improve

a ll promotiona l and descriptive  lite ra ture  to cla rify the  programs for our cus tomers .

6

7 Q,

8

What is the Company's response to Ms. McNeely-Kirwan's request for modified

Medical CARES reporting?

9

10

1 1

1 2

13

1 4

1 5

The  Company agrees  to separa te ly report Medica l CARES participa tion customer counts  in

the  CARES  s e mi-a miua l re ports . Bu t th e  C o m p a n y b e lie ve s  it  is  fo llo win g  th e

Commis s ion's  a dminis tra tive  rule s  a nd fe e ls  tha t the  re quire me nt of re porting individua l

cus tome r dis conne cts  is  impra ctica l. As  s ta te d in my Re butta l Te s timony, the  Compa ny

e xe rcis e s  e xtre me  ca ution  to  pre ve nt Me dica l CARES  dis conne ctions . Re porting

individua l dis corme ctions  of a ny kind s e mi-a nnua lly would not be  of be ne fit to  thos e

cus tome rs  a nd  th is  re qu ire me n t wou ld  be  d ifficu lt fo r the  Compa ny to  a ccu ra te ly

1 6 adminis te r.

1 7

1 8 Q- Does that conclude your response to the Surrebuttal Testimony of Ms. McNeely-

1 9 Kirwa n ?

20 Yes, it does .

21

22 III. RES P ONS E T O S T AF F  WIT NE S S B ING E . YO UNG 'S S URRE BUTTAL

23 TE S TIMO NY.

24

25 Q- What comments do you have on the Surrebuttal Testimony of Mr. Young?

26 Mr. Young continues  to be lieve  tha t UNS Electric is  increa s ing the  free  footage  a llowance

27 in the  line  extens ion rule s . Mr. Young is  incorre ct. UNS  Ele ctric's  curre nt fre e  a llowa nce

A.

A.

A.

A.

2



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

for a  dis tribution line  is  400 fe e t. The  Compa ny's  curre nt a llowa nce  for s e rvice s  is  150

fe e t plus  one  ca rry-ove r pole . As  I indica te d in my Dire ct Te s timony, we  will continue  the

400 fe e t fre e  a llowa nce  for dis tribution line s . Howe ve r, the  Compa ny propose d to re duce

the  curre nt s e rvice  line  a llowa nce  to only 100 fe e t. S o Mr. Young is  ina ccura te  whe n he

s ta te s  the  Compa ny is  incre a s ing the  fre e  foota ge  a llowa nce . I provide d the  s pe cific

provis ions  in the  Compa ny's  propos e d Rule s  a nd Re gula tions  tha t de ta il this  cha nge .

Should S ta ff wa nt to a me nd the  la ngua ge  to ma ke  it more  cle a r tha t we  a re  re ducing the

se rvice  line  a llowance , we  would be  open to doing so. However, the  Company be lieves  the

substance  of its  proposed changes appropria te ly ba lance  a ll important factors  as  I described

in my Re butta l Te s timony.

1 1

1 2 Q- Does that conclude your response to the Surrebuttal Testimony of Mr. Young?

1 3 Yes, it does.

14

15 Iv . R E S P O NS E  T O  R UC O  WIT NE S S  R O DNE Y L.  MO O R E ' S  S UR R E B UT T AL

1 6 TE S TIMO NY.

1 7

1 8 Q- What is your response to Mr. Moore's recommended exclusion of expenses.

1 9

20

2 1

22

23

24

25

Mr. Moore  ha s  a ga in ignore d the  Compa ny's  e xpla na tion of ce rta in e xpe ns e s  a s  be ing

rea sonable  and prudent. He  mentions  in his  Surrebutta l Tes timony tha t the  Company has

pa id for liquor for the  e mploye e s . I ca n only a s s ume  tha t he  ha s  conclude d tha t a  me a l

cha rge d a t a  bus ine s s  with the  word "ba r" or "bre we ry" in its  na me  me a ns  the  Compa ny

has  purchased liquor for its  employees . The re  happens  to be  a  re s taurant in Kingman tha t

has  the  word "ba r" in its  name . The  Company has  a  s trict policy about employees  drinking

a lcohol during working hours  a nd would not a llow a ny liquor to be  cons ume d a t lunch.

26 Mr.  Mo o re again re s ta te s  h is  ob je ction  to  the  Compa ny including  contribu tions  to

27 cha rita ble  orga niza tions , e ve n a fte r we have a gre e d to a n a djus tme nt for those  type s  of

A.

A.
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1

2

3

e xpe ns e s  in  re s pons e s  to  Da ta  Re que s ts  from Mr. Moore  a nd a ga in  in  my Re butta l

Tes timony. I s tand by my Rebutta l Tes timony tha t the  ques tioned expenses  were  reviewed

by the  Company and except for those  previously accepted by the  Company as unnecessary,

are reasonable for the reasons stated.4

5

6 Q- Do you have an issue with Mr. Moore's adjustment for MARC Training?

7 Ye s , I do. I unde rs ta nd how Mr. Moore  ha s  conclude d tha t MARC Tra ining ma y ha ve

8

9

10

1 1

1 2

13

be e n a  s pe cia lize d  tra in ing for UNS  Ga s  a s  the y we re  a da pting to  a  ne w unionize d

e nvironme nt. We  be lie ve  this  is  the  wrong conclus ion be ca use  a lthough MARC Tra ining

ma y ha ve  include d Union/S upe rvis or re la tions hip conce pts , the  ma jority of the  tra ining

wa s  on ge ne ra l s upe rvis ory s kills . S e cond a nd more  importa ntly, tra ining e mploye e s  is

a lwa ys  a n ongoing e ffort. While  spe cific tra ining ma y not re occur e a ch ye a r, e mploye e s

are  constantly ongoing regula r tra ining as  pa rt of the  normal course  of the ir responsibilitie s .

1 4

1 5 Q. Do you have comments regarding the Operating Income Adjustment by Mr. Moore?

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

20

21

22

Ye s ,  I d o . The  Compa ny be lie ve s  tha t the  de cis ion  to  move  cus tome r ca lls  to  a

cons olida te d ce nte r wa s  not only re a s ona ble  but in the  be s t inte re s t of our cus tome rs

be ca use  of a ll of the  incre a se d ca ll ha ndling ca pa bilitie s  de ta ile d pre vious ly in my Dire ct

and Rebutta l Tes timony. This  was  the  only practica l way to improve  on unsa tis factory ca ll

ha ndling is sue s  which we re  de s tine d to ge t worse  a s  cus tome r numbe rs  incre a se d. The

othe r option would ha ve  re quire d e xpe ns ive  infra s tructure  improve me nts  a t multiple  s ite s

as well as  more  employees.

23

24 Q, Does that conclude your response to the Surrebuttal Testimony of Mr. Moore?

25 Yes, it does .

26

27

A.

A.

A.
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1 v. RES P ONS E TO WITNESS MARSHALL MAGRUDER'S SURREBUTTAL

TESTIMONY.2

3

4 Q. What comments do you have on the Surrebuttal Testimony of Mr. Magruder?

5 I will address the following issues raised by Mr. Maglmder: (i) Billing Schedule and (ii)

Medical CARES program.6

7

8

9

10

11

12

Q- What is your response to Billing Schedule issues by Mr. Magruder?

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

Mr. Magruder's Surrebuttal Testimony on pages 32 through 34 is confusing and incorrectly

reflects what the Company has requested. The Company's original objective was to revise

the Billing Terms to match the terms of UNS Gas and Tucson Electr ic Power  where

practical. These changes were intended to avoid confusion for customers jointly sewed by

UNS Electr ic and UNS Gas plus facilita te consistency in the common billing system

recently adopted by the three different utilities while establishing common policies where it

makes sense for the customer call center  employees.  The recommended Billing Terms

include: (1) change the due date to 10 days after billing, (2) change the delinquent date to

15 days after  the due date,  which is  25 days after  the billing date,  (3) the notice of

termination would be mailed to the customer after the delinquency date (again at least 25

days after the billing date), and (4) the termination notice allows another 5 days before the

ser vice disconnec t ion p r oces s  begins ,  which is  in  a ccor da nce with C ommiss ion

Administrative Rules - A.A.C. R14-2-210.E. On page 2 of my Rebuttal Testimony, I

stated that the Company would only assess late payment fees on delinquent accounts (those

which payment had not been received by 25 days after the billing date) .23

24

25

26

27

Q. Do you have comments regarding Billing Statement recommendations by Mr.

Magruder?

The Company is willing to consider recommendations to clarify the Rules and RegulationsA.

A.

A.

5



1

2

language  but was  unable  to find the  Billing S ta tement de ta ils  re fe renced on page  35 of his

Surrebutta l Tes timony.

3

4

5

Q. What is your response to Mr. Magruder's concerns about the Low Income programs.

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

The  Company disagrees  with Mr. Magnlder's  s ta tement tha t we  have  been unresponsive  to

Ms . McNe e ly-Kirwa n's  re comme nda tions . Mr. Erdwurm propos e d a  diffe re nt a pproa ch

fo r th e  C AR E S  a n d  Me d ic a l C AR E S  p ro g ra m s . I a c c e p te d  a ll o f th e  o th e r

re comme nda tions  for incre a s ing a wa re ne s s  of low income  progra ms  in  my Re butta l

Te s timony a nd origina lly re comme nde d the  a doption of a  Wa rm S pirits  progra m for UNS

Ele ctric to  ma tch UNS  Ga s  progra m in my Dire ct Te s timony. The  Compa ny ha s  a ls o

agreed through Ms. Denise  Smith's  Rebutta l Tes timony to move  $20,000 for bill a ss is tance

out of the  Low Income  We a the riza tion P rogra m a nd into the  propos e d Wa rm S pirits

13 P rogra m.

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

2 1

22

23

2 4

Q- Do you agree that the Company has an obligation to provide back up power for

Medical CARES customers?

25

2 6

2 7

No, I do not. UNS Ele ctric ma ke s  e ve ry e ffort to supply re lia ble  e le ctric se rvice  to a ll of its

cus tomers . We  cannot, howeve r, gua rantee  uninte rrupted se rvice . The  Company ha s  the

ca pa bility of ta king outa ge  re ports  from cus tome rs  on a  24 hour, 7 da y ba s is . Outa ge

informa tion is  ava ilable  on a  recording which is  upda ted regula rly a s  facts  a re  de te rmined.

Cus tome rs  tha t a dvise  us  tha t the y a re  de pe nde nt on me dica l e quipme nt a re  a dvise d to

move  to a  diffe rent loca tion if an extended outage  will be  a  problem for them. We  have  no

wa y of re lia bly tra cking whe re  the s e  cus tome rs  a re  on the  s ys te m. We  ha ve  no wa y of

tra cking if the  cus tome r's  me dica l e quipme nt ha s  a  ba ck-up ba tte ry s ys te m. Cus tome rs

with me dica l ne e ds  ha ve  the  prima ry re spons ibility to know if powe r inte rruptions  a re  a n

is sue  and to have  some  plan to e ithe r move  loca tions  or have  adequa te  back-up. With a ll

of this  s a id, the  Compa ny ha s  be e n re cognize d for its  e fforts  of conta cting e me rge ncy

A.

A.

6



1

2

agencies  during extended outages  and have  se t up emergency re lie f s ta tions  for a ll

customers. We have gone door to door to check on customers to keep them advised on the

status of repairs in addition to the outage status recording.3

4

5 Q- Does that conclude your response to the Surrebuttal Testimony of Mr. Magruder?

Ye s , it doe s .

Q- Does this conclude your Rejoinder Testimony?

6

7

8

9

1 0

Ye s , it doe s .

11

12

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

23

24

25

26

27

A.

A.
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1 1 . INTRODUCTION.

2

Q- Please state your name and address.3

4

5

6

My na m e  is  Ke nton C. Gra nt.  My bus ine s s  a ddre s s  is  One  S outh Church Ave nue , Tucs on,

Arizona , 85701.

7

8

Q- Are you the same Kenton C. Grant who filed Direct and Rebuttal Testimony in this

proceeding?

A. Yes, I am.9

10

11

12

Q- What is  the  purpos e  of your Re joinder Tes timony in  this  proceeding?

13

14

The  purpose  of my Re joinder Tes timony is  to re spond to the  Surrebutta l Tes timony filed by

the  Commis s ion S ta ff ("S ta rt") a nd the  Re s ide ntia l Cons ume rs  Utility Office  ("RUCO").

S pe cifica lly, I a ddre s s  the  is s ue s  of fina ncia l inte grity, the  ne e d for cons truction work in

progre s s  ("CWIP ") in  ra te  ba s e , a nd the  cos t of ca pita l to  UNS  Ele ctric , Inc. ("UNS

Ele ctric" or the  "Compa ny").

15

16

17

18

19

2 0

2 1

22

23

2 4

Q. Please summarize your response to the Surrebuttal Testimony filed by Staff and

RUCO.

De spite  the  volume  of te s timony file d on the  is sue s  of CWIP  in ra te  ba se  a nd the  cos t of

ca pita l, I found mos t of the  te s timony to  be  re pe titive  in  na ture , with  only a  fe w ne w

a rgume nts  be ing offe re d by S ta ff a nd RUCO. No subs ta ntive  a na lys is  of UNS  Ele ctric's

fina ncia l condition wa s  provide d, le a ding me  to be lie ve  tha t fina ncia l inte grity is  not a n

is s ue  of s ignifica nt importa nce  to e ithe r S ta ff or RUCO. This  is  unfortuna te  s ince  UNS

Electric will be  required to a ttract la rge  amounts  of new capita l ove r the  next seve ra l yea rs ,25

2 6

2 7

the cost and availability of which will be greatly impacted by the outcome of this rate

proceeding.

A.

A.

A.

1



1

2

11. RES P ONS E TO S TAFF WITNES S  RALP H c . S MITH'S  S URREBUTTAL

TESTIMONY.

3

4

5

Q. What issues raised by Mr. Smith in his Surrebuttal Testimony do you wish to

address?

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

I will a ddre s s  the  following is s ue s  ra is e d by Mr. S mith: (i) his  cha ra cte riza tion of S ta ffs

a pproa ch for ca lcula ting the  ra te  of re turn (ROR) on fa ir va lue  ra te  ba se  ("FVBR"), (ii) his

use  of a  "fina ncia l dis tre s s " s ta nda rd for gra nting CWIP  in ra te  ba se , (iii) his  dismis sa l of

other factors  tha t point to the  need for CWIP in ra te  base  and (iv) his  comments  concerning

regula tory lag and the  appropria te  use  of financia l forecasts  in ra te  proceedings.

Q-

13

14

On page 4 of his Surrebuttal Testimony, lines 4 through 7, Mr. Smith states that

Staff's approach to calculating a ROR on FVRB "...cannot be dismissed as a mere

superfluous mathematical exercise." Do you agree with this statement?

15 A.

16

17

18

19

2 0

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

No, I do not. As I explained in my Rebuttal Testimony, Staff' s approach is mathematically

equivalent to the approach that was expressly disallowed by the Arizona Court of Appeals

in a case involving Chaparral City Water Company. Despite his statement to the contrary,

appearing on page 4 of his Surrebuttal Testimony (lines l through 4), Staff' s approach does

result in the same revenue requirement regardless of whether FVRB or original cost rate

base ("OCRB") is used. It is only because of rounding that Staff has calculated a

difference in the revenue requirement for UNS Electric. This $1,533 difference can be

observed on Schedule A attached to Mr. Smith's Direct Testimony. This amount

represents less than 0.001% of the $162 million revenue requirement identified by Staff,

and only 0.04% of the $3.8 million revenue deficiency shown on Schedule A attached to

Mr. Smith's Direct Testimony. Although I believe the Commission has wide discretion in

setting a ROR on FVRB, Staffs approach is clearly unresponsive to the concerns raised in

the Chaparral City Water Company ruling.

A.

2



1 Q- Mr. Smith makes several references to "financial distress" in his discussion of the

2

3

s ta n d a rd  to  b e  a p p lie d  fo r  g ra n tin g  CWIP  in  ra te  b a s e . Is  fin a n c ia l d is tre s s  a n

appropria te  s tandard to  us e?

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

No, it is  not. According to a  re ce nt e dition of We bs te r's  una bridge d dictiona ry, common

de finitions  of "dis tre s s " include  "a n oppre s s e d or dis tre s s e d s ta te , a  pa inful s itua tion, a

s ta te  of dange r or nece ss ity, and an indica tion of weakness  or incipient fa ilure ." Common

s ynonyms  include  "s uffe ring, mis e ry, a gony a nd dolor." To re quire  a  public utility to fa ll

into such a  fina ncia l s ta te , be fore  giving a ny cons ide ra tion to CWIP  in ra te  ba se  or othe r

ra temaking a lte rna tive s , is  cle a rly incons is tent with the  public inte re s t. By the  time  a  utility

can demonstra te  tha t it is  in "financia l dis tre ss ," damage  to the  utility's  credit and access  to

capita l has  a lready been done . The  whole  purpose  of including CWIP  in ra te  ba se  is  to

s upport the  utility's  cre dit a nd a cce s s  to ca pita l, a nd to a void the  incre a s e d cos t a nd

reduced ava ilability of capita l a ssocia ted with financia l dis tre ss . If this  same  s tanda rd were

a pplie d in a  me dica l se tting, only those  pa tie nts  who be come  critica lly ill would be  e ligible

for he a lth ca re . By the  time  ca re  is  fina lly a dminis te re d, it ma y be  too la te  to s a ve  the

1 6 pa tie nt.

1 7

1 8 Q- On page 12 of his Surrebuttal Testimony, lines 7 through 10, Mr. Smith states that

"UNS Electric must show how it is different from the normal circumstances of a1 9

20

2 1

regulated public utility where CWIP has been excluded from rate base" and that it

"has failed to do this." Do you agree with Mr. Smith on this point?

22

23

24

25

26

27

No ,  I d o  n o t. In  both my Dire ct a nd Re butta l Te s timony I ha ve  provide d e xte ns ive

e vide nce  conce rning the  ne ga tive  fina ncia l impa ct of growth on UNS  Ele ctn'c a nd the

e xtra ordina ry fina ncia l cha lle nge s  fa cing this  utility. I a m not a wa re  of a ny e le ctric or ga s

utility whos e  growth in ne t pla nt inve s tme nt come s  clos e  to a pproa ching tha t of UNS

Ele ctric on a  pe r cus tome r ba s is  .- a nd Mr. S mith ha s  not ide ntifie d a ny such utilitie s . As

de mons tra te d in Exhibit KCG-10 a tta che d to my Re butta l Te s timony, this  groWth ha s a

A.

A.
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

nega tive  impact on the  Company's  financia l re sults  and highlights  the  need for time ly and

cons tructive  ra te  re lie f. I a m a ls o not a wa re  of a ny othe r e le ctric utility tha t is  fa cing the

prospect of replacing 100% of its  power supply and re financing 100% of its  long-te rm debt

securitie s  in the  same  yea r, a  s itua tion now faced by UNS Electric in 2008. If UNS Electric

enjoyed hea lthy cash flows and an investment-grade  credit ra ting going into this  ra te  case , I

could  s e e  how othe r pa rtie s  might critic ize  a  re que s t to  include  CWIP  in  ra te  ba s e .

However, in light of the  Company's  s tra ined cash flows and specula tive -grade  credit ra ting,

it is  dis a ppointing tha t both S ta ff a nd RUCO oppos e  the  Compa ny's  re que s t to include

CWIP in ra te  base .9

10

11 Q.

12

1 3

The inclusion of CWIP in rate base was recently considered and rejected by the

Commission in the most recent Arizona Public Service Company ("APS") rate case.

Can you point to any differences between the situation facing UNS Electric and that

of APS?14

15 Ye s . Be s ide s  the  obvious , such a s  s ize  a nd fina ncia l whe re witha l, the re  a re  s e ve ra l ke y

1 6

1 7

18

diffe re nce s  tha t wa rra nt e xa mina tion. Ba se d on my re a ding of De cis ion No. 69663 (June

28, 2007) - the  opinion and orde r in the  APS ra te  case  - severa l factors  were  cons ide red in

re j ecting the  request for CWIP in ra te  base .

19

20 Firs t,

21

22

23

S ta ff wa s  critica l of the  re que s t be ca us e  it wa s  not pre s e nte d  in  AP S ' Dire ct

Te s timony of APS , re sulting in le s s  time  be ing a va ila ble  for discove ry a nd a na lys is  of the

is sue . Tha t is  not the  ca se  with UNS Ele ctric, which include d its  re que s t for CWIP  in ra te

base  in its  origina l applica tion and Direct Tes timony.

24

25

26

27

S e cond, AP S  a s ke d for CWIP  in  ra te  ba s e  in  orde r to  a void be ing downgra de d to  a

specula tive -grade  credit ra ting. UNS Electric a lready has  a  specula tive -grade  ra ting, and is

a tte mpting to improve  its  fina ncia l condition so it ca n e ve ntua lly a chie ve  a n inve s tme nt-

A.

4



1 grade cre dit ra ting.

2

3

4

5

6

7

Third, the  financia l forecas t provided by APS was  criticized because  it included the  re sults

of ope ra tions  for the  tra ns mis s ion s e gme nt of its  bus ine s s , a  s iza ble  s e gme nt tha t fa lls

unde r the  ra te  juris diction of the  Fe de ra l Ene rgy Re gula tory Commis s ion ("FERC"). By

contra s t, due  to  the  limite d s ize  a nd s cope  of its  tra ns mis s ion a s s e ts , no whole s a le

transmiss ion se rvices  a re  presently be ing provided by UNS Electric.

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

Lastly, Finding of Fact No.37 in Decis ion No. 69663 s ta te s  tha t "APS fa iled to demonstra te

tha t the  ne a r-te rm cos ts  of cus tome r growth a re  gre a te r tha n the  incre a s e d re ve nue s

genera ted by tha t growth." By contras t, I have  presented clea r evidence  tha t the  nea r-te rm

cost of customer growth grea tly exceeds the  incrementa l revenues produced by tha t growth.

In my Re butta l Te s timony on pa ge  14, I de scribe d how Exhibit KCG-10 showe d tha t ne w

customers added a pproxima te ly $1.2 million in a nnua l de live ry re ve nue s  for the  ye a r

e nding June  30, 2007 - while  the  Compa ny's  a nnua l fixe d cos ts  incre a se d by a bout $6.0

million . Tha t me a ns  the  Compa ny e xpe rie nce d a  $4.8-million incre a s e  in its  a nnua l

re ve nue  de ficie ncy. Additiona lly, a s  de mons tra te d on Exhibit KcG-ll a tta che d to  my

Re butta l Te s timony, the  ra te  of growth  in  ne t p la nt inve s tme nt a t UNS  Ele ctric  ha s

exceeded tha t of APS -- a s  we ll a s  tha t of Tucson Electric Power Company and Southwest

Gas Corpora tion - by a  substantia l margin over the  past three  years  on both an absolute  and

pe r-cus tome r ba s is . The  Compa ny re e mpha s ize s  the se  ke y fa cts  a s  Mr. Smith se e mingly

fa ils  to recognize  any of them in re jecting the  Company's  proposa l.

23

24 Q- Do you have any comments regarding Mr. Smith's characterization of regulatory lag

and the relevance of financial forecasts in the rate setting process?25

26

27

Yes. Rega rding the  subject of regula tory lag, Mr. Smith appea rs  to blush off any conce rns

over the  time required to prepare  and process a  ra te  case  by referdng to past precedent and

A.

5



1

2

the  e xis te nce  of re gula tory la g in othe r juris dictions . On pa ge  11 of his  S urre butta l

Tes timony, lines  11 through 15, Mr. Smith makes  the  following s ta tement:

3

4

5

"Regula tory lag re fe rs  to the  diffe rence  in time  be tween the  te s t yea r and
the  ra te  e ffective  da te . My unders tanding is  tha t it has  a lways  exis ted a s
a n  in te g ra l pa rt o f ra te  o f re tu rn -ba s e d  pub lic  u tility re gu la tion  in
Arizona , a nd  fo r tha t ma tte r virtua lly a ll s ta te s . It  is  n o t  a  n e w
phenomenon which would require  a  change  in bas ic regula tory policy."

6

7

8

9

10

While  I a gre e  with Mr. S mith tha t re gula tory la g is  a  common phe nome non in ma ny ra te

jurisdictions , he  fa ils  to recognize  tha t changes  to "bas ic regula tory policy" a re  some times

wa rra nte d due  to cha nging circums ta nce s . Due  to a  ra pidly e xpa nding popula tion a nd

incre a s ing e le ctrica l de ma nds , e le ctric utilitie s  in Arizona , including UNS  Ele ctric, a re

11 s truggling to cope  with a  surge  in ne w tra nsmis s ion a nd dis tribution pla nt inve s tme nt. At

1 2

1 3

1 4

the  sa me  time , the  re gula tory la g pe riod re fe rre d to by Mr. S mith is  s ignifica ntly longe r in

Arizona  re la tive  to tha t e xpe rie nce d in mos t othe r s ta te s . Eve n s o, a nd a s  I indica te d in

Rebutta l Tes timony, many othe r ra te  jurisdictions  include  CWIP in ra te  base .

1 5

1 6

1 7

The  time liness  of cos t recovery by utilitie s  is  a lso rece iving renewed a ttention by the  ma jor

credit ra ting agencie s . For example , in an Augus t 2007 publica tion entitled "S torm Clouds

the  Horizon  fo r1 8 the  North  Ame rica n  E le c tric  Utility S e cto r," Moody's

1 9

Ga the ring on

Investors  Service  had the  following observa tions  :

20

2 1

22

23

24

25

" ...the re  a re  conce rns  a ris ing from the  s e ctor's  s iza ble  infra s tructure
inve s tme n t p la ns  in  the  fa ce  o f a n  e nvironme n t o f s te a d ily ris ing
ope ra ting cos ts . Combine d, the se  cos ts  a nd inve s tme nts  ca n cre a te  a
continuous  need for regula tory ra te  re lie f, which in tum can increase  the
like lihood for politica l a nd/or re gula tory inte rve ntion. Conce iva bly, the
combina tion of ris ing cos ts , highe r infra s tructure  inve s tme nt ne e ds  a nd
la rge r or more  frequent reques ts  for ra te  re lie f could crea te  pre ssure  for
future  incrementa l ra te  re lie f from regula tors , or a t a  minimum, ra ise  the
unce rta inty le ve l a s socia te d with e xpe cte d re cove rie s  - the re by dire ctly
a ffecting one  of our primary ra ting drive rs ." (See  page  1 of the  Moody's
publica tion, a tta ched a s  Exhibit KCG-14.)

26

27

6



1

2

3

4

5

"In our opinion, the  ris ing cos ts  a nd inve s tme nt ne e ds  will ha ve  a  dire ct
impact on a ll three  financia l s ta tements : income , ca sh flow and ba lance
s he e t. As  a  re s ult, one  of the  bigge s t cha lle nge s  for utility compa nie s
will be  to  s e e k a nd  re ce ive  time ly re cove ry o f p rude n tly incu rre d
e xpe nse s . In a ddition, the  subs ta ntia l incre a se s  in ca pita l e xpe nditure s
will ha ve  a  ma te ria l impa ct on the  se ctor's  a bility to ge ne ra te  fre e  ca sh
flow. While  Moody's  re cognize s  tha t the  utility s e ctor us ua lly ope ra te s
in a  ne ga tive  fre e  ca s h flow e nvironme nt, a  conce rn could be  ra is e d if
the  leve l of nega tive  free  cash flow became la rge  enough, or if regula tory
la g wa s  long e nough, tha t the  le ve ra ge  we re  to incre a s e  ma te ria lly."
(See  page  3 to Exhibit KCG-14.)

6

7

8

9

10

11

1 2

1 3

In the  ca s e  of UNS  Ele ctric, a s s uming ne w ra te s  a re  imple me nte d in J a nua ry 2008, the

re gula tory la g pe riod will ha ve  la s te d a pproxima te ly 18 months  from the  te s t ye a r e nde d

June  30, 2006. From a  fina ncia l pe rspe ctive , tha t is  a  long time  to wa it whe n the  cos t of

customer growth grea tly exceeds the  incrementa l revenues derived from tha t growth.

Rega rding the  use  of financia l forecas t informa tion, Mr. Smith cautions  aga ins t us ing such

information in this  proceeding. S ta rting on page  10 of his  Surrebutta l Tes timony a t line  23 ,

Mr. Smith makes  the  following s ta tement:

1 4

1 5

1 6

"To the  e xte nt tha t Mr. Gra nt is  a tte mpting to us e  his  re vis e d fina ncia l
forecasts  as  some kind of surrogate  for a  future  test year, or as  some kind
of te s t of the  rea sonableness  of the  pa rtie s ' diffe ring recommenda tions ,
his  comparisons  to not appea r to re flect the  adjus tments  to ra te  ba se  or
e xpe ns e s  tha t contribute  to  S ta ff re comme nding a  diffe re nt le ve l of
revenue increase than has been requested by the Company."

1 7

1 8

1 9

20

21

I ha ve  two conce rns  with this  s ta te me nt. Firs t, it a ppe a rs  tha t Mr. S mith  ma y ha ve

mis inte rpre te d the  Compa ny's  inte nt re ga rding the  use  of fina ncia l fore ca s t informa tion.

Second, he  suggests  tha t further adjustments  to the  financia l forecasts  a re  warranted, when

in fact no such adjustments  are  warranted.

22

23 Q. Pleas e  expla in.

24

25

26

27

Ce rta inly. While  UNS  Ele ctric  would  ce rta in ly s upport the  opportunity to  e limina te

regula tory lag through the  use  of a  future  te s t yea r, the  Company is  fully aware  of the  fact

tha t Arizona  re lie s  on a  his torica l te s t ye a r for s e tting ra te s . Tha t is  e xa ctly wha t the

Company used here . The test year ended June  30, 2006 formed the  basis  for UNS Electric's

A.
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2

3

4

5

6

ra te  reques t, including known and measurable  adjus tments  the re to, and the  CWIP ba lance

be ing requested in this  case  re flects  the  amount outs tanding as  of tha t da te . There  is  s imply

no me rit to Mr. Smith's  ins inua tion tha t the  Compa ny's  fina ncia l fore ca s ts  a re  be ing use d

s ome how a s  a  "s urroga te " for a  future  te s t ye a r. Ra the r, the  fina ncia l fore ca s ts  a re  a

necessary component to de te rmining jus t a nd re a s ona ble  ra te s  a nd a  fa ir ROR on the

Company's  his torica l test year ra te  base .

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

20

2 1

22

Regarding the  Company's  use  of financia l forecas t information to "te s t the  reasonableness

of the  pa rtie s ' diffe ring re comme nda tions ," Mr. S mith is  a bsolute ly corre ct in ma king this

a s s umption. Fina ncia l fore ca s t informa tion is  inva lua ble  in de te rmining whe the r or not

CWIP  is  ne e de d in ra te  ba s e  to s upport a  utility's  fina ncia l inte grity. This  informa tion is

a ls o  he lpful in  e ns uring tha t the  a llowe d ROR a nd ove ra ll le ve l of ra te  re lie f will be

sufficie nt to support the  utility's  cre dit a nd a cce s s  to ca pita l. Mr. S mith e rrs , howe ve r, in

his  insis tence  tha t financia l forecast information be  adjusted to re flect the  ra te  base  and cost

disa llowances  recommended by S ta ff and othe r pa rtie s . It is  s imply unrea lis tic to think tha t

future  cos ts  will disappear jus t because  ra temaking adjus tments  a re  made  to his torica l te s t

yea r cos ts . Additiona lly, the  la rges t diffe rence  be tween the  Company and S ta ff in te rns  of

re ve nue  re quire me nt re la te s  to CWIP  in ra te  ba se  a nd the  a llowe d ROE, two ite ms  tha t

only a ffe ct re ve nue s  on a  going-forwa rd ba s is . S ince  the  fina ncia l fore ca s ts  pre se nte d in

my Dire ct a nd Re butta l Te s timonie s  re fle ct the  be s t e s tima te s  of ma na ge me nt, a nd a re

cons is te nt with  the  in te rna l ope ra ting  a nd ca pita l budge t outlooks  pre pa re d  for the

Company, there  is  no basis  for adjusting these  forecasts  as  suggested by Mr. Smith.

23

24 Q. Does that conclude your response to the Surrebuttal Testimony of Mr. Smith?

25 Yes, it does .

26

27

A.
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1

2

111. RESPONSE TO STAFF WITNESS DAVID c . PARCELL'S  SURREBUTTAL

TESTIMONY.

3

4 Q- What comments do you have on the Surrebuttal Testimony of Mr. Parcell?

5

6

7

8

My comme nts  will be  brie f a s  mos t of the  points  ra is e d by Mr. P a rce l] on the  cos t of

capita l we re  addre ssed in my Rebutta l Tes timony, Howeve r, I fe e l compe lled to comment

on his  misunders tanding of the  re la tionship be tween UNS Electric and its  pa rent company,

UniSource  Ene rgy Corpora tion ("UniSource  Ene rgy").

9

1 0 Q- What misunderstanding are you referring to?

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

Mr. P a rce l] continue s  to be lie ve  tha t UNS  Ele ctric some how de rive s  mos t of its  fina ncia l

s tre ngth from UniS ource  Ene rgy. In dis cus s ing the  cos t of ca pita l to UNS  Ele ctric on

pages 4 and 5 of his  Surrebutta l Tes timony, Mr. Pa rce ll makes  numerous  re fe rences  to the

Compa ny's  corpora te  a ffilia te s  including UniS ource  Ene rgy, Tucs on Ele ctric  P owe r

Compa ny ("TEP "), UNS  Ga s , Inc. ("UNS  Ga s") a nd UniS ource  Ene rgy S e rvice s  ("UES "),

the  inte rmedia te  holding company tha t owns  both UNS Electric and UNS Gas . He  cite s  the

financia l linkages  be tween UNS Electric and its  pa rent companie s , a s  we ll a s  the  decis ion

not to merge  UNS Electric into TEP , a s  rea sons  for dismiss ing the  company-specific risks

fa cing UNS  Ele ctric. In  doing s o, I be lie ve  tha t Mr. P urce ll ha s  confus e d the  ris k of

inve s ting in UNS  Ele ctric with the  ris k of inve s ting in UniS ource  Ene rgy, a nd ha s  s ubtly

a ttempted to shift the  is sue  of financia l integrity to the  pa rent company and away from the

ope ra ting utility whe re  it rightfully be longs .2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

2 6

Q- Please describe the linkages between UNS Electric and its corporate affiliates.

27

UNS  Ele ctric is  a  public s e rvice  corpora tion owne d by UES , a n inte rme dia te  holding

compa ny owne d by UniS ource  Ene rgy. Due  to le nde r re quire me nts , UES  provide d a

gua ra nte e  for the  re pa yme nt of long-te rm de bt a nd cre dit fa cility borrowings  a t both UNS

A.

A.

A.
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

1 3

Ele ctric a nd UNS  Ga s . Othe r tha n the  UES  gua ra nte e , no othe r gua ra nte e s  ha ve  be e n

provide d to UNS  Ele ctric by a ny corpora te  a ffilia te  including UniS ource  Ene rgy. UNS

Ele ctric is  a  s e pa ra te  corpora tion ha ving its  own a s s e ts  a nd obliga tions  tha t a re  cle a rly

segrega ted from its  a ffilia te s . It is  re spons ible  for procuring purchased power, na tura l ga s

and othe r ma te ria ls  and se rvices  on its  own credit. And a lthough UES has  gua ranteed the

Compa ny's  long-te rm de bt a nd cre dit fa cility borrowings , UNS  Ele ctric's  de bt s e curitie s

were  ra ted separa te ly from UNS Gas and rece ived diffe rent te rms and conditions  when the

e xis ting long-te rm note s  we re  is s ue d in 2003. The  only othe r corpora te  tra ns a ctions

be twe e n  UNS  Ele ctric  a nd  its  a ffilia te s  invo lve  the  p rovis ion  of a dmin is tra tive  a nd

ope ra ting support se rvices  by TEP, the  pa rticipa tion by UNS Electric in a  consolida ted tax

s ha ring a gre e me nt, a nd the  infus ion of a dditiona l e quity ca pita l from time  to time  by

UniS ource  Ene rgy a nd UES . Although the se  linka ge s  a nd corpora te  a ffilia tions  s e rve  to

s tre ngthe n the  fina ncia l s ta nding of UNS Ele ctric, the y a re  cle a rly limite d in te rms  of the ir

14 scope and size.

15

16 Q-

1 7

1 8

On  p a g e  5 o f h is  S u rre b u tta l Te s timo n y, lin e s  1 th ro u g h  4, Mr. P u rc e ll re fe rs  to  a

poten tia l merge r of UNS Elec tric  with  TEP a s  a  means  of reduc ing  the  cos t o f cap ita l

to  UNS Elec tric . Is  s uch a  merger feas ible?

19

20

21

22

23

24

No, it is  not. As  indica te d in the  re sponse  to S ta ff Da ta  Re que s t No. S TF 4.7, TEP  is  a n

is s u e r o f ta x-e xe mp t lo ca l fu rn is h in g  b o n d s ,  o f wh ich  $ 3 5 9  millio n  a re  cu rre n tly

outs tanding. An additiona l $221 million of loca l furnishing bonds  tha t we re  repurchased in

2005 a ls o re ma in e ligible  for re -is s ua nce . As  a n is s ue r of loca l furnis hing bonds  TEP  is

re s tricte d to providing re ta il se rvice  within a  two-county a re a . If UNS Ga s  or UNS Ele ctric

we re  to me rge  with TEP , TEP  would no longe r qua lify a s  a n is s ue r of loca l furnis hing

25 bonds , the re by ca us ing the  re de mption or de fe a s a nce  of the s e  low cos t bonds . As a

26

27

conse que nce , TEP  would e xpe rie nce  a  subs ta ntia l incre a se  in its  cos t of de bt. S ince  this

would clea rly not be  in the  inte res t of TEP or its  customers , the  merger scenario re fe renced

A.
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by Mr. Purce ll is  s imply not fea s ible  a t this  time .

2

3 Q-

4

Is the linkage between UNS Electric and its other corporate affiliates relevant to an

assessment of financial integrity and cost of capital?

5 No, it is  not.

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

1 4

15

Un le s s  th e  u tility h a s  s o me h o w b e e n  h a rme d  a s  a  re s u lt o f th e

pa re nt/subs idia ry re la tionship, which is  cle a rly not the  ca se  for UNS  Ele ctric, the  is sue  of

who owns  the  utility is  la rge ly irre le va nt. The  cos t of ca pita l is  a  function of the  ris k to

which it is  exposed, and not on the  identity of the  inves tor providing capita l. Likewise , it is

the  utility tha t is  re s pons ible  for providing s e rvice  a nd a ttra cting the  ca pita l a nd othe r

re source s  ne e de d to provide  tha t s e rvice , a nd not the  pa re nt compa ny holding a n e quity

in te re s t in  the  u tility. Although a  s ubs ta ntia l portion  of UNS  Ele ctric 's  ca pita l ha s

obvious ly come  from UniS ource  Ene rgy in the  form of e quity contributions , a s  we ll a s

from the  re te ntion of e a rnings  tha t othe rwise  could ha ve  be e n pa id out a s  divide nds , this

continuing fina ncia l s upport is  cle a rly pre mis e d on the  a bility of UNS  Ele ctric to e a rn a

reasonable  ROR on its  invested capita l.

16

17 Q- Does that conclude your response to Mr. Parcell's Surrebuttal Testimony?

18 Yes, it does.

19

20 Iv. RE S P O NS E  TO  RUCO  WITNE S S  MARYLE E  DIAZ CO RTE Z' S  S URRE BUTTAL

21 TE S TIMO NY.

22

23 Q- What comments do you have on the Surrebuttal Testimony of Ms. Diaz Cortez?

24

25

26

27

Since  I did not rind any new arguments  on the  issue  of CWIP in ra te  base  in the  Surrebutta l

Tes timony of Ms. Diaz Cortez, Shave  no furthe r comments  to make . would ins tead re fe r

to the  Re butta l Te s timony l file d e a rlie r in re sponse  to Ms . Dia z Corte z' Dire ct Te s timony,

a nd to my e a rlie r re s pons e  in this  Re joinde r Te s timony to Mr. S mith, whos e  a rgume nts

A.

A.

A.
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o verlap  with  th o s e  o f Ms . Diaz Co rtez.1

2

3 Do e s  th a t  c o n c lu d e  yo u r re s p o n s e  to  Ms . Dia z Co rte z '  S u rre b u tta l Te s tim o n y?

Yes , it does .

R E S P O NS E T O R U C O WIT NE S S W I L L I A M R IG S B Y' S S UR R E B UT T AL

Q-

4 A.

5

6 v .

T E S T IMO N Y.7

8

9 Q- Do you ha ve  a ny comme nts  on the  S urre butta l Te s timony file d by Mr. Rigs by?

A.10 Ye s ,  I d o .

11

I will fo c u s  my c o mme n ts  o n  th e  fo llo win g  is s u e s : (i) Mr.  R ig s b y's

fina nc ia l ma rke ts ,  (ii) h is  con tinue d

12

13

14

15

in te rp re ta tion  o f re ce n t de ve lopme nts  in  the

jus tifica tion of a bnorma lly low growth ra te s  in the  dis counte d ca s h flow ("DCF") mode l,

(iii) his  dismis sa l of re gula tory la g a nd the  impa ct of growth on UNS  Ele ctric a nd (iv) his

conclus ion re ga rding the  sufficie ncy of RUCO's  ra te  re comme nda tion in light of the  Hope

and Blue fie ld court decis ions .

16

17 Q- Does  Mr. Rigs by dis cus s  recent developments  in the  financia l markets ?

A.18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Yes , he  does . On pages  6 through 8 of his  Surrebutta l Tes timony he  discusses  the  recent

turmoil e xpe rie nce d in  the  fina ncia l ma rke ts . In  h is  d is cus s ion  he  re fe rs  to  re ce nt

"borrowing cris e s ," "a  turbule nt we e k on Wa ll S tre e t" a nd ma rke ts  tha t ma y "fa il to s e ttle

down." (S e e  pa ge  7 of his  S urre butta l Te s timony, line s  l, 4  a nd ll.) At the  e nd of this

discuss ion, on page  8 of his  Surrebutta l Tes timony, he  then points  to a  recent reduction in

the  yie ld on U.S . Tre a s ury Bills  a s  a  re a s on for re ducing the  cos t of e quity e s tima te

obta ine d from his  a pplica tion of the  Ca pita l Asse t P ricing Mode l ("CAP M").

25

26 Q- Do you concur with Mr. Rigs by's  obs erva tions  and conclus ions ?

A.27 While  I ce rta inly agree  with his  obse rva tion tha t the  financia l marke ts  have  been in a  s ta te

12



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

of turmoil ove r the  pa s t s e ve ra l we e ks , I dis a gre e  with his  conclus ion tha t the  cos t of e quity

fo r UNS  E le c tric  would  s om e how de c re a s e  a s  a  re s u lt o f th is  tu rm oil.  W ha t Mr.  R igs by

ha s  obs e rve d  is  a  re -p ric ing  o f ris k in  the  fina nc ia l m a rke ts ,  with  a  fligh t to  qua lity by

inve s tors  tha t ha s  be ne fite d  U.S .  Tre a s ury s e curitie s  a nd pum m e le d m os t o the r fina nc ia l

a s s e ts . Although he  is  corre ct in pointing out the  s ubs ta ntia l re duction in re quire d yie lds  on

s hort-te rm  U.S . Tre a s ury s e curitie s ,  Mr. Rigs by fa ile d to  m e ntion the  s ubs ta ntia l incre a s e

in  re qu ire d  ris k p re m ium s  tha t ha s  oc c u rre d  in  the  c o rpo ra te  de b t a nd  e qu ity m a rke ts .

S uch a n  inc re a s e ,  in  m y opin ion ,  would  m ore  tha n  offs e t a ny re duc tion  to  U.S .  Tre a s ury

yie lds  whe n upda ting a  ris k pre mium mode l s uch a s  the  CAP M.

10

11 Q- Ho w h a s  th is  re c e n t  fin a n c ia l tu rm o il a ffe c te d  th e  re q u ire d  r is k  p re m iu m s  o n  u t ility

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

2 1

22

23

24

25

26

27

s ecu ritie s ?

The  ris k pre miums  de ma nde d by inve s tors  ha ve  incre a s e d s ubs ta ntia lly. The  be s t e vide nce

of th is  is  the  wide ning  of c re d it s pre a ds ,  o r the  d iffe re nce  in  re quire d  ra te s  of re tune  on

long-te rm  utility bonds  a nd long-te rm  U.S  Tre a s ury bonds . Ba s e d on ma rke t da ta  a va ila ble

th rough  Re u te rs  fina nc ia l s e rv ic e ,  the  a ve ra ge  c re d it s p re a d  fo r te n -ye a r u tility bonds

ha ving a  Trip le -B c re dit ra ting  (Ba a  or BBB) wide ne d from  141 ba s is  poin ts  to  178 ba s is

p o in ts  b e twe e n  S e p te m b e r 2 9 ,  2 0 0 6  ( th e  d a te  re fe re n c e d  o n  p a g e  2 0  o f m y Dire c t

Te s tim ony) a nd  Augus t 23 ,  2007 .  Th is  inc re a s e  o f 37  ba s is  po in ts  (0 .37%) re fle c ts  the

inc re a s e d  ris k p re m ium  now re qu ire d  by inve s to rs  fo r the s e  bonds .  Cons is te n t with  the

pre vious ly m e ntione d  flight to  qua lity,  the  im pa c t on  s pe cula tive -gra de  u tility bonds  ha s

be e n  m uch m ore  s e ve re .  The  obs e rve d  c re d it s pre a d  for te n-ye a r u tility bonds  ha ving  a

Double -B cre dit ra ting (Ba  or BB) wide ne d from  220 ba s is  points  to  345 ba s is  points  ove r

this  s a me  pe riod, a n incre a s e  of 125 ba s is  points  (1.25%). S ince  the  re quire d yie ld on te n-

ye a r U.S . Tre a s ury bonds  ha s  droppe d by only 2 ba s is  points  (0.02%) ove r this  s a me  pe riod

o f t im e ,  it  is  a p p a re n t  th a t  th e  c o s t  o f b o th  d e b t  a n d  e q u ity c a p ita l fo r  u t ilit ie s  with

s pe cula tive -gra de  ra tings  ha s  incre a s e d s ubs ta ntia lly s ince  my Dire ct Te s timony wa s  file d.

A.
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1

2

3

This  disproportiona te  incre a se  to the  cos t of ca pita l, re la tive  to inve s tme nt-gra de  utilitie s ,

a lso de mons tra te s  the  prude nce  of ta rge ting a nd ma inta ining a n inve s tme nt-gra de  cre dit

ra ting for UNS  Ele ctric.

4

5 Q- What comments do you have regarding Mr. Rigsby's discussion of long-term DCF

6 growth rates?

7

8

9

1 0

11

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

19

20

Mr. Rigsby de dica te s  ne a rly five  pa ge s  of his  S urre butta l Te s timony to a  de fe nse  of the

divide nd growth ra te s  use d in his  cons ta nt growth DCF mode l a nd to a  furthe r critique  of

the  growth ra te s  use d in my multi-s ta ge  DCF mode l. Re ga rdle s s  of whe the r the  cons ta nt

growth or multi-s ta ge  ve rs ion of the  DCF mode l is  us e d, it is  obvious  tha t the  re s ults

obta ine d a re  highly se ns itive  to the  growth ra te s  se le cte d. Unfortuna te ly, a s  discusse d in

my Re butta l Te s timony, Mr. Rigsby's  use  of a bnonna lly low growth ra te s  re sults  in cos t of

equity es timates  as  low as  6.6% for his  comparable  company group. By contras t, my use  of

five -ye a r growth ra te s  re fle cting compa ny-spe cific proje ctions , followe d by the  use  of a n

indus try-wide  growth ra te  tha t close ly approxima te s  the  expected long-te rm growth ra te  in

the  U.S . economy, re sults  in cos t of equity e s tima tes  tha t a re  much more  reasonable  when

compa re d with (i) re ce nt ROE a llowa nce s  for othe r e le ctric utilitie s , (ii) re quire d yie lds  on

inve s tme nt-gra de  utility bonds  a nd (iii) the  re s ults  tha t Mr. Rigs by a nd I obta ine d for the

sa me  group of compa nie s  us ing the  CAPM. For this  re a son, re comme nd once  a ga in tha t

Mr. Rigsby's  DCF a na lys is  be  give n little  Arno we ight in this  proce e ding.

21

22 Q-

23

24

On page 15 of his Surrebuttal Testimony, lines 1 through 10, Mr. Rigsby downplays

the significance of regulatory lag and growth for UNS Electric. Does he offer any

new arguments on this subject?

25

26

No, he  does  not. Howeve r, on page  16 of his  Surrebutta l Tes timony, line s  1 through ll, he

now cite s  a  proba ble  s lowing of growth in Moha ve  County a s  a  pos itive  fa ctor for UNS

Ele ctric.27
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1 Q-

2

Do you agree that a slowing of growth in the Company's service territory would be a

positive development for UNS Electric?

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

If a slowdown in customer growth were accompanied by a reduction in capital spending,

then I would agree with Mr. Rigsby on this point. However, based on preliminary planning

for fiscal years 2008 through 2012, it does not appear that capital spending for UNS

Electric will decrease even if a decline in customer growth occurs. The primary reason for

this is the increased cost of system reinforcement work that UNS Electric is now planning

for. As a result, the financial forecasts presented in my Direct and Rebuttal Testimony may

be overly optimistic. If a significant slowdown in customer and sales growth occurs, with

no commensurate decrease to the Company's capital spending requirements, the end result

would be lower earnings and cash flow relative to the forecasts previously presented.

12

13 Q.

14

1 5

On page 15 of his Surrebuttal Testimony, Mr. Rigsby states his belief that RUCO's

rate recommendation will satisfy the capital attraction standards set forth in the Hope

and Blue field decisions. What evidence does he offer in this regard?

16

17

1 8

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

The only evidence I could find was on page 15, lines 14 through 16, where he states that

"RUCO believes that the rates it is recommending in this case will provide the Company

with the opportunity to recover its operating expenses and provide a return on its invested

capital." Unfortunately, I could find no other analysis or discussion in his testimony

regarding the adequacy of that return. As discussed in my Rebuttal Testimony, RUCO's

rate recommendation is expected to result in an earned ROE of only 2.6% in 2008

assuming a full year of rate relief This expected return is so low that it cannot even

compete with the 4.09% risk-tree rate on U.S. Treasury bills cited by Mr. Rigsby on page

8, line 7 of his Surrebuttal Testimony. Under RUCO's rate recommendation, UniSource

Energy would be better off investing in short-term U.S. Treasury bills than investing

additional equity capital in UNS Electric.

27
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Does that conclude your Rejoinder Testimony?1

2 A .

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

2 6

2 7

Yes, it does .
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Storm Clouds Gathering on the Horizon for the
North American Electric Utility Sector

S u m m a ry

While the ra ting outlooks  for the vas t majority of the NorM American regula ted electric utility companies  remain Sta
be, a  number of "s torm clouds" appear to be ga thering on the horizon which could have nega tive credit implica tions
over the intermedia te-term. The s table  outlook is  primarily ba s ed on the cons is tency of key financia l credit ra tios
reported over the pas t few years , an expected condnuadon of rela tively s trong financia l metrics  over the next 6 to 18
months , our views  regarding timely regula tory recoveries  of prudendy incurred cos ts  and inves tments  and an overa ll
focus  on regula ted opera tions  by management. One of the mos t s ignificant factors  incorpora ted into our outlook is  a
view that most utility management teams will mainta in healthy and constructive rela tionships  wide their s ta te reguda-
tory authorities  and tha t mos t s ta te regula tory auduorities  prefer to regula te financia lly hea lthy utilities  within daeir
states.

However, there are concerns aris ing from the sector's  s izable infrastructure investment plans in the face of an envi-
romnent of s teadily ris ing opera ting cos ts . Combined, Mcse cos ts  and inves tments  can crea te a  continuous  need for
regula tory ra te relief, which in turn can increase due likelihood for politica l and/or regula tory intervention. Conceiv-
ably, due combination of ris ing cos ts , higher infras tructure inves tment needs  and larger or more frequent reques ts  for
ra te relief could crea te pres sure for future incrementa l ra te relief from s ta te regula tors , or a t a  minimum, ra is e the
uncerta inty level associa ted wid'l expected recoveries dlereby directly a ffecting one of our primary ra ting drivers .
This  potendad for increased regula tory uncerta inty and pressure for ra te relief might peak severa l years  from now, a t
precisely due time when many companies  a re completing dieir base-load genera tion cons truction projects  or other
non-discretionary infras tructure inves tment projects  and the potentia l for ra te shock to consumers  would be highes t.

Moody's Investors Service
Global Credit Research



Furthermore, despite die clea r and present cha llenges  currency facing the indus try over die nea r, intermedia te
and longer-term horizons , some utility parent holding companies  continue to pursue overly biased shareholder reward
policies  in the form of high dividend payout ta rgets , annua l dividend ra te increases  and common equity repurchase
programs . While diesel Financia l policies  may be rooted in capita l efficiency philosophies , and companies  obvious ly
work for shareholders , Moody's  observes that these shareholder reward s trategies  are currency being established in the
face of increas ing bus iness  and opera ting risks  tha t a re clearly a rticula ted in the public SEC disclosures , and, in our
opinion, typically result in a  permanent increase to leverage and fixed obligations . If utility companies  experience con-
szrucdon cost overruns, lengthy delays, quasi-permanent recovery deferrals  or other adverse regulatory rulings, a  dete-
riora don of credit qua lity could res ult. S hould this  s itua tion ma te ria lize , Moody's  would be concerned ove r die
potentia l prospect tha t regula tors  may harbor lithe sympathy for companies  seeking financia l relief if they previous ly
chose a  policy that overly benefited shareholders , given the los t opportunity cos ts  associated with s trengthening a  bal-
ance sheet.

Moody's  acknowledges  the longer-term aspect of the risks  associa ted with these s tone clouds  and the uncerta inty
associa ted with potentia l downside scenario assessments . At this  dine, the unknowns  associa ted with the invesunent
plans  and regula tory rela tionships  a re not sufficient enough to cause direct implica tions  to nea r-term credit ra tings .
However, Moody's  will continue to assess  the cons tructiveness  of the regula tory rela tionships  between utility compa-
nies  and their respective regula tory commiss ioners . In our opinion, the rela tionships  with regula tors  could conceivably
counterba lance any potentia l deteriora tion of key financia l credit ra tios , especia lly if the deteriora tion is  expected to
be rela tively temporary In addition, Moody's  expects  mos t utility companies  to approach dieir financing plans  with a
ba lanced mix of debt and equity to fund their capita l expenditures . If however, the bus iness  and opera ting risks  for a
utility appear to be increas ing a t a  more s ignificant pace, or the regula tory rela tionships  appear to take a  more adver-
sa ria l tone, the ra ting outlook would likely change, even if the key financia l credit ra tios  were ma inta ined a t current
levels .

In dies  Specia l Comment,Moody's will explore severa l of these downside risks  to credit quality and articula te our
views regarding diesel risks  and how we may incorporate them into our credit analysis .
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Income Statement

Cash Flow Staqernent

Balance Sheet

Revenues
Fuei8¢ ?purchased Power
Operations of Maintenance
SG&A
Interest
Taxes
Net income
Depredation & Amortization
Working Capital/'Other
Capital Expenditures
Dividends
Reguiaiory Assets
Debt

Will rate relief stay current given potential for rising
regulatory/pnliticai intervention?
Rising - need for timely recovery
Rising expenses to maintain existing assets
Rising -.- healthcare / work force
What happens to interest rates?
Rising
Rising with rate relief and attempts for eos containment
Lower than capita! expenditures
Impact of deferred costs/ Liquidity impact
Rising significantly pi us environmental compliance risk)
Rising. Consistent with earnings. A fixed obligation.
Increasing
Rising - to fungi negative FCF

Increasing regulatory / political intervention risks
Increasing risks associated with environmental compliance/ Carbon iegislatiorx

Summary of Rising Business and Operating Risks
laws»

The s torm clouds  referenced in this  report essentia lly point to a  potentia l increase in the bus iness  and opera ting risk
profile for die sector. In our opinion, die ris ing cos ts  and inves tment needs  will have a  direct impact on a ll dire finan-
cia l s ta tements : income, cash flow and balance sheet. As  a  result, one of the bigges t challenges  for utility companies
will be to seek and receive timely recovery of prudently incurred expenses . In addition, the subs tantia l increases  in
capita l expenditures  will have a  materia l impact on the sector's  ability to genera te free cash flow. While Moody's  rec-
ognizes  that the utility sector usually operates  in a  negative free cash flow environment, a  concern could be raised if the
level of negative free cash How became large enough, or if regula tory lag was  long enough, tha t die leverage were to
increase materia lly. Furthermore, sha reholder dividends  could conceivably begin to outpace ea rnings  growdi, if die
regula tory rela tionship were to become more confronta tiona l.

Comparable Company Analysis

Moody's regularly utilizes  comparable company analysis  as  part of our fundamental credit research, which we typically
refer to as  peer groups . These peer groups  can be crea ted based on a  specific ra ting ca tegory (for example, a ll Baa l
pa rent holding companies ) or by bus ines s  compos ition (for example, a ll transmis s ion and dis tribution "T&D" udli-
ties ). In this  Specia l Comment, Moody's will summarize due Financia l results  of a  much broader peer group Man we
would typically use for a  specific ra ted entity In addition, we acknowledge that there may be occas ions  where a  pardc-
ular company's  extraordinary event may skew an annual average (which we may not adjust for), so we have attempted
to minimize die effect by a lso assess ing a  5-year average and a  4-year Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) from
2002 to 2006.

The companies  included in die peer groups  for the bulk of dies  Specia l Comment a re lis ted in die tables  below.
The companies  tha t comprise any additional peer groups , which include companies  characterized by region or odder
indus tria l, non-utility peer groups , a re lis ted in Appendix A.
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ISenior Unsecure
Rating*Integrated Utilities

ASAlabama Power Company
B<xa2Appalaclxiarf Power Company
BaanArizona Pxibiic Service company
BaalBlack Hiss Power, Inc.

BalCentral lliinois Light Company
BaalCleco Power LLC

I ASColum us Southern Power Company
(P)Baa2Consumers Energy Company
BaalQ on Powe & Lich Company
BaalDmscit Edison Company (The)
AS[}gk83,Ener8y el ias ,  LLC

BaalDuke Energy Indiana, Inc.
BaalDuke Energy Ohio, Inc.
Baa2Energy Arkansas, Inc.

Energy Gui States, Inc. Baan****

BaanEnergy Louisiana, LLC
BaanEnergy Mississippi, Inc.
BarEnergy New Orleans, inc.

ALFlorida Power 8¢ light Company
ASGeorgia Power Company

Green Mountain Fewer Corporation Baal *m*

ASGulf Power Company
BaalHawaiian Electric Company, inc.
BaalIda<> Power Company
Baa2Indiana Michigan Power Company
BaanIndianapolis Power & Light Company
ASInterstate Power and Light Company

ASKansas City ?over & Light Ccarnpany
Baa2'***Kansas Gas 84 iiectric Co.

BaanKentucky t'ower Company
ASKentucky UIiliii€$ Co.
ASLouisville Gas & Cedric Company
AarMadison Gas and Electric Company
ASIv\idAmerican £nergy Company
ALMississippi Power Company

BaanMonartgahela Fewer Gnrnpany
BINevada Power Company
ASNorm in States Power Company (MN)
AsNorthern States Power Company (WI)
ASQhic Power Company
ASGidahoma Gas 84 'electric Company

BaalF'aLcit3c Gas & Electric Company
paul cap Baal

BaanPot and General E eclric Company
ASProgress Energy* Carolinas, inc.
ASProgress Energy Florida, Inc.

¢ BaalPu.; in Service Company of (Zdora o
l~w BaanP in Service Company o New Hampshire

Baa2Public Service Company of New Mexico
Baa!Public Service Eompany Q Bahama

rgylnc.4P BaanSound,  .
1-+8

A2Savannah Electric and Power Company
BISierra Pacific Power Company
A2Sqlzth arlina ectric& Gas company
ASSouthern aliornia Edison Company

Southwestern Baaltrio Power Company

Baa?$outhwesterrl Pubic: Service Company
Baa2Tampa Electric Company
BaanTucson Electric Power Company
Baa!Union Electric Company

Virginia Electric and Po-wer omparny Baal
AsWisconsin Electric Power Company
ASWisconsin F*ower and light Company

Wisconsin Public Service corporation AL

ISenior Unsecure
itaiing*Utility Parent Companies

BarAllegheny Energy, Inc.
BaanAF.E.ETF, Inc.

Ameren Corporation Baan
American Electric Power Comp:my Baan

BarAquila, Inc,
BayAvesta Corp.

B Eck Hills Corporation Baan
Bar'*Central Vermont Public Service Co.

ICinegy Car Baa;
BaanC Eco Corporation
BalCMS £nergy Cofporatixan
BaalConstellation Energy Gump, Inc.
BaanDominion Resources inc,
BaanDPL Inc.
BaanDTE Energy Company
Baa2Duke En€tgy Corporation
BayDuquesne Light Holdings, Inc.
ASE.QNU.S. LLC

BaancE isorz International
BaanEl Past Eielrtric Company
BaanEmpire District Electric Company

s BaanEnter Cot oration9¢

Baa2Exelan Corporation
BaanFirstEnergy Corp.

FPL Group, Inc. QPJA2
l?}Baa2Great Plains Energy Incorporated

BaanHawaiian Electric Industries, inc*
BaanIDACORR Inc.

|Grow inc. ASInf s Ere I4-1

I Ba! ***IPALCO Enter rise, inc.
BaalMidAmericar: Ersagy iiaitiings Co.
BaalOGE Energy Corp.
ASGtter Tail Corpofatzon

Pep¢ol4olingsinc Baan
PG&E Corpora ion

BaanPinnacle West `api1ai Corporation

BaanPNM Kesources, ire.
BaanPPL Corporation
BaanProgress £nergy, Inez.
BarPSEG Energy Holdings L.L.C.
Baa2Public Service Enterprise Group

BalPuget Energya Inc.
ASSCANA Ccrporaticarn

BaalSempra Energy
Sierra Facdic Resources B I

ASSachem Company (The)
Ba!TECO Energy, Inc.

TXU Carp. Ba l
BaanTXU US Hnidings Company

UniSouLglg;§9ergy Corporation 8a3 ***
8aa3Wester energy, Inc.

Ill

ASWisconsin Energy Corporation I

Baa!Xcel Energy inc.

Baan

* Long-term Issuer RatIng used where Senior Unsecured /s not available.
'PreferredStock
' Senior Secured

***' First Mortgage bond
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Senior Unsecured
Rating*T88 Parent Companies

BaanAES El Salvo<iGI Trust

BalCel*1&rPoint Energy, Inc.

BarCILCORP Inc.

ASConsaiidated Edison, Inc.

BaanEnergy East Corporation

Northeast Utililieg Baan

BarNorthwestern Corporation

ASNSTAR

BaanUIL Holdings Corpbraticn

T&D Utilities
Senior Unsecuwli

Rating*

BaanAB' Texas Central Company

BaalAPP Texas North Company

BaalAtlantic City Electric Company

BaanBaltimore Gas and Electric Company

BaanCounterPoint Energy Houston Electric

ASCentral Hudson Gas & Electric Co

Ba1Central Illinois ugh: Company
BayCentral Illinois Publi v e
83Central Maine Power Company

BaanCleveland Electric Illummatia8
BayComnuxzwealth Edison Company

BaalConnecticut £8% arad Rawer Company
ASConsolidated Edison Company of NY

BaanDelmarva Power & Light Company
BaanDuquesne Light Company

BalIllinois Power Company

Baanjersey Central Power 8< Light Company

Baa2Metropemiftan Ectisan Company

New York State Eiecinc and Gas Baa!

ALNSTAR Electric: Company

BaezOhm Edison Company

ASOrange and Rsnddand Utilities

ASPECK Energy Company

BaanPefrnsyivania Electro Company

8aa2Penf>syEvar1ia Purer Co.

BaanPotomac EriEs<>n Company (Thea

BaanPotomac Electric Pkamver Company

BaalPPL Electric Utilities Corlxzration

Baa!Public Service Electric and Gas

BaalRochester Gas & Electric Corporation

ASSan Diego Cos 84 Electric Company

BaanTexas~New Mexico Power Company

BaanToledo Edison Company

BaanFlectric Salivary Company

West Penn Power Company Baan

Baa2Western Massachusetts Electric Co.
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5-yr
Awg

Tabbi

Grass Margin as a % Revenue 2004 4-
<;AG'»{2903 200620052682

49%
45%

43.3%49%
45%

52%
45%

54%
46%

54%
46%

56%
45%

Integrated Lniiity
T&D Utility

51%
46%

49%41% ~3.3%

-3 .2°Ja
49%

43%

Utility Parent
T&D Parent

SZ"/Q

45%

56%
49%

53%

48°/o

Blsing Operating Bust Structure
\

48848

In genera l, Moody's  be lieves tha t die  Norri America n regula ted utility s ector is  fa cing a  long-term period of ris ing
operating cos ts , which include fuel and purchased power, operating and maintenance (O &M) costs , and selling, gen-
eral and adminis trative (SG8cA) expenses . The ability to recover these ris ing costs  on a  timely basis  through rate relief
has  increas ingly become a  s ignificant determinant to credit qua lity and highlights  the importance for utility manage-
ment teams to maintain constructive rela tionships  wide s ta te regulatory authorities  and provide reliable service to end-
use customers.

The s table ra ting outlook for the sector is  la rgely premised on our belief tha t these cos ts  will be recovered on a
reasonably timely bas is . However, for diode companies  Mat are incurring large, mud-year deferra l ba lances , Moody's
may begin to incorpora te a  higher risk profile, which would crea te pressure to mainta in a  s tronger ba lance sheet and
cash flow coverage metrics . The s ize of these potentia l ba lances  should become more clea r over die next 18 to 24
months .

FUEL AND PURCHASED POWER

The la rges t and mos t vola tile  expense on the income s ta tement is  fuel and purchased power, which has  averaged
approidmately 48% of revenues  over the pas t 5 years  for die integra ted electric utility group. The trend has  been ris -
ing, with these cos ts  averaging 51.4% of revenues  in 2006, compared with 43.7% in 2002. As  noted in Table 1 below,
the average gross  margin for the integra ted electric utilities  has  declined from 56% in 2002 to 49% in 2006, a  decline
of roughly 13%, while the gross  margin of T&D utilities  has  remained reasonably s teady

Moody's acknowledges dirt an assessment of gross  margin is  somewhat misleading for the utility sector, especially
when cons idering the pass -dirough na ture of many fuel and purchased power cos ts . For example, if a  utility collects
$100 in revenue and spends  $50 on fuel, its  gross  margin would be 50%. If however, tha t same utility experienced a
doubling of its  fuel cos ts  -.- to $100 - which was  directly passed-on to cus tomers , its  revenues  would be $150 and its
gross  margin would fall to 33 %.

With respect to these gross  margins ,Moody's notes  dirt the vas t majority of udlides  do not earn margins  on their
fuel and purchased power expenses, but instead enjoy specific rate riders  to address  these costs  as  direct pass-through
items  to end-use cus tomers . Our concern wide these pass -dirough ra te riders , however, res ide with the doing differ-
ences between when a company needs to procure its  fuel and purchased power and when it collects  die costs  from rate-
payers . Due to the extremely volatile nature of natural gas , oil and power commodity prices , many companies  can very
quickly find diems elves  in a  s ignifica nt under-recovery pos ition, which could s tres s  liquidity Exa mples  of udlides
which have experienced large deferred fuel and purchased power cos ts  include Alabama Power, Georgia  Power, Vir-
ginia  Electric and Power and Arizona  Public Service.

Recovery of deferred fuel costs  over an extended time period during which fuel costs  are ris ing weakens the overall
credit profile  of utilities , due  to the  increa s ing mis ma tch between cos t incurrence a nd cos t recovery More ove r,
Moody's  believes  utilities  may find themselves  having a  more difficult mc seeking other base ra te or incrementa l fuel
relief in such an environment. End-use cus tomers  and intervener groups  a re a lso less  likely to be sympathetic to the
factors  driving due ra te increases  during regulatory proceedings  making the management of rela tionships  with regula-
tors  and other interes ted parties  cha llenging. (Moody's  acknowledges  tha t mos t la rge indus tria l cus tomers  recognize
the fuel rates  and the pass-through nature of the fuel riders  and tend to be less  concerned wide this  particular issue).
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Men
$G&A expenses as a % revenue

2093 mine2002 20q4s s-v
Avg @24

10%
8%

10%
9%

11%
10%

11%

9%

12%

9%

11%
9%

lntegIamed Ulilifv

T8¢D Utility
-2.4%
-2.6%

10%
12%

9%
10%

9%
11%

9 %

10%

11%
16%

16%
11%

Utility Fhnant

T848 I*!aI8nt

-4.9%
-8.9%

sum

Tab!e3

Operating Margin as a % revenue
2006

4-
CAJR'20052002 2003

5~yr
Avg

14
16%

16%
15%

15%
13%

17%
16%

18%

3 6%

-4.5%
-5.1°o

15%

15%

Integrated Utility
T&D Utility

15%

11°/0
15°/a

11%

1.7%

-4.1 %

15%
12%

15%

17%

15%

13%

34°/o
13%

Utility Parent
T&D Parent

§Qwe4
interest Expense as a % revenue

2 0  442003 2005 20062002
5-v
Avg

4-
Q8£

sos 45%6%
6%

6%
6% hen

856

7%

5%
5%

6%
6%

5%
6%

Integrated Remy
T&D Uality

7%
7%

8%
7%

6%
8%

8%
7%

7%
6%

Utility Halrett
To Fawn:

-3.3%
-3.8%

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

In addition to fuel costs, the fundamental operating cost structure appears to be rising as well. Industry consulting
groups and data collection agencies can demonstrate a clear trend in rising costs on a per-customer basis. However,
over the past 5 years, this trend can not be demonstrated durough our financial analysis, as doe level of SG&A expenses
as a percentage of revenues appears to remain relatively stable at roughly 11% for the integrated electrics and roughly
9% for the T8zD utilities.

OPERATING MARGIN

However, the concern over a steadily rising operating cost structure is evident in die average operating margins. As
noted in the table below, the operating margin as a percentage of revenue has steadily fallen for the integrated udlides
from approzdmately 18% in 2002 to approidinately 15% in 2006. The deterioration is also evident: for the T&D udli-
ties, which have fallen from approximately 16% in 2002 to approximately 13% in 2006.

In genera l, die vas t majority of the opera ting cos ts  rela ted to regula ted utility opera tions  a re recoverable through
base ra tes , and most regulatory authorities  are aware of due ris ing costs  facing the industry While operating margin is
less  helpful to credit ana lys is , it does  provide a  view of profitability Any sus ta ined deteriora tion of the sector's  proiit-
ability could negatively bias  our sector ra ting outlook.

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interestingly, the average interest expense as a percentage of revenue appears to remain relatively stable at approzd-
mately 5% for the integrated electrics, having fallen from roughly 6.3% in 2002. For the T&D udlides, interest
expense as a percentage of revenue fell from approximately 6.4% in 2002 to S .75 % in 2006. As debt levels and interest
rates reverse the declining trend of die last several years, interest expense as a percentage of revenues may begin to
increase, depending on cost of capital recovery proceedings.

In summary, doe ma jority of the expenses  "above the line" a re expected to be recovered through the regula ted
ra te-making process , a lthough some of this  recovery could be impacted by regula tory lag. Utility companies  should
recover these cos ts  and expense deferra ls  (such as  dose associa ted with fuel and purchased power) in a  reasonably
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5-yr
Avg

Table 5

Capital Expenditures I CFO 4.
6A8»§2004 200620032002 2005

410%*
72%

99%
72%

7.3%

13.4%

93°/>
84%

t10%
129%

83%
78%

Integrated Utility
T8¢D Utility

78%
69%

93%
97%

12.4%
5.9%

126%
T13%

Utility Parent
To Parent

79%
90%

71%
83%

77°/o
55%

18°/0
l̀44%

* Emluded from 5 yr average. Guttier primadi; attributed to Energy subswldxaries.

Ta1>1e 6
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153%
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timely manner. As such, die primary credit implications associated wide the costs  and expenses, and recoveries  associ-
a ted with regula tory lag, rela te to working capita l and liquidity.

In genera l, a  vas t majority of utility companies  mainta in a  rela tively healthy amount of liquidity capacity dirt helps
them mitiga te the loss  of financia l flexibility from any delayed regula tory response to cos t recoveries . We have a lso
observed, over the pas t few years , a  trend away from bila tera l facilities  and more towards  committed, fully syndicated
mild-yea r facilities  widiout MAC clauses  beyond initia l clos ing on the facility We view this  development a s  a  credit
pos ltlve.

larger Capital Expenditure Programs
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Aldiough indus try es timates  vary widely, there appears  to be an expecta tion that the utility sector will make s ignificant
infras tructure inves tments  over die next few years , including inves tments  in genera tion, transmiss ion and dis tribution
assets  as  well as  environmental midgadon. In fact, there has  been a considerable increase in die projected estimates  of
capita l expenditures  in die public disclosure for year-end 2006 versus  year-end 2005.

Given the rela tively non-discretionary na ture of die announced capita l expenditure plans  (such as  environmenta l
compliance, new generation build and transmiss ion upgrades), Moody's expects  a  s ignificant pardon of diesel plans  to
tra ns la te  into a ctua l inves tments . However, we note  dirt the  doing a s s ocia ted with s ome of the  a nnouncements
appears  to be rela tively aggress ive. For example, a  number of companies  in the sector have announced plans  to build
new base load genera tion, such as  coa l or new nuclear plants . In our opinion, these projects  will take approidmately
50-60 months  for cons truction, a fter the necessary permitting process  has  been completed. In addition, many T8cD
udlides  (as  well as  integrated electrics) have announced new uansxniss ion projects  beyond s imple maintenance of the
exis ting s ys tem. In our opinion, there  will likely be s ignifica nt res is ta nce from numerous  intervener groups  which
could potentia lly delay some of these projects .

There are many ways to evaluate the increase in capita l expenditure plans , the most notable of which is  die public
disclosure in the annual SEC tilings . This  increas ing level of invesnnent has  actually s tarted to materia lize in the finan-
cial statements as utility companies geared up over die past few years for the increases in maintenance and new projects.
This  increase is  apparent in a  ratio of capital expenditures  to cash flow from operations, as  noted in die table below and
is  arguably related to the expiration of many rate-freeze periods when capital expenditures  may have been smaller.

Capital expenditure as a percentage of annual depreciation expense has also been increasing, and Moody's observes
that the inves tlnents  are beginning to be made in very long-lived assets  with long book deprecia tion lives .

One of Me more a larming ra tios  Mat highlight the increased spending and its  potentia l impact on credit quality is
cash How, adjus ted for working capita l items  less  dividends , as  a  percentage of capita l expenditures . Prospectively,
Moody's would expect thes e ra tios  to continue to decline over die  next few yea rs , depending on how much of the
expected invesunent actually materializes and what recovery arrangements are in place .

8 A/Ioody's Special Comment
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States with Less Constructive Rgeent Regulatory
Ar Legislative Actions

Wisconsin
Virginia

Iowa
Florida

Louisiana
Nevada

North Carolina
South Carolina

Maryland
Illinois

Arkansas
Arizona

Table 8

2004

Net income I Average Equity

200620032002
3-

6A8vg2005
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A39
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31%
33%

11%
11%

11 °/o
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n/a

n/a
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-3.1%
4 1 4 %
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i t%
9%

~3.2%10%
12%

*9%
31%

1'l%
12%

n/a

n/a

utEiizy Parent

T&D Parent

10%
11%

As diesel cash oudays begin to flow dirough the s tatement of cash flows, many companies  will begin ro s tress  their
key financia l credit metrics , rega rdles s  of any regula tory recovery mechanisms , due to timing differentia ls  and the
sheer s ize of the projects . If the expected deterioration to the financia l s ta tements  materia lizes  or if the financing plans
associa ted with the increased expenditures  primarily encompass  the use of debt, negative ra ting actions  could result.
For example, SCANA Corpora tion and its  principa l utility subs idia ry, South Carolina  Electric and Gas , were recently
placed on review for potentia l downgrade in part due to its  announced increased spending plans  driven by higher con-
s11'ucdon and materia l cos ts , new nuclea r permitting cos ts  and a  change in die a s socia ted financing plans  of sa id
projects  which will now be done sole with the is suance of additiona l debt. This  is  clearly a  more aggress ive financing
policy Dia n the  compa ny utilized previous ly Otte r Ta il Corpora tion is  a nother exa mple  of a  compa ny tha t ha s
recently experienced a  negative rating action (outlook changed to negative from stable) as  a  result of an expected dete-
rioriadon to key financia l credit metrics .

Potential Fur Regulatory and/or legislative Intervention

An environment of ris ing opera ting cos ts  and capita l inves tment needs  should increase the frequency of reques ts  for
ra te relief from s ta te regula tory authorities . InMoody's opinion, these reques ts  appear to be occurring annually or bi-
annually now that many rate-freeze periods  have expired. Eventually, ra te-payers  may res is t diesel increases , depend-
ing on die magnitude of the increase. Additionally, individual s ta te legis la tures  may feel die need to intervene to tidier
help address  the s ituation or revise the current rules  and regulations .

regula tory or legis la tive intervention dirt has  proven quite beneficia l to the utility sector. In genera l, higher ra tes  make
future increases harder to obtain and so many utilities  and regulators  are beginning to pursue a series  of smaller annual
increases  in an effort to avoid a  more dramatic rate shock.

From a  credit pers pective, the intervention ris k could a ls o be a ffected by ma na gement's  des ire  to a tta in pre-
approvals  on investments  or other cash recovery mechanisms or assurances  prior ro committing to a  particular invest-
ment. A future regula tory risk could a ris e over the intennedia te- to longer-term where regula tory authorities  find it
beneficia l to a llow for pre-approval or other assurances  for recovery but subsequently prescribe a  lower a llowed equity
return reflecting the lower risk profile of the inves tment.

A/loody'5 Special Comment 9
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The chart below is  a  graphica l depiction of average awarded ROE's  as  ca lcula ted by the Edison Electric Ins titute
which shows a s imilar trend ro our analysis  in Table 8.

Given current macroeconomic market conditions ,Moody's believes  there are several regulatory commissions  dirt
a re actively ta rgeting progress ively lower equity returns , presumably on the premise Mat utilities  a re lower-risk bus i-
nesses  than indus tria l companies . Consequently, the equity market va lua tions  being ascribed to the regula ted utility
sector, which a re a t a ll-dme highs , a re likely to reverse themselves  in the future. This  potentia l outcome might lead
many regula tors  to ques tion why more companies  did not look to access  rela tively cheap equity a t this  time, knowing
they were entering a  phase of s ignificant infras tructure invesunent.

Moody's  believes  there is  a  discernable difference between individual s ta te regulatory commiss ions , their reladon-
s hip with the udlides  they regula te  and individua l s ta tes ' prior a ttempts  to deregula te  the indus try As  noted in the
charts  below, the s tates  in die southeastern region of die United States  and in the West / Soudiwest, have produced, on
average over the pas t 5 years , higher credit metrics  Man the s ta tes  in the Northeas t / Mid-Atlandc region, where most
udlides  divested their generation assets , or perhaps  transferred those assets  into a  less-regulated, affilia te entity. Inter-
esdngly, in addition, it appea rs  a s  if the average metrics  for the udlides  in the Wes t/Southwes t peer group may be
experiencing some lift from California .

10 A/loody'5 Special Comment
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As  demons tra ted in thes e  cha rts , the  T&D-rela ted udlides  in Illinois  a nd the  Northea s t / Mid-Atla ndc region
tend to produce a  lower level of cash flow to adjus ted tota l debt than their integrated peers , given dieir ra ting category
Theoretically, this  makes sense given the lower business  and operating risk profile associated with many of diesel T8zD
udlides , as  they genera lly do not have the more risky genera tion assets  widiin the vertica lly integra ted utility s tructure.
However, many of diesel udlides  need to procure their power supplies  on the open market or through bi-la tera l agree-
ments  with power genera tors  or merchant energy companies . While these cos ts  are genera lly passed through to end-
use consumers  through various  ra te-rider mechanisms, there could be very s ignificant and potentia lly devastating con-
sequences  to credit quality if regula tors , legis la tors , or odder politica l leaders  intervene over rapidly ris ing prices . This
case is  mos t prominent in Illinois  where the legis la tors , not the regula tors , lead the intervention, in pa rt due to the
s teep increase in ra tes  that went into effect this  pas tjanuary after a  10-year ra te freeze.
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Generous Shareholder Rewards Policies Appear Inconsistent With Increasing Business and
llperating lusk Profiles

In genera l,Moody's observes that most companies and indusuies that are facing increasing business and operating risk
profiles  tend to ins titute  corpora te  finance s tra tegies  tha t a re  des igned to bols ter the ba lance s heet in an effort to
address  ris ing uncerta inties  in a  more conservative manner. In the regula ted utility sector, some companies  appear to
be more  focus ed on competing for inves tor a ttention by ins dtudng overly generous  s ha reholder rewa rd policies .
These shareholder reward polices  typically include s teady and predictable annual dividend rate increases  and <:q11i1y
repurchase programs.

Over the pas t few yea rs , Moody's has  observed a  trend where many utility companies  a re beginning to s lowly
increase body their leverage and dividend obliga tions  or reins titute the payment of dividends , such as  CMS Energy
(dividend only) or Dominion Resources . Moody's  genera lly cons iders  dividends  as  a  fixed expense given die his torica l
reluctance of is suers  to tidier cut or ha lt die dividends  except when confronted wide an extremely dire financia l s itua-
don. Severa l companies  have a lso ra ised dieir dividend payout ta rgets  in an effort to a ttract or reta in inves tor interes t.
While Moody's recognizes  die importance of is suers  ma inta ining s trong equity interes t given the capita l intens ive
na ture  of the  indus try a nd the  need to ta p the  equity ma rke ts  from time-to-time  to he lp ma inta in the ir metrics ,
Moody's  would also prefer to see a  more consis tent balance between protection of creditors  and shareholder rewards in
an effort to defend a  pa rticula r ra ting. In the table below, Moody's observes  Mat the average dividend payout for the
sector has  declined for the integra ted utilities  and increased for the T&D parent companies .

A majority of the integrated electl'ic udlides  in our coverage universe are subsidiaries  of parent holding companies .
As  such, many of the udlides  incorpora te financia l policies  tha t a re des igned to achieve a  leverage ta rget cons is tent
with the a llowed regula ted equity ra tio or regula ted capita l s tructure. As  a  result, some of these subs idiaries  are actu-
a lly demons tra ting a  reasonably cons is tent reta ined cash flow to debt ra tio. The same can not be sa id for the T&D
udlides , which have had s teadily declining reta ined cash flow to debt ra tios  s ince 2004.

From a credit perspective, these shareholder reward programs could have implications  in companies ' dealings with
regula tors  or legis la tors . Regula tory audiorides  may feel less  sympathetic to companies  tha t might find themselves  in
increasingly s tressful financial conditions  as  they recall the equity repurchases  or other shareholder rewards  of the past
few years . Under this  scenario, it is  conceivable tha t regula tors  may ask management why it would implement these
programs in die face of increasing business and operating risks; especially as  it relates  to building new base-load gener-
adon facilities . This  leads  us  back to die issues  of constructive regulatory relationships  and timely recovery of costs .
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llnmparisnn tn lither Regulated, Gapital Intensive Industries

Moody's compa re d the  in te gra te d  e le c tric  udlide s  a nd T&D udlide s  to  a s e le cte d group of pe e r indus trie s . The s e
pee rs  a re  la rge , capita l-intens ive  indus trie s  tha t a re  a lso a ffected by s ignificant amounts  of regula tion - for example ,
e nvironme nta l or s a fe ty-re la te d re gula tion - or a re  a ffe cte d by commodity cycle s  or re a die r. For e a ch compa ra ble
sector, we  s e lected a  sma ll group of companie s  Ma t we  be lieve  cons titute  a  rea sonable  repre senta tion for die  pee r
group average . A lis t of the  companies  se lected for die  peer group is  included in Appendix A.

One of the more interes ting differentia tion factors  between these large capita l intensive industria l sector peers  and
die utility indus try is  the a bility of die  indus tria ls  to ca pita lize  on commodity prices . This  is  mos t evident wide die
major oil and s teel companies . Oil companies , in general, do not hedge their producion the way utilities  hedge, and as
a  result die s ignificant rise in oil prices  has  resulted in a  dramatic impact on earnings  and cash flows . Similarly, s teel
companies  have benefited from increased demand and higher prices .
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Moody's also observes duet there is  a noticeable consistency among the regulated industries wide respect to annual
credit ra tios  versus  the more vola tile indus tria l sectors . That being sa id, Moody's  a lso notes  tha t the indus tria l peers ,
many of whom are bailing hay while due sun shines, are not overly leveraging their balance sheets  when times are good.
Theoretica lly, dies  may be due to the inherent acknowledgement dirt the cyclica l na ture of the indus try s ector may
eventually turn around again, and some indus tria l companies  are less  endlus ias tic to an increased level of leverage if
they believe future cash Hows may be stressed.
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The regulated electric utility sector is  currency facing a  period of ris ing expenses , huge needs  to invest in its  infras truc-
ture and s ignificant needs  to address  s teadily increas ing environmenta l manda tes . As  a  result, the sector will mos t
likely be very active wide s ta te regulators  in seeking ra te relief, which could s tra in the reasonably constructive reladon-
ships they have enjoyed over the last few years . In addition, legislators  may view the sector as  an easy target with which
to score politica l points , and may intervene to protes t die s teadily ris ing cos ts  a s socia ted with lighting, hea ting and
cooling constituent's  homes or businesses.

The chart below depicts  die number of ra te cases  filed by udlides  as  ca lcula ted by the Edison Electric Ins titute.

However, none of die is sues  currently facing the indus try a re new In fact, the utility sector has  faced an environ-
ment with eerily s imila r uncerta inties  in the pas t. The risk, in our opinion, is  whether or not the experiences  of the
pas t will be repea ted in die future. The mos t s ignificant risk might be future disa llowances  of inves tments  tha t were
made with an unders tanding that those investments  were prudent and necessary at the dine they were made.

Our concern is  tha t even in s ta tes  with rea s onably cons tructive CWIP or other cons truction recovery mecha -
nisms , over die life of cons truction, only approxima tely 10% - 20% of the tota l project cos ts  would be recovered. If
the balance of die costs , in this  case 80% - 90%, were added to rate base in year 5 or 6, rate shock could be meaningful
for some utilities . If this  scenario materia lizes , Moody's  would be concerned if the regula tory rela tionship is  more con-
frontadonad, potentially increasing the risk for large deferrals  or disallowances, as  had been somedrnes the case in pre-
vious  yea rs . In a ddition, while Moody's did not s pend a ny ma teria l a ttention to the  ris ks  a s s ocia ted with ca rbon
legis la tion or carbon tax issues  in Mis  report, we believe the issues  over carbon could be subs tantia l for utility compa-
nies  over die next several years .

From a credit perspective, it is  unclear what impact diesel s torm clouds on the horizon may have on the utility sec-
tor. The risks  tha t a re currency being highlighted a re sufiiciendy fa r enough out on the horizon tha t there appears  to
be little  threa t of imminent ra ting action es pecia lly if key financia l credit ra tios  rema in a t current levels . However,
Moody's  has  ra ised a  ques tion on many occas ions  as  to whether or not utility companies  should be re-doubling their
efforts  to s trengthen ba lance sheets  and bols ter liquidity capacity, given the potentia l risks  over the intermedia te and
longer-term horizons .

From a  ra ting perspective, Moody's  expects  to carefully monitor utility inves tment plans , the associa ted financing
plans  rela ted to those inves tinents  and die potentia l those inves tments  could have on future ra te cases . While we rec-
ognize  tha t dire  a re  s ignifica nt needs tha t need to be addres sed .-- in terms  of genera tion capacity, fuel divers ity,
transmiss ion and dis tribution upgrades  and enhancements  and subs tantia l uncerta inties  associa ted with increas ingly
s tringent environmenta l mandates  -- credit qua lity could suffer if key financia l ra tios  were to deteriora te meaningfully
or if the deteriora tion appeared to be sus ta ined for an extended period of time.
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lléii Vu All Over Again

8.

The following excerpts are from an annual report published by a ietge multi-state utiHiy holding
company. Can you guess what year the report was published?

A.  2005
B. 1996

C.  1970
1964

"... rzfeonery pressures pushed the cosxfs efdaing business progressivehl higher he; compeller
...our operating companies to ask for late increases, "

reif .. difficafllies as fuel shortages and environment! concerns.. ,

'igperating expenses reached new heglfvtsl primarily because of signh*7cent increases on the
cos et fuel and of purcfrasedpower....I.ab¢2rand materials costs, foe, were higher than ever
before. "

"Construction of generation ,giants and other needed facilities continues Fe cam/ high priority in
tote.. plannNig for the fatnre, as do research and development activities aimed at finding nays to
protect more effectively the quality of air and water in our service area. "

n"...subnonndhndndeiectnicgenerating conditions.

"Gontributing fo...nlyher constriction costs are the envimnmenoprotection facilities associated
wiN the production of electnc power: "

"opine concern over foe! shortages, power supply inadequacies, need for increased revenues,
and ecological considerations - more wsilxfe than usual through increased national news
coverage -- amplified the concern already being shown by the nations producers of electric
new  "

"...it is probable that about half of the new generation instailedon the system...will be
nuclear iv

"in the long run, the devetoninent cl "clean coat" - through gesiiication or solvent refining -
probably will provide the most* feasible solution to one challenging problem at controlling stack
effluents. "

/fuedwog u/aq1no5,' 6u.L 0161 'Q :Jamsu\7'
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1

2

1. INTRQDUCTIQN.

3 Q- Please state your name and address.

4 Ke vin P . La rs on. My bus ine s s  a ddre s s  is  One  S outh Church Ave nue , Tucs on, Arizona ,

85701.5

6

7 Q.

A.

Are you the same Kevin P. Larson who filed Rebuttal Testimony in this proceeding?

Ye s , Iam.

9

1 0 Q- What is  the  purpos e  of your Re joinder Tes timony in  this  proceeding?

The  purpos e  of my Re joinde r Te s timony is  to re s pond to S ta ff a nd RUCO's  S urre butta l

Te s timony re ga rding Bla ck Mounta in Ge ne ra ting S ta tion ("BMGS").

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 11. R E S P O NS E  T O  S T AF F  W IT NE S S  R AL C H c .  S MIT H' S  S UR R E B UT T AL

1 5 TE S TIMO NY.

1 6

Q. Have you read the Surrebuttal Testimony of ACC Staff witness Ralph C. Smith

regarding BMGS?

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

Ye s .

Q- Has Staff's position on the Company's proposed ratemaking treatment of BMGS

22

23

24

changed?

25

26

27

No. Mr. S mith s ta te s  in his  S urre butta l Te s timony on pa ge  63 a t line s  22 through 23 tha t

"S ta ff continue s  to be lie ve  tha t the  inclus ion ofBMGS in ra te  base  in the  current ra te  case

would be  premature  and inadvisable  for severa l reasons."

A.

A.

A.

A.

1



1 Q- Does  S ta ff provide  an  economic  ana lys is  of UNS Elec tric 's  propos ed  ra te  trea tment

o f BMGS ?2

3 No. S ta ff s till se ems  unce rta in whe the r BMGS is  an economica l re source  for UNS Electric

4

5

6

a nd its  cus tome rs . Mr. S mith s ta te s  in his  S urre butta l Te s timony on page 67 a t line s  2

through 4 tha t "[i]t is  not known whe the r ha ving UNS  Ele ctric purcha s e  a  pe a king unit

s u ch  a s  BMGS  is  th e  mo s t e co n o mica l a lte rn a tive  to  o b ta in  p o we r fo r th e  s h o rt,

7 inte rmedia te  or long-te rm.79

8

Q-

1 0

Does Staff provide an economic analysis of owning generation versus acquiring

energy needs through purchased power contracts"

1 1

12

No. Howe ve r, Mr. S mith s ta te s  in his  S urre butta l Te s timony on pa ge  67 a t line  1 tha t

"S ta ff recognizes  tha t the re  can be  benefits  to a  utility owning its  own genera tion."

13

1 4 Q,

1 5

Has the Company provided an economic analysis that compares ownership of

generation versus acquiring energy needs through purchased power contracts?

16 Ye s . Exhib it KP L-3  to  my Dire ct Te s timony provide s

1 7

18

a  compa ris on of the  non-fue l

revenue  requirements  for a  90 MW peaking facility such as  BMGS with a  purchased power

contract. The  revenue  requirements  a ssocia ted with ownership decline  over time , whereas

1 9

20

2 1

22

the  cost of the  purchased power contract increases  over time . Based on the  assumptions  in

my a na lys is , the  cos t of owne rship is  a pproxima te ly $12 million le s s  tha n the  purcha se d

powe r option on a  ne t pre s e nt va lue  ba s is  ove r 30 ye a rs . The  owne rs hip of ge ne ra tion

contribute s  to a  s ta ble  a nd de clining non-fue l re ve nue  re quire me nt re la tive  to purcha se d

23 power ove r the  long-run.

24

25 Q.~ Has the Company provided an economic analysis of its proposed rate-making

treatment of BMGS?26

27 Ye s . Exhibit KP L-2 to  my Dire ct Te s timony s umma rize s  the  proje cte d impa ct of the

A.

A.

A.

2



1

2

3

5

6

ge ne ra ting fa cility on the  utility's  income  a nd ca s h flow. Ope ra ting ca s h flow a nd ne t

income  a re  pos itive ly impa cte d if a ll or mos t of the  non-f11e l re ve nue  re quire me nt is

re flected in ra te s  a t the  time  of commercia l ope ra tion. It is  readily apparent tha t ra te  base

tre a tme nt of owne d ge ne ra tion would provide  UNS  Ele ctric with a  s ignifica nt s ource  of

inte rna lly ge ne ra te d funds  tha t would improve  the  Compa ny's  cre dit profile  a nd its  a bility

to fund transmiss ion and dis tribution projects .

7

8

9

10

11

Q, Does Staff provide any new recommendations regarding the Company's proposed

rate treatment of BMGS?

1 2

No. Although Mr. S mith's  indica te s  on the  la s t pa ge  of the  s umma ry of his  S urre butta l

Tes timony tha t "S ta ff be lieves  tha t a  more  rea sonable  a lte rna tive  approach to addre ss ing

the  ra temaking and cash flow impacts  of mee ting UNS Electric's  power supply will need to

be  de ve lope d.", he  doe s  not de s cribe  wha t tha t a lte rna tive  would e nta il. The  Compa ny

be lieves  tha t it has  fully deve loped a  reasonable  approach to mee ting UNS Electric's  power

supply needs tha t provides  tangible  financia l and opera ting benefits  to the  Company and its

customers.

111. RESPONSE TO RUCO WITNESS MARYLEE DIAZ CORTEZ'S SURREBUTTAL

TESTIMONY

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

Q- Have you read the Surrebuttal Testimony of RUCO witness Marylee Diaz Cortez

regarding BMGS?

23

24

Ye s .

25

26

27 A

Q- Has RUCO's position on the Company's proposed ratemaking treatment of BMGS

changed?

No. S imila r to he r Dire ct Te s timony, Ms . Dia z Corte z s ta te s  in he r S urre butta l Te s timony

A.

A.

3



llllll-II II

on pa ge  6 a t line s  18 through 19 tha t "The  Compa ny's  proposa l for BMGS  is  pre ma ture

and viola te s  a ll ra temaking principle s ."

4 Q- Does the Company share RUCO's opinion that UNS Electric's proposed rate

treatment of BMGS violates all ratemaking principles?

No . I a ddre s s  e a ch of RUCO's  conce rns  a bout ra te ma king principle s  in my re butta l

te s timony. UNS  Ele ctric re cognize s  tha t its  propose d ra te ma king tre a tme nt for BMGS  is

not typica l, howe ve r, the  Compa ny be lie ve s  it is  in the  public inte re s t for the  Commiss ion

to adopt the  Company's  proposa l to acquire  BMGS, so tha t cus tomers  can begin rea lizing

the  financia l and ope ra ting bene fits  of BMGS beginning June  1, 2008. The  Company ha s

provide d s ubs ta ntia l te chnica l a nd fina ncia l informa tion jus tifying this  tre a tme nt in this

case. Unfortuna te ly, RUCO fa ils  to re cognize  the  Compa ny's  circums ta nce s  a nd the

supporting informa tion.

15 IV. C O NC LUS IO N.

17 Q. Do you have any concluding thoughts?

Ye s . UNS  Ele ctric is  a pproa ching a  critica l juncture . On Ma y 31, 2008, the  Compa ny's

full re quire me nts  e ne rgy supply a gre e me nt with P WCC e xpire s . On June  1, 2008, UNS

Ele ctric will ne e d to ha ve  a  portfolio of s upply-s ide  re s ource s  in pla ce  to s e rve  its  e ntire

s e rvice  te rritory of ove r 95,000 cus tome rs . BMGS  re pre s e nts  a n opportunity for UNS

Electric to add owned genera tion to its  re source  portfolio and provide  some  long-te rm price

s ta bility to  its  cus tome rs . The  Compa ny ha s  provide d a mple  e vide nce  s howing the

fina ncia l a nd ope ra ting be ne fits  of owning BMGS in the  course  of the se  proce e dings  a nd

UNS Electric be lieves  its  proposed ra te -making trea tment ofBMGS is  in the  public inte re s t

because  it is  in the  long-tenn benefit to both the  Company and its  customers .

4



1

2

3

5

6

7

The  Compa ny ha s  a gre e d to  put the  following s a fe gua rds  in  pla ce : (i) the  ma ximum

a mount of cons truction cos ts  tha t will be  re fle cte d in the  ra te  re cla s s ifica tion will be  no

gre a te r tha n $60 million. The  Compa ny will not s e e k re cove ry of cons truction cos ts  ove r

$60 million until its  ne xt ra te  ca s e , (ii) if BMGS  is  comple te d a t a  cos t le s s  tha n $60

million, the  Compa ny will re duce  the  s ize  of the  ra te  re cla ss ifica tion in proportion with the

fina l cos t, a nd (iii) UNS  Ele ctric will file  a  proje ct comple tion re port with the  Commiss ion

upon comple tion of the  project and prior to making the  ra te  reclass ifica tion.

8

9

1 0

11

1 2

1 3

1 4

UNS  Ele ctric is  fully a wa re  tha t the  prude nce  of the  cons truction cos ts  of BMGS  ca n be

addressed in the  Company's  next ra te  case . However, we  be lieve  the  information provided

in our dire ct filing in De ce mbe r 2006 ha s  give n a nd s till give s  the  Commis s ion a mple

opportunity to re vie w a ll a s pe cts  of BMGS . While  not typica l ra te ma king tre a tme nt, the

Compa ny be lie ve s  tha t the  be ne fits  of a  pos t-te s t-ye a r a djus tme nt for BMGS  a re  in the

public inte re s t.

1 5

1 6 Q- Does this conclude your Rejoinder Testimony?

1 7 Ye s .

1 8

1 9

20

2 1

22

23

24

25

26

27

A.

5
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1

2

I. INTRODUCTION.

3 Q- Please state your name and address.

4 My na me  is  Ka re n  G. Kis s inge r. My bus ine s s  a ddre s s  is  4350 Ea s t Irvington Roa d,

Tucson, Arizona  85714.5

6

7 Q- Are you the same Karen G. Kissinger who filed Rebuttal Testimony in this

proceeding?8

9 A. Yes, I am.

1 0

1 1 Q- What is the purpose of your Rejoinder Testimony in this proceeding?

1 2

1 3

The  purpose  of my Re joinde r Tes timony is  to address  the  Surrebutta l Tes timonies  filed by

RUCO witnesses  Rodney L. Moore  and Marylee  Diaz Cortez, submitted in re sponse  to my

previous  Rebutta l Tes timony.1 4

1 5

1 6 Q-

A.

What is  your genera l as s es s ment of the ir Surrebutta l Tes timony?

1 7 After reading their surrebuttal it is clear to me that they have either ignored or failed to

understand the infonnation that I conveyed in my Rebuttal Testimony.1 8

1 9

20 Q. P le a s e  de s c ribe  the  po rtions  o f Mr. Moore 's  S u rre bu tta l Te s timony with  wh ic h  you

21

22 A.

23

24

25

26

disagree.

Beginning on line 15 of page 4, Mr. Moore continues to support an adjustment increasing

the end-of-test year balance of Accumulated Depreciation deducted from rate base, based

on incorrect calculations. Moreover, beginning at line 17 on page 5, Mr. Moore addresses

an accounting adjustment identified in the Notes to Financial Statements for the year 2005 .

This was filed as part of an exhibit with my Direct Testimony. Mr. Moore attempts to

establish an incorrect distinction between the $2 million correction posted to Accumulated27

A.

A.



1

2

De pre cia tion in 2005 - a s  I cove re d in my Re butta l Te s timony - with the  $0.5 a djus tme nt

to deprecia tion expense  described in the  aforementioned Notes to Financia l Sta tements.

3

4 a s  s ta te d in his  Dire ct a nd

5

Mr. Moore 's  pos ition re ga rding Accumula te d De pre cia tion .-

should be  re jected. The re  is  no ba s is  upon which to accept theS urrebutta l Tes timonie s

6

7

8

9

propose d a djus tme nt. The  fa ct re ma ins  tha t his  ca lcula tions  we re  not ma de  in the  s a me

ma nne r by which the  Compa ny compute s  a nd a ccounts  for de pre cia tion e xpe ns e , a s

re quire d by the  FERC Uniform S ys te m of Accounts. His  ca lcula tions  a ls o fa il to re fle ct

the  $2 million correcting adjus tment recorded to Accumula ted Deprecia tion in 2005.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Furthe r, Mr. Moore 's  comment on page  5 of his  Surrebutta l Tes timony rega rding the  2005

de pre cia tion corre ction a djus tme nt is  mispla ce d. The  $2 million a djus tme nt re fe rre d to in

my Re butta l Te s timony wa s  the  a djus tme nt ma de  to Accumula te d De pre cia tion, the  $0.5

million footnote  dis clos ure  re fe rre d to by Mr. Moore  wa s  the  re porte d e ffe ct on 2005

De pre cia tion Expe nse. Mr.  Mo o re  fa ile d  to  ma ke  th is  imp o rta n t d is tin c tio n  in  h is

tes timonies . The  diffe re nce  be twe e n thos e  two a mounts  re fle cts  the  portion of the  $2

million a ccounting a djus tme nt tha t the  Compa ny a pplie d to cons truction work orde rs  in

a ccorda nce  with its  Tra nsporta tion Cle a ring a ccounting proce dure . Mr. Moore  ide ntifie d

a nd  a ppa re n tly a gre e d  to  th is  - a s  ind ica te d  be g inn ing  a t line  19  on  pa ge  ll o f h is

Surrebutta l Tes timony.

21

22 Q. Please describe the portions of Ms. Diaz Cortez's Surrebuttal Testimony with which

23 you disagree.

24 A.

25

26

I dis a gre e  with he r pos ition conce rning Accumula te d De fe rre d Income  Ta xe s  re fle cte d in

ra te  ba s e  a nd with the  is s ue  of computing income  ta x e xpe ns e . S he  fa ils  to unde rs ta nd my

Rebutta l Tes timony on thes e  two is s ues  and s imply does  not reconcile  he r pos ition with

27
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1

2

Commis s ion De cis ion No. 55774 or the  controlling FERC Uniform S ys te m of Accounts

("US OA").

3

4

5

Q .

A.

Pleas e  expla in the  Accumula ted Deferred Income Taxes  is s ue .

6

In he r Dire ct Te s timony, Ms . Dia z Corte z propose d to e xclude  the  Accumula te d De fe rre d

Income  Ta xe s  a s s ocia te d with Contributions  in Aid of Cons truction ("CIAC") be ca us e  of

he r pe rce ive d fa ilure  of the  Compa ny to re move  CIAC from ra te  ba s e . In a tte mpting to

illus tra te  he r point she  noted in he r direct te s timony tha t she  can see  no evidence  tha t the

Company has re flected an Account No. 271 in de termining its  ra te  base .

7

8

9

10

11

12

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

In my Re butta l Te s timony, I e xpla ine d tha t Account No. 271, CIAC, doe s  not e xis t in the

FERC US OA, a nd tha t he r re fe re nce  to Account 271 ca me  from the  NARUC Unifo rm

S ys te m of Accounts us e d  by wa te r a nd wa s te wa te r u tilitie s  s ubje ct to  Commis s ion

juris diction. I pre s e nte d the  re le va nt CIAC a ccounting re quire me nts  from the  FERC

US OA in my Re butta l Te s timony a nd s howe d tha t we  a re  re quire d to dire ctly cre dit the

re la te d  p la n t or cons truction  work in  progre s s  a ccounts  upon re ce ip t of CIAC. The

Company has done  just tha t, thus, there  is  no separa te  account to deduct from ra te  base  as

be lie ve d by Ms . Dia z Corte z. Fina lly, my Re butta l Te s timony include d a  dis cus s ion

rega rding Decis ion No. 55774 and the  re la ted S ta ff Report directing se lf-pay companies  to

include  the  deferred tax asse t associa ted with CIAC to ra te  base . Both items are  a ttached to

my Rebutta l Tes timony as  exhibits .

2 2

2 3

2 4

Unfortuna te ly, Ms . Dia z Corte z confus e s  the  is s ue  by dis cus s ing the  e xis te nce  of a n

Acco u n t 2 7 1  in  th e  NARUC US OA fo r E le c tric  co mp a n ie s . S he  offe rs  no  o the r

jus tifica tion for he r propos e d e xclus ion. But a s  I de s cribe d a bove  a nd s howe d in my

Rebutta l Testimony, Decis ion No. 55774 and the  S ta ff Report govern this  issue .

2 5

2 6

2 7

2



1 Q- Should the Commission accept the proposed ADIT-CIAC exclusion from rate base?

2

3

4

5

6

Absolute ly not. To do so would be  to double  count the  CIAC a lre a dy e xclude d from ra te

ba se , a nd is  contra ry to pa s t Commiss ion dire ctive s . Ms . Dia z Corte z's  discuss ion a bout

the  e xis te nce  of a n Account 271 in the  NARUC USOA for Ele ctric Utilitie s  is  not re le va nt.

As  s ta te d in my Re butta l Te s timony, A.A.C. R14-2~212.G re quire s  e le ctric utilitie s  unde r

the  Commis s ion's  juris diction to follow the  FERC US OA. The re  is  no re quire me nt for

e le ctric utilitie s  to us e  the  NARUC US OA, a nd to do s o would be  viola ting Commis s ion7

8 rules . Therefore , Ms. Diaz Cortez proposa l should be  re j ected.

9

1 0 Q-

1 1

Please explain your disagreement with Ms. Diaz Cortez's Surrebuttal Testimony

concerning the computation of income tax expense.

1 2 Initia lly, the  is s ue  of computing income  ta x e xpe ns e  wa s  a ddre s s e d by Mr. Moore . Ms .

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

Diaz Cortez addresses  this  is sue  in he r Surrebutta l Tes timony. In my Rebutta l Tes timony I

note d tha t the  me thod use d by RUCO wa s  incorre ct in tha t it only a ddre s se d the curre nt

compone nt of income  ta x e xpe ns e  a nd fa ile d to cons ide r the de fe rred ta x compone nt.

Income tax expense  is  correctly comprised of both components . RUCO's  method makes  no

distinction be tween current and deferred income taxes.1 7

1 8

1 9

20

2 1

22

23

24

25

My Re butta l Te s timony highlights  tha t RUCO's  ta x ca lcula tions  fa il to cons ide r tha t some

of the ir a djus tme nt a mount a re  not fully de ductible  in computing income  ta xe s , a nd tha t

the re  is  no  wa y to  a s s ure  tha t the  de fe rre d  compone nt of income  ta x e xpe ns e  is  in

accordance  with the  degree  of income tax nonnaliza tion the  Commission authorized and as

the  Inte rna l Re ve nue  Code  re quire s . Fina lly, the  me thod of computing ta xe s  by RUCO

does  not pe rmit a  correct re flection of de fe rred (i.e . non-cash) and current income  taxes  in

the  lead/lag s tudy of cash working capita l.

26

27

A.

A.

3



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Beginning a t line  21 on page  17 of he r Surrebutta l Tes timony, Ms. Diaz Cortez a sse rts  tha t

the re  is  nothing wrong with the  RUCO computa tiona l me thod. S he  furthe r s ta te s  -. in he r

Surre butta l Te s timony a t line  2 on pa ge  18 -- tha t "it is  s ta nda rd pra ctice  in ra te ma king to

a ccount for income  ta x on a  curre nt ba s is " a nd continue s  with "the  a ccounting for ta x

timing diffe re nce s  is  a ppropria te ly re fle cte d for ra te ma king purpos e s  in the  ra te  ba s e ".

That does not accura te ly describe  the  ra temaking process. Revenue requirements are  based

on an income tax expense  component tha t includes both current and deferred e lements , and

8 some  of the  mos t conte ntious  ra te ma king is sue s  involve d the  de te rmina tion of a  prope r

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

de fe rred component of income  tax expense . Its  exis tence  and prope r computa tion cannot

be  ignore d if the  goa l is  to truly e s ta blish a  prope r me a sure  of re ve nue  re quire me nts  a nd

assure  tha t the  income  tax norma liza tion rule s  of the  Inte rna l Revenue  Code  a re  prope rly

complie d with.

1 3

1 4 Q To wha t s pec ific  income tax normaliza tion rules  a re  you re fe rring?

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

20

21

22

The requirements  of the  Inte rna l Revenue  Code  require  consis tency in the  manner by which

de pre cia tion e xpe nse , income  ta x e xpe nse , a nd a ccumula te d de fe rre d income  ta xe s  a re

compute d in ra te ma king. S pe cifica lly, S e ction 168(i)(9)03) of the  Inte rna l Re ve nue  Code

s ta te s  tha t the  norma liza tion requirements  a re  viola ted if a  procedure  or adjus tment tha t is

incons is te nt with the  norma liza tion re quire me nts  is  us e d for ra te ma king purpos e s . To

a djus t a ccumula te d book de pre cia tion without corre s pondingly a djus ting a ccumula te d

de fe rre d income  ta xe s  a nd to a djus t book de pre cia tion e xpe nse  without corre spondingly

recomputing de fe rred income tax expense , a s have been done  by RUCO, a re  types  of the

inconsistencies addressed in the  aforementioned Internal Revenue Code cita tion.23

24

25 Q- Should the Commission accept the income tax computational methodology advanced

26 by Mr. Moore  a nd  Ms . Dia z Corte z?

27 No. RUCO's  a pproa ch s hould be  re je cte d. RUCO's  a tte mpte d jus tifica tion for the ir

A.

A.
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1

2

3

4

computa tiona l me thod fa ils  to cons ide r a ny of the  a rgume nts  pre s e nte d in my Re butta l

Te s timony a nd doe s  not a ccura te ly de pict the  ma nne r in  which  income  ta xe s  ha ve

traditiona lly been computed for ra temaking purposes .

5 Q. Does this conclude your Rejoinder Testimony?

6 Yes it does .
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27
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1. INTRODUCTION.

Please state your name and address.

My na me  is  Da lla s  J . Duke s  a nd my bus ine s s  a ddre s s  is  One  S outh Church Ave nue ,

Tucson, Arizona , 85702.

Are you the same Dallas Dukes who filed Rebuttal Testimony in this proceeding?

Ye s , I a m.

Mr. Dukes, have you reviewed the Surrebuttal Testimony filed by the Commission

Staff and Interveners in this case?

Ye s , I ha ve . P le a s e  s e e  Exhibit DJ D-6 for a  s umma ry of pro forma  a djus tme nts  a nd

revis ions  to pro forma adjustments  as  proposed by Sta ff, RUCO and the  Company.

11. R E S P O NS E  T O  S T AF F  W IT NE S S  R AL P H c .  S MIT H' S  S UR R E B UT T AL

TE S TIMG NY.

A. Fleet Fuel Expense (Staff Adjustment C-4).

1

2
Q -

3
A .

4

5

6
Q -

7
A .

8

9
Q -

1 0

1 1
A .

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9
Q -

2 0

2 1
A .

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

2 6

2 7

Mr. Dukes do you have any comments regarding Mr. Smith's revised adjustment for

fleet fuel expense?

Ye s . Mr. S mith ha s  re lie d upon my re butta l workpa pe r UNS E (0783)l0597 to de rive  his

la te s t re vis e d fle e t fue l e xpe ns e  le ve l. Howe ve r, the  $585,210 he  re fe re nce s  is  not the

comple te  fle e t fue l e xpe ns e  for the  twe lve  months  e nding  J une  2007  a s  Mr. S mith

inte rpre te d the  workpa pe r. Tha t a mount re pre s e nte d the  fue l tha t wa s  invoice d to the

Compa ny through four diffe re nt fle e t ca rd provide rs  tha t include s  ga llons  purcha s e d

information directly on the  invoice . Those  amounts  were  used to de rive  an average  cost

pe r ga llon. Howe ve r there we re  a dd itiona l fle e t fue l pu rcha s e s  du ring  tha t

l



1

2

3

4

5

twe lve  month pe riod. The  a dditiona l purcha se s  we re  ma de  via  the  Compa ny's  P ro-Ca rd

and were  not used in tha t eva lua tion because  it takes  additiona l time  and research to obta in

the  amount of ga llons  purchased information. The  actua l Flee t Fue l expense  for the  twe lve

months  e nde d J une  2007 wa s  $599,075 a s  s hown on Exhibit DID-7. The  a mount the

Company proposed in its  Rebutta l filing and accepted by RUCO of $605,498 rema ins  the

Compa ny's  re comme nde d le ve l of fle e t fue l e xpe nse . Tha t re pre se nts  $2.82 pe r ga llon

the  agreed-upon weighted average cost -- times 214,716 gallons.

B. Normalized Injuries and Damages Expense (Staff Adjustment C-6).

Q. Has Mr. Smith addressed his adjustment for Injuries and Damages expense in his

Surrebuttal testimony?

6

7

8

9
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20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

Ye s . Mr. S mith continue s  to s upport a  s imple  thre e -ye a r a ve ra ge  of the  e ntire  FERC

Account 925, with the  inte ntion of providing a  pro forma  e xpe ns e  le ve l of $403,340. As

s ta te d in my Re butta l Te s timony, I dis a gre e  with this  pos ition be ca us e  it s ignifica ntly

unde rs ta te s  the  norma l and recuning leve ls  of expense . The  yea rs  2004 through 2005 a re

not re flective  of current expense  leve ls  for gene ra l liability insurance  expense  and Office rs

a nd Dire ctors  lia bility insura nce  e xpe nse . I showe d in my Re butta l Te s timony how the se

e xpe nse s  incre a se d be ca use  of incre a se s  in insura nce  pre miums , a nd tha t Office rs  a nd

Dire ctors  lia bility insura nce  e xpe nse  be coming fully a lloca te d to UNS  Ele ctric. The se  a re

the  known a nd a ctua l cos ts  for the se  e xpe nse s , which a re  re a sona ble  e xpe nse s  for the

Compa ny to incur. Re ga rding worke rs  compe nsa tion e xpe nse , I a gre e d tha t a  re duction

was  appropria te  to re flect norma l and recuning expense . Mr. Smith's  proposa l for a  three -

ye a r a ve ra ge  of the  e ntire  FERC Account is  not wa rra nte d a nd will not a ccura te ly re fle ct

the se  cos ts  going forward. As  I de scribe  be low, tha t reduction should have  been $98,161.

I am making tha t change  in my Re joinde r Tes timony.

A.

2
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7

8

Mr. S mith is  propos ing a  re duction to the  te s t ye a r of $159,063 to re duce  it to the  thre e -

ye a r a ve ra ge . But Mr. S mith's  a pplica tion is  fa ulty for s e ve ra l re a sons . Firs t, be ca use  he

a pplie s  this  a djus tme nt to the  Compa ny's  a djus te d a mounts  to a rrive  a t his  a djus te d te s t-

year opera ting income. Because  he  s ta rts  with the  Company's  adjusted tes t-year expenses ,

he  is  a ctua lly re comme nding a  re duction in te s t-ye a r a ctivity of $222,315 a nd a n e nding

expense  leve l of only $340,088. The  Company's  adjus ted tes t-year leve l a lready included a

reduction of $63,252 to FERC Account 925 to adjus t worke r's  compensa tion expense  to a

ca sh ba s is . Mr. Smith would ne e d to re ve rse  tha t a djus tme nt firs t to a ccura te ly re fle ct his

intent to reduce  te s t-yea r activity.9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

S e cond, in his  S urre butta l Te s timony, Mr. S mith us e s  workpa pe r UNS E(0783)10737 -

a tta che d to my Te s timony a s  Exhibit DJ D-8 - to s upport this  ove ra ll a ve ra ge  le ve l. He

points  out tha t the  e xpe ns e  le ve l for the  twe lve  months  e nde d J une  2007 for FERC

Account 925 is  $398,032 and is  the re fore  supportive  of his  sugges ted pro forma  expense .

Howe ve r, he  ove rlooks  the  fa ct tha t the  twe lve  months  e nding J une  2007 ha s  ne ga tive

worke r's  compe nsa tion e xpe nse  re corde d in the  a mount of ($46,740). Obvious ly, it is  not

rea lis tic to expect worker's  compensa tion expense  to be  nega tive  on a  normal and recuning

ba s is . This  ne ga tive  a mount is  a s  a  re s ult of the  ove r-a ccrua l of worke r's  compe ns a tion

e xpe ns e  with in  the  te s t ye a r. I a g re e d  with  Mr. S mith  on  th is  po in t in  my Re bu tta l

Te s timony. Be ca u s e  th e  a cc ru a ls  we re  to o  la rg e  in  th e  te s t ye a r,  th e  wo rke r's

compensa tion liability account was  ove rs ta ted and thus  was  adjus ted in the  following yea r

by reducing worker's  compensa tion expense .
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1 8

1 9
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27

Fina lly, P a ge  2 of Exhibit DJD-8 a tta che d to my Re joinde r Te s timony provide s  a dditiona l

a na lys is  a nd s upport for my re vis e d pro forma  a djus tme nt for Injurie s  a nd Da ma ge s

e xpe nse . As  you ca n se e , if you re pla ce  the  worke r's  compe nsa tion e xpe nse  le ve l in the

twe lve  months ended June  2007 with a  normalized leve l of expense  of $75,295 - ba se d on

3



1

2

3

4

5

a three-year average of the expense for 2004 through 2006 -- you come up with an expense

level of $520,066 for that period as opposed to $398,032. If you do the same for the test

year, you come up with an expense level of $464,242 as opposed to $562,403. In simple

terns, the mid-year test year had an abnormally high level of expense for worker's

compensation expense because of the timing of accruals. The accrued liability was

corrected in the following twelve months and then there was an abnormally low level of

worker's compensation expense for that twelve-month period.

Q- Have you revised your adjustment as presented in your Rebuttal Testimony?

Yes. In my Rebutta l Testimony I inadvertently compared the  three-year average  of expense

unadjusted compared to an adjusted tes t year leve l. I am correcting tha t here . So, ins tead of

$79,978, the  a djus tme nt to  norma lize  worke r's  compe ns a tion  e xpe ns e  s hould  be  a

reduction of $98,161. Tha t will reduce  the  te s t-yea r leve l of injurie s  and damages  expense

of $562,403 (a s  shown on Exhibit DJD-8, pa ge  1 of 2) to $464,242 (a s  shown on Exhibit

DJ D-8, pa ge  2 of 2). Tha t a mount is  s till $55,824 le s s  tha n the  norma lize d le ve l for the

twe lve  months  following the  te s t ye a r (i.e . through June  30, 2007), and it is  $36,198 le ss

tha n the  twe lve  months  e nde d De ce mbe r 2006. It is  re fle ctive , howe ve r, of norma l a nd

re curring le ve ls .

6

7

8

9

10

1 1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

2 0 c. Incentive Compensation (Staff Adjustment C-7 through C-9).

21

22

23

24

1 . Pe rformance  Enhancement P lan  ("PEP").

Q- Mr. Dukes would you briefly summarize Mr. Smith's position regarding the

Company's PEP expenses.25

26

27

A. Ye s . Es s e n tia lly,  Mr. S mith  con tinue s  to  a rgue  tha t ince n tive  p rogra ms , like  the

Company's  PEP program, bene fit cus tomers  and sha reholde rs  and the re fore  the  expense

A.

4



1 should be  equally shared.

Q- Do you agree with Mr. Smith's position?

2

3

4

5

6

A. No, I do not. I be lie ve  he  continue s  to ignore  the  re a lity tha t to a ttra ct a nd re ta in s kille d

employees "tota l cas h compens a tion" ha s  to be  s e t a t a  compe titive  le ve l. The  P EP  is

pa rt of tota l ca sh compensa tion. The  Company currently ta rge ts  the  median of the  marke t

for tota l cash compensa tion and has  provided evidence  in support of the  Company's  review

of such. If the  Company is  denied recove ry of the se  cos ts , it is  rea sonable  to a ssume  tha t

the re  will be  pre s s ure  to e limina te  the  ince ntive  progra m a nd provide  ma rke t le ve l tota l

ca s h compe ns a tion comple te ly through ba s e  wa ge s , with no portion be ing va ria ble  in

iilture  proce e dings . It s ta nds  to  re a s on tha t the  Compa ny will a tte mpt to  modify its

compe ns a tion progra ms  to optimize  the  opportunity to re cove r its  a ctua l cos t to provide

market-based wages.

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

2 2

Howe ve r, be lie ve  tha t the  progra m curre ntly be ing provide d by the  Compa ny provide s  a

grea te r bene fit to the  cus tomer ra the r than jus t paying marke t-based wages  in the  form of

base  sa la ry, with no portion of compensa tion be ing a t-risk.. As  Shave  previous ly s ta ted in

my Rebutta l Tes timony, by putting a  portion of employee  pay a t-risk through a  va riable  pay

progra m, the  Compa ny ca n use  tha t a s  a  tool to a ffe ct the  be ha vior of e ligible  e mploye e s

and to provide  and promote  additiona l benefits  to customers  without increas ing cost.

It provide s  a  tool to he lp the  Compa ny re ta in the  more  s kille d a nd more  productive
employees, which benefits  the  customers.

23

24

It he lps to reduce  the  compounding cost of base  wage increases, which a lso reduces the
cost of benefits  tha t a re  directly linked to base  wages, which benefits  customers .

25

26

27

It is based on targeted goals and objectives designed to benefit customers and
shareholders.

5



1

2

This  is  s imply a  be tte r wa y to s tructure  compe nsa tion a nd provide s  a dditiona l be ne fits  to

the  cus tome rs . I provide d e xa mple s  of how othe r s ta te  commiss ions  re cognize  ince ntive

compe nsa tion a s  a  va lua ble  tool tha t provide s  be ne fits  to cus tome rs . Those  jurisdictions

did not s imply pena lize  the  Company 50% of expenses  for incentive  compensa tion if those

progra ms  provide d be ne fit to the  cus tome r by ke e ping a nd re ta ining qua lifie d e mploye e s

a nd  motiva ting  cus tome rs  to  p rovide  re lia b le  s e rvice  a t re a s ona b le  ra te s . This

compe ns a tion dire ctly a nd indire ctly be ne fits  the  cus tome rs  a nd it s hould be  re cove re d

through ra te s  a s  a  re s ult. The re  is  no e vide nce  tha t the  P EP  la youts  we re  e xorbita nt or

unre a s ona ble . The re fore , the  Compa ny s hould be  a llowe d to re cove r the  prude nt a nd

reasonable  cost leve ls  associa ted with the  program.

Q- On page 28 of Mr. Smith's Surrebuttal Testimony he questions your statement that

the compensation of employees is reasonable, do you have any comments?

A.

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Ye s . Mr. Smith re fe rs  to my Confide ntia l Exhibit DJD-3 a nd que s tions  whe the r it provide s

an eva lua tion of the  compensa tion for a ll employees  who a re  e ligible  to rece ive  PEP . The

document re fe rred to by Mr. Smith, provide s  an eva lua tion of a ll UNS Electnlc employees

e ligible  to re ce ive  PEP , with the  e xce ption of the  Vice  P re s ide nts  a nd Ge ne ra l Ma na ge rs .

The  eva lua tion of those  two pos itions  was  provided to S ta ff through the  discovery process .

S ta ff wa s  a lso provide d through the  discove ry proce ss  - a nd Mr. S mith ha s  a tta che d it to

his  te s timony a s  Confide ntia l Atta clnne nt RCS -10 the  mos t re ce n t e va lua tion  of

Exe cutive  compe nsa tion. The re fore , S ta ff wa s  provide d e va lua tions  for a ll pos itions

e ligible  for PEP tha t were  cha rged to UNS Electric.

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

Q- On page 29 of Mr. Smith's Surrebuttal Testimony he questions your statement that

the Company's compensation philosophy is to pay at approximately 50% of market.

Do you have any comments?

Ye s . Mr. S lnith's  que s tioning is  dire cte d a t Exe cutive  compe nsa tion a nd is  ba se d on hisA.

6



1

2

3

4

5

re vie w of the  "UniS ource  Ene rgy Exe cutive  Compe ns a tion - Compe titive  Compe ns a tion

Re vie w", which he  ha s  a tta che d to his  Te s timony a s  Confide ntia l Atta chme nt RCS -10.

But Mr. S mith ignore s  the  fa ct tha t none  of this  informa tion cha lle nge s  the  P EP  a s  a n

unre a sona ble  or e xorbita nt e xpe nse . In a ddition, in the  mos t re ce nt UNS  Ga s  ca se  S ta ff

reques ted a  comparison of Office rs  actua l compensa tion during the  te s t yea r a s  compared

to the  me dia n le ve l discusse d within his  Atta chme nt RCS-10. Tha t re que s t wa s  not ma de

in the  UNS  Ele ctric ca s e , howe ve r I ha ve  a tta che d Confide ntia l Exhibit DJ D-9 to  my

te s timony tha t provide s  tha t informa tion. As  you can clea rly see , the  actua l compensa tion

of the  Office rs  during the  te s t yea r was  actua lly s ignificantly be low the  median of the  pee r

group. None  of Mr. S mith's  comme nta ry cha lle nge s  the  fa ct tha t the  pe rsonne l re ce iving

this  compensa tion provide  cus tomer bene fits  through re liable  se rvice  a t rea sonable  ra te s .

And none  of wha t Mr. S mith cite s  jus tifie s  S ta ff"s  propos a l to only a llow 50% of P EP

recovery through ra tes .

6

7

8

9

10

1 1

12

13

14

Q- Do you have any additional comments about Staff's proposed adjustment for PEP?

Ye s . S ta ffs  propos e d a djus tme nt for P EP  is  a  re duction of 50% of the  Compa ny's

propos e d P EP  pro forma  a djus tme nt. I be lie ve  it wa s  the  inte ntion of S ta ff to propos e  a

50% re duc tion of P EP expens e (te s t ye a amount plus the Company's adjustment), not to

15

16

17

18

19

2 0
just re vis e the Comp any' s p ro forma adjustment. This means tha t the Staff' s adjustment

would ne e d to be  modifie d to re duce  the  Compa ny's  e xpe ns e s  a n a dditiona l $33,771 if
2 1

22 accepted.

23

24

25

26

27

A.

7



1 2. offic e r's  Long  Te rm Inc e n tive  P rog ra m.

2

3 Q- Did  Mr. S mith  a d d re s s  th e  Offic e r 's  Lo n g  Te rm In c e n tive  P ro g ra m ("LTIP ") in  h is

4 Surrebuttal Testimony?

5 A. Ye s . He  a ga in discusse s  the  "UniS ource  Ene rgy Exe cutive  Compe nsa tion .- Compe titive

wh ich  h e  h a s  a tta ch e d  to  h is  Te s timo n y a s  Co n fid e n tia l6 Compensation Review",

Attachment RCS-10.7

8

9 Q- Do you have any additional comments about the LTIP?

10

1 1

12

Ye s . In Mr. Smith's  Surre butta l Te s timony on pa ge  30 a t line s  17 through 23, he  include s

a n  e xce rpt Hom the  mos t re ce nt ra te  de cis ion  for Arizona  P ublic  S e rvice  Compa ny

("APS") De cis ion No. 69663 (June  28, 2007):

13

14

15

16

As  te s tifie d to by S ta ff witne s s  Dittme r a nd s e t out in S ta ffs  initia l brie f,
"e nha nce d e a rn ings  le ve ls  ca n  s ome time s  be  a chie ve d  by s hort-te rm
management decis ions  tha t may or many not encourage  the  deve lopment of
sa fe  a nd re lia ble  utility s e rvice  a t the  lowe s t long te rn cos t....For e xa mple ,
some  ma intenance  can be  tempora rily de fe rred, the reby boos ting ea rnings .
. . .Bu t d e la yin g  ma in te n a n ce  ca n  le a d  to  s a fe ty co n ce rn s  o r h ig h e r
subsequent 'ca tch-up' cos ts ."

17
See Decision No. 69663 at 36.

18

19

20

21

22

23

Mr. S mith a dde d this  la ngua ge  a long with othe r e xce rpts  from the  orde r in support of his

pos ition to exclude  s tock-based compensa tion (S ta ff Adjus tme nt C-9). But the  findings  of

the  Commis s ion in tha t orde r s upport the  Compa ny's  pos ition. The  LTIP  is  a n importa nt

part of a  ba lanced compensa tion package  and is  included for the  reasons  including the  one

S ta ff witne s s  Dittme r pointe d out in the  AP S  ca s e . The  progra m is  de s igne d to put a

24

25

26

27

p o rtio n  o f e a ch  E xe cu tive 's  co mp e n s a tio n  a t-ris k b a s e d  o n  lo n g -te rm o p e ra tin g

pe rforma nce . This  provide s  ba la nce  to the  short-te rm goa ls  of the  PEP  pla n a nd provide s

a n ince ntive  to not s a crifice  the  future  for the  pre se nt. It inve s ts  Office rs  in the  long-te rm

succe ss  of the  Compa ny. This  is  pa rticula rly the  ca se  for the  highe r-ra nking Office rs  who

A.

8



1 have a much greater proportion of their compensation at-risk.

2
3. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan ("SERP").

Q- Did  Mr. S m ith  a d d re s s  th e

Surrebuttal Tes timony?

Sup p le me nta l Exe c utive  Re tire me nt P la n  in  h is

Yes. Mr. Smith again cites the most recent rate decision for Southwest Gas Corporation

("SWG") - Decision No. 68478 (February 23, 2006) - where the Commission disallowed

the recovery of SERP expense.

Q. Are there any additional comments you would like to make about the Supplemental

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

2 0

2 1

A.

22

23

24

25

26

27

Executive Retirement Plan?

Yes. would like to reiterate why a program like SERP is necessary. In a recent decision

involving the Nevada Power Company ("NPC"), which I cite in my Rebuttal testimony, the

Nevada Public Utility Commission found that SERP expenses could be fully recovered.

Factors considered by the Nevada Commission included that the plan does not erMance

bene fits , but only re s tore s  bene fits  to the  equiva lent leve l of the  othe r employees .

Additionally, information presented in the Decision was the evidence in the record of a

database of 2004 executive benefit practices, The evidence was of a Towers Perrin data

base  reporting tha t 96% of energy/utility companies  offered SERP. And tha t a  s imilar

review of a  2006 executive database, Towers Pen*in reported 93% of general industry

companies offer SERP. I respectfiully disagree with the recent findings of the Commission

to deny recovery of these normal and recurring costs of providing utility. As shown by the

information provided in the NPC decision, it would be a  significant disadvantage to the

Company in its efforts to retain and to attract Executives if it did not offer SERP to insure

that those individuals' benefits are. on par with their own coworkers and equivalent to what

they can obtain elsewhere. These are not abnormal or special benefits that should be paid

by the Shareholders, but are a normal and recurring cost of providing utility service.

A.

9



1

2

4. Stock Based Compensation.

3

4

Q- Did  Mr. S m ith  a d d re s s  th e  S to c k  Ba s e d  Co m p e n s a t io n  P la n  in  h is  S u rre b u tta l

Tes timony?

Ye s . Mr. S mith  a ga in  re fe rs  to  the  "UniS ource  Ene rgy Exe cutive  Compe ns a tion  -

Compe titive  Compe ns a tion  Re vie w", wh ich  he  ha s  a tta che d  to  h is  Te s timony a s

Confide ntia l Atta chme nt RCS -10. Also, a s  I dis cus se d e a rlie r, Mr. S mith cite s  the  re ce nt

APS  ra te  ca se  de cis ion in which APS  wa s  de nie d re cove ry of s tock ba se d compe nsa tion

a nd the  Commis s ion re fe re nce d a  conce rn tha t the  progra m could promote  s hort-te nn

de cis ion ma king. Aga in, a s  I me ntione d e a rlie r, this  is  s upportive  of the  Compa ny's

pos ition. S tock-ba s e d compe ns a tion or e quity compe ns a tion is  prima rily a wa rde d in the

form of s tock options , the  ultima te  va lue  of which is  ba s e d on the  future  s tre ngth a nd

pe rforma nce  of the  Compa ny a nd a re  prima rily a wa rde d a s  a  re s ult of e a ch individua l

Executive 's  LTIP  goa ls , and as  such promote  long-te rm employee  re tention, ownership and

long-te rm opera ting pe rformance .

D. Rate Case Expense (Staff Adjustment C-11).

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

2 0

2 1

Q- Do you have any comments about Staff's recommended level of rate case expense to

be rec0vered'7

22

23

24

25

26

27

Ye s . I a m pe rple xe d by S ta ffs  a nd RUCO's  dis re ga rd for the  fa ct tha t UNS  Ele ctric is

be ing provided ra te  case  support se rvices  "a t cost" by a  separa te  regula ted Arizona  utility ---

Tucs on  E le c tric  P owe r Compa ny ("TEP "). Bo th S ta ff a nd  RUCO a re  e s s e n tia lly

promoting s ubs idiza tion of UNS  Ele ctric cus tome rs  by TEP . These  incrementa l cos ts

incurre d by UNS  Ele ctric from TEP  for ra te  ca se  support a re  jus t tha t - incre me nta l - a nd

a re  not include d in te s t ye a r a ctivity a nd/or in a ny othe r pro forma  a djus tme nts . S ta ff a nd

RUCO continue  to use  SWG as  a  proxy for wha t a  normal amount of ra te  case  expense  is ,

A.

A.

10



1

2

3

4

5

but the y ma ke  no a tte mpt to norma lize  or a djus t S WG cos ts  to re fle ct the  fa ct tha t S WG

ra te  case  expense  was  for outs ide  consultants  only. This  ra te  case  expense  did not include

the  ma jor re a l cos t of litiga ting a  ra te  ca s e , which we re  a lloca te d to the  S WG's  Arizona

divis ion and included in base  ra te s  for tha t divis ion. The  clea r evidence  is  tha t SWG could

not litiga te  a  ra te  ca se  for $265,000 if it did not ha ve  its  sha re d se rvice  de pa rtme nts  cos t

built into its  ba se  ra te s .6

E. P a yro ll Ad jus tme n t.

Q- Did the Company propose a change to its originally filed payroll expense adjustment

in it Rebuttal filing?

Ye s . Afte r re vie wing S ta ff s  Dire ct Te s timony a nd a cce pting the ir a djus tme nts  for a

postage ra te  increase  that became effective  in early 2007, and property tax ra te  changes that

a re  e ffective  in 2008, the  Company rea lized tha t it had ove rlooked the  obvious  payroll ra te

incre a s e  tha t be ca me  e ffe ctive  J a nua ry 2007. The s e  ra te s  we re  a pplie d to te s t-ye a r

employee  leve ls  and do not consider employee  leve l increases a fte r the  end of the  test year,

but only the  additiona l wage  increase  to each employee  exis ting a t the  end of the  tes t year.

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Q- Has Staff opposed this new adjustment?

22

23

24

25

26

27

It is  not comple te ly cle a r from Mr. Smith's  Surre butta l Te s timony, but S ta ff did not include

it in the ir cos t of se rvice  (pending rece ipt and ana lys is  of re sponses  to S ta ff Da ta  reques ts

se ts  20 a nd 21. S ta ff s e e ms  to be  ins inua ting through Mr. S mith's  S urre butta l Te s timony

tha t this  is  a n e rror tha t we  did not inform the m of a t a n e a rlie r da te  in re s pons e  to S ta ff

Da ta  re que s t S TF 3.88. But S ta ff a cce pte d the  Compa ny's  re vis e d ba d de bt e xpe ns e

a d jus tme nt tha t wa s  a c tua lly corre cting  a n  e rro r tha t wa s  no t re porte d  p rio r to  the

Compa ny's  Re butta l Filing a nd which S ta ff had the  same  amount of time  to eva lua te . The

payroll adjus tment is  s imply increa s ing norma lized payroll by an additiona l 3% for the  ra te

A.

A.
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increase  e ffective  January 2007. It is  based on known and measurable  wage  ra te  increases

and should be  a llowed.

1

2

3

4

5

6

F . Overtime Adjustment.

Q. Did  th e  Co m p a n y p ro p o s e  a  c h a n g e  to  it s  o r ig in a lly  file d  o ve r t im e  e x p e n s e

a d jus tme n t in  it Re bu tta l Filing?

Ye s . As  I te s tify to in my Re butta l Te s timony, the  Compa ny ha d a cce pte d a  propos e d

me thod for ca lcula ting norma lize d ove rtime  e xpe nse  by Mr. S mith in the  UNS  Ga s  ca se .

This  took pla ce  a fte r the  dire ct ca s e  ha d be e n file d in the  UNS  Ele ctric ca s e . It wa s  my

assumption tha t Mr. Smith would use  the  same  me thodology in his  direct filing in this  ca se

a s  we ll. Mr. S mith did not propose  a ny a djus tme nt to the  ove rtime  e xpe nse  in his  Dire ct

Te s timony a nd  the re fo re  the  Compa ny p ropos e d  the  re vis e d  le ve l in  the  Re bu tta l

Te s timony.

7

8

9
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22

Q- Has Staff opposed this new adjustment?

23

24

25

26

27

Ye s . Mr. S mith a s se rts  tha t his  a na lys is  shows  tha t the  me thod tha t UNS  Ga s  use d in its

dire ct filing produce d too high a n ove rtime  a mount, but the  s a me  me thod in the  UNS

Electric case  produced an amount tha t was  jus t right. However, the  me thod he  proposed in

the  UNS  Ga s  ca s e  produce d a n a mount tha t wa s  jus t right, but whe n a pplie d to UNS

Electric produces  an amount tha t is  too high. While  each case  s tands  on its  own merits , the

methodology used for UNS Gas  and for UNS Electric should be  the  same . In the  UNS Gas

ra te  ca s e , UNS  Ga s  a gre e d with the  me thodology propos e d by Mr. S mith. But for UNS

Ele ctric, Mr. S mith now re comme nds  the  me thodology he  re je cte d in UNS  Ga s , without

a ny re a son dis tinguishing UNS  Ele ctric from UNS  Ga s  -.- othe r tha n it produce s  a  lowe r

a mount. The  bottom line  is  tha t the  me thod Mr. S mith re comme nde d for UNS  Ga s  is

re a s ona ble  for both UNS  Ga s  a nd UNS  Ele ctric; it give s  the  prope r re s ult in the  UNS

A.

A.

1 2



Ele ctric ca se . The  me thodology use d to de te rmine  the  ove rtime  a djus tme nt for the se  two

companies  should be  cons is tent. It appea rs  to be  se lective  ana lys is  to say tha t the  me thod

works  for UNS Gas  but now does  not work for UNS Electric.

1

2

3

4

5

6

11. RESPONSE TO RUCO WITNESS MARYLEE DIAZ CORTEZ'S SURREBUTTAL

TESTIMONY.

A. Bad Debt Expense (RUCO Adjustment No. 6).

7

8

9

10

1 1

12

Q- Mr. Dukes do you have any comments regarding Ms. Diaz Cortez's position on Bad

Debt expense?

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

Yes. Ms. Diaz Cortez and I a re  in agreement tha t the  Company mis takenly used gross  bad

de bt e xpe ns e  a s  oppos e d to ne t ba d de bt e xpe ns e . The  Compa ny corre cte d tha t in its

Re butta l Te s timony a nd the ir re vis e d a djus tme nt wa s  a cce pte d by S ta ff. Howe ve r, Ms .

Dia z Col'te z is  s till in disa gre e me nt on the  Colnpa ny's  use  of a n a ve ra ge  write -off ra te  a s

oppos e d to te s t ye a r le ve l only. Ms . Dia z Corte z a rgue s  tha t a n a ve ra ge  s hould only be

use d whe n "specu8c abnorma l conditions  a re  identu8ed in the  te s t yea r da ta Howe ve r,

s he  ignore s  the  fa ct tha t the  ba d de bt e xpe ns e  incurre d by a  s ma ll compa ny like  UNS

Ele ctric doe s  te nd to fluctua te  s ignifica ntly ye a r ove r ye a r a nd the  te s t ye a r its e lf wa s  not

re fle ctive  of the  his torica l ye a rs  or mos t re ce nt a ctivity. Be low is  a  cha rt of the  a ctua l ba d

debt expense  for the  three  ca lendar years  2004 - 2006, the  tes t year and the  twelve  months

e nding J une  2007. You ca n s e e  from the  cha rt tha t ba d de bt e xpe ns e  ca n fluctua te

s ignifica ntly ove r va rying time  pe riods  a nd ca le nda r ye a r 2005 a ppe a rs  to be  a bnorma lly

low ($l98,703 le s s  tha n the  ne xt ye a r le ve l), which of course  ha s  impa cte d the  te s t ye a r

leve l. You can a lso see  tha t the  pro forma  leve l the  Company is  reques ting, $423,929, is  in

line  with norma l a nd re cuning le ve ls . If a nything, it is  conse rva tive  be ca use  it give s  e qua l

we ight to the  a bnorma lly low ye a r of 2005, which is  not a s  like ly to re cur. You ca n a ls o

A.
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1 s e e  by the  la rge  jump in the  twe lve  months  e nde d J une  2007, tha t it ca n be  ve ry vola tile

a nd is  like ly to be  much highe r in the  ne a r future .

Bad Debt Expense  for UNS Electric

2004

2005

2006

Test Year

June 2006 to June 2007

s 426,405

$ 296,428

$495,131

$ 356,982

s 715,267

B. A&G Capitalization (RUCO Adjustment No. 10).

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

Q- Mr. Dukes do you have any comments regarding Ms. Diaz Cortez's position on A&G

Capitalization?

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Ye s . Ms . Dia z Corte z's  a rgume nt is  puzzling, s he  continue s  to e qua te  this  a djus tme nt with

s ome  type  of double  re cove ry. This  is  a n  ina ccura te  de pic tion . As  I p o in t  o u t  in  m y

Re butta l Te s timony, this  is  known a nd me a s ura ble  cha nge  in  the  ca pita liza tion "ra te " for

s ha re d s e rvice s  de pa rtme nts  tha t impa cts  e xpe ns e s  pros pe ctive ly. This  ra te  cha nge  took

pla ce  a fte r the  te s t ye a r a nd the re fore  the  cos t ca pita lize d from ince ption of the  Compa ny

(Au g u s t 2 0 0 3 ) th ro u g h  th e  e n d  o f th e  te s t ye a r we re  a c c u ra te  a n d  b a s e d  o n  d ie  b e s t

informa tion a t tha t time . It is  norma l for ca pita liza tion ra te s  for s ha re d s e rvice , ope ra tiona l

a nd  cons truc tion  de pa rtme nts  to  cha nge  ove r time . If Ms . Dia z Colte z 's  a rgume nt we re

corre c t the n it would s ta nd to  re a s on tha t ha d the  ca pita liza tion ra te  incre a s e d, Ms . Dia z

Corte z would be  a rguing tha t the  pros pe c tive  a djus tme nt s hould be  a dde d to  ra te  ba s e . I

find it ha rd to ima gine  tha t s he  would a rgue  to a dd dolla rs  not ye t s pe nt to ra te  ba s e , a s  s he

s hould not be  a rguing to re move  dolla rs  a lre a dy prope rly ca pita lize d.25

26

27

A.

14



c. Corporate Cost Allocations (RUCO Adjustment No. 12).1

2

3

4

5

Q. Mr. Dukes do you have any comments regarding Ms. Diaz Cortez's position on

Corporate Cost Allocations?

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

Ye s . Ms . Dia z Corte z a nd othe rs  continue  to ma ke  a  s ubje ctive  de te rmina tion on who

benefits  the  most from certa in expenses . But the  fact is  tha t the  expenditure  is  a  reasonable

e xpe nditure  for the  Compa ny to incur a nd tha t the  e xpe nditure  be ne fits  the  cus tome rs .

Almos t e ve ry e xpe nditure  of a n  inve s tor owne d Utility ca n  be  in te rpre te d  to  be ne fit

sha re holde r a nd cus tome r in one  wa y or a nothe r. But it is  not a ppropria te  to s imply split

the  cos ts  be twe e n s ha re holde rs  a nd cus tome rs  if the  cus tome r be ne fits  a nd the  cos t is

re la te d to providing e le ctric utility s e rvice . The se  e xpe nse s  a lloca te d to UNS  Ele ctric a re

norma l, ne ce ssa ry a nd re curring e xpe nse s  re la te d to running a  utility. All inve s tor owne d

utilitie s  la rge  or small have  to produce  and print annua l reports  and a ll of them have  Boards

of Directors  tha t need ma te ria ls  prepa red and printed. These  a re  necessa ry cos ts  of doing

business . These  a re  jus t normal expenses  associa ted with running an investor owned utility.

They a re  ne ithe r pe rks  nor excess ive  expenses . They a re  not incurred to sole ly or primarily

to benefit shareholders .

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

D. Valencia Turbine Fuel (RUCO Adjustment No. 14).

Q-

22

Mr. Dukes do you have any comments regarding Ms. Diaz Cortez's position on the

Valencia Turbine Fuel adjustment?

23

24

25

26

27

A. Ye s . It a ppe a rs  tha t we  a re  prima rily dis a gre e ing on whe re  the s e  e xpe ns e s  s hould be

re cove re d within future  ra te s . The  Compa ny is  a tte mpting to qua ntify a ll cos t tha t a re

P P FAC-re concila ble , ba s e d on the  be s t curre nt infonna tion a nd the n e s ta blis h a  "Ba s e

P owe r S upply Ra te " to be  include d in the  cus tome r's  ra te  s tructure s  on firs t da y tha t the

ra te s  go into e ffect. The  Company is  a lso propos ing tha t the  PPFAC ra te be se t a t ze ro on

A.
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1

2

day one and then be  established based on a  forward looking basis  to be  effective  June 2008.

Mr. Micha e l J . De Concini ha s  te s tifie d to the  Compa ny's  proposa l re ga rding the  P P FAC.

Ultima te ly, unde r e ithe r RUCO's  propos e d me thod or the  Compa ny's  propos e d me thod,

only the  a ctua l Va le ncia  fue l cos t will be  re cove re d from cus tome rs . Es se ntia lly, the

Company is  requesting tha t the  known and measurable  amount incurred within the  tes t year

be  used to e s tablish wha t it be lieves  to be  the  most representa tive  base  power supply ra te

poss ible  on day one  - with the  be s t informa tion currently known.

E. Outside Services Adjustment (RUCO Adjustment No. 21).

Q- Mr. Dukes do you have any comments regarding Ms. Diaz Cortez's position on the

Outside Services adjustment?

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

A. Ye s . In the  ba ckup workpa pe rs  to my Re butta l te s timony (Ba te s  No. UNS E(0783)l0704 -

UNS E(0783)l0705), I provide d Ms . Dia z Corte z with de ta ile d workpa pe rs  tha t cle a rly

show tha t invoice s  tota ling $32,865 she  is  propos ing to exclude  from cos t of se rvice  have

a lre a dy be e n re move d by the  Compa ny in our DS M & Re ne wa ble  a djus tme nt, a nd tha t

only the  a dditiona l $17,055 a ddre s s e d in my Re butta l te s timony for a n invoice  omitte d

from the  origina l pro forma  a djus tme nt in e rror should be  the  a dditiona l a mount e xclude d

from te s t ye a r e xpe nse . I a m not sure  why she  wa s  una ble  to disce rn this  in he r re vie w of

the  workpapers , but I have  a ttached those  workpapers  and additiona l information in Exhibit

DJ D-10. It is  cle a rly ide ntifie d within  the  e xhibit tha t the  $32,865 ha s  a lre a dy be e n

excluded from test year expense . To remove these  expenses again would be  improper.

23

24

25

26

27

Q- Please explain the information contained in Exhibit DJD-10.

Exhibit DJ D-10 is  compos e d of a  s umma ry pa ge  with  note s . This  s umma ry pa ge  is

followed by Ba te s  No. UNSE(0783)10704 - UNSE(0783)10705 a s  provided in the  backup

workpapers  for my rebutta l te s timony (in re sponse  to the  adjus tment proposed by Ms. Diaz

A.
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Corte z). The se  pa ge s  a re  followe d by thre e  pa ge s  of the  DS M pro forma  a djus tme nt a s

origina lly file d (Ba te s  No. UNS E(0783)02038, 02039 a nd 02096, which show the  origina l

amount of FERC 908 expense  that was removed from test year expense .

Q. Please demonstrate again that the UNSE does not need to remove $32,865 of DSM

outside services expense from the cost of service.

1

2

3

4

5

6
7 A.

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

On the  firs t pa ge  of Exhibit DJ D-10, the  invoice s  tota ling $32,865 a re  cle a rly outline d.

This  s umma ry pa ge  wa s  ta ke n from the  origina l pro forma  a djus tme nt s pre a ds he e t a s

in c lu d e d  in  Ba te s  No .  UNS E (0 7 8 3 )0 2 0 3 8 - UNS E (0 7 8 3 )0 2 1 0 3  a n d  in  th e  E xc e l

spreadshee t provided in re sponse  to RUCO Data  Reques t 1.10. Because  the  spreadshee t

wa s  ove r 30 pa ge s , I ha ve  limite d the  da ta  displa ye d to the  outs ide  se rvice s  invoice s  tha t

Ms . Dia z Corte z ha s  ide ntifie d  a s  to ta ling he r a djus tme nt of $49,920. Th e  to ta l o f

$136,139 is  the  tota l for FERC 908 from the  origina l spre a dshe e t. The  firs t five  invoice s

tota ling $32,865 a re  the  invoices  included in the  $136,139 tha t was  removed from tes t yea r

e xpe ns e  in the  origina l pro forma . It ca n be  s e e n cle a rly tha t the  tota l DS M e xpe ns e  in

FERC 908 of $136,139 on the  summa ry pa ge  ma tche s  the  a mount tha t wa s  re move d for

FE RC 9 0 8  in  th e  o rig in a l p ro  fo rma  a d ju s tme n t p a g e s  a s  a tta ch e d  in  Ba te s  No .

UNSE(0783)02038, 02039 and 02096.

Going ba ck to the  s umma ry pa ge  of Exhibit DJ D-10, the  invoice  of $17,055 tha t wa s

omitte d from the  origina l pro forma  a djus tme nt is  s hown. As  e xpla ine d on the  s umma ry

pa ge , this  invoice  wa s  not include d in the  origina l DS M e xpe nse  re move d from te s t ye a r

e xpe nse  be ca use  the  que ry use d wa s  ba se d on ta sks  spe cifica lly ide ntifie d a s  re la te d to

DS M a ctivitie s . This  invoice  ha d be e n incorre ctly re corde d in the  GL without a  corre ct

DS M ta s k a nd thus  wa s  not include d in  the  que ry. This  informa tion wa s  pre vious ly

p rovide d  to  Ms . Dia z  Corte z  in  Ba te s  No . UNS E(0783)10704  - UNS E(0783)l0705

provide d in my Re butta l te s timony a s  note d a bove . It ca n be  cle a rly s e e n on Ba te s  No.

1 7



1

2

3

4

5

UNSE(0783)10704-10705 tha t this  wa s  e xpla ine d a nd tha t the  invoice  of $17,055 did not

have  a  task number.

In summary, I agree  with Ms. Diaz Cortez tha t the  tota l expense  of $49,920 was  the  correct

a mount of DSM outs ide  se rvice s  e xpe nse  tha t should ha ve  be e n re move d from te s t ye a r

expense . We  removed $32,865 of DSM outs ide  se rvices  expense  in our origina l pro forma

adjustment and I have  proposed to remove  the  remaining $17,055 of DSM outs ide  expense

in my re butta l te s timony. Ms . Dia z Corte z is  incorre ct tha t the  full $49,920 re ma ins  to be

excluded from test year expense .

111. RESPONSE TO RUCO WITNESS RODNEY L. MOORE'S  SURREBUTTAL

TESTIMONY.

A. Pension and Benefits Adiustlnent (RUCO Adjustment No. 2).

Q, Mr. Dukes do you have any comments regarding Mr. Moore's position on his Pension

and Benefit adjustment?

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

A.

22

23

24

25

26

27

Ye s . Mr. Moore  is  a tte mpting to  e xclude  cos ts  he re  tha t a re  prima rily re la te d to  the

recognition of employee  se rvice , sa fe ty accomplishments  and othe r goa l achievements  by

individua l or groups  of e mploye e s . As  I pre vious ly e xpla ine d, this  we ighting of e xpe nse s

by who be ne fits  the  mos t a nd the n e xcluding norma l a nd re curring e xpe ns e s  is  a  ve ry

difficult measure  to adminis te r. The  fact is  tha t die se l a re  rea sonable  expenses  for a  utility

to  incur. An e mploye e  who re a che s  the  mile s tone  of twe nty-five  ye a rs  of s e rvice  ha s

provide d tha t s e rvice  to the  cus tome rs  be ne fit .-. in tha t the  cus tome rs  be ne fit from tha t

employees knowledge , expertise  and experience  on the  job. Rewarding employees for good

se rvice  be tte r enable s  UNS Electric to re ta in the  bes t and the  brighte s t employees  so tha t

they can continue  to provide  this  se rvice  to the  cus tome r's  be ne fit. be lie ve  the  re cognition

1 8



1

2

3

4

of employees  and the  rewarding of employees  on a  normal and recuning bas is  is  beneficia l

to  cus tome rs  a nd is  a  nonna  a nd re curring e xpe ns e  tha t s hould be  e ncoura ge d a nd

recognized. It should not be  excluded from cos t of se rvice .

5 B. Incentive Compensation (RUCO Adjustment No. 4).

Q- Has Mr. Moore addressed his adjustment for Incentive Compensation in his

Surrebuttal testimony?

A. Ye s . Mr. Moore  continue s  to de fe nd his  pos ition of e limina ting ince ntive  compe ns a tion

expense  from the  test year.

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Q- Do you have any additional comments about Mr. Moore's position?

22

Ye s . I ha ve  a ddre s se d Mr. Moore 's  a rgume nts  pre vious ly in my Re butta l Te s timony, a nd

e a rlie r in my Re joinde r Te s timony a bove . Howe ve r, I would like  to a ddre s s  a  fe w of his

points . Firs t, Mr. Moore  is  a rguing tha t the  P EP  wa s  not e ve n awarded in 2005 a nd

therefore  no recovery should be  a llowed. Tha t ignores  the  fact tha t ha lf of the  PEP expense

in the  te s t yea r is  re la ted to the  2006 plan (because  the  te s t yea r ended on June  30, 2006),

The  fact is  the  UNS Electric Boa rd of Directors  approved the  plan itse lf, the  measures , the

goa ls  a nd the  pa yout of the  P EP  progra m. The  Boa rd wa s  the  e ntity tha t re cognize d the

achievements  of the  employees in 2005 toward the  PEP measures and awarded the  payout,

de s pite  not me e ting a n in itia l funding thre s hold  me a s ure . The  Boa rd s ubs e que ntly

e limina te d this  me a s ure  going forwa rd. But the  pa yme nts  we re  a ctua lly ma de  a nd ha ve

been made  every yea r a t va rying leve ls , but some  leve l of va riable  pay has  been made . So

the  payments  a re  normal and recuning.

23

24

25

26

27

S e condly, Mr. Moore  is  a rguing a ga ins t the  us e  of a n his torica l a ve ra ge  to a rrive  a t a n

adequa te  recurring leve l of incentive  compensa tion expense  based on s trict adhe rence  to

A.
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1

2

3

4

the  "His torica l Te s t-Ye a r P rincipa l." Ye t a t the  s a me  time  he  a rgue s  to a ls o e xclude  the

te s t-ye a r e xpe ns e  a wa rde d a s  ince ntive  compe ns a tion. Tha t a ppe a rs  to  be  ta king

contra dictory pos itions  within one  a djus tme nt. I be lie ve  the  a ve ra ging is  the  a ppropria te

trea tment, because  it gives  the  cus tomers  the  mos t repre senta tive  cos t leve l within cos t of

se rvice .5

6

7

8

9

1 0

11

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

Third, Mr. Moore  continue s  to a rgue  tha t the  e ntire  progra m is  fla we d be ca us e  it only

re wa rds  a  s e gme nt of the  e mploye e  ba s e . I find this  a rgume nt ve ry puzzling. It implie s

tha t pa rt of the  workforce  cannot have  an impact on re sults . Tha t is  entire ly incorrect and it

implies  tha t even if a  program can be  shown as  cos t e ffective  and as  producing results , if it

doe s  not a pply to the  e ntire  workforce , the n it s hould not be  us e d. Tha t is  not a  s ound

bus ine s s  pra ctice . UNS  Ele ctric would like  to  ma ke  the  P EP  progra m a  pa rt of e ve ry

employees ' compensa tion program because  of a ll of the  benefits  tha t a re  associa ted with it,

but has  been unable  to do so with the  union workforce . However, tha t shouldn't mean tha t

the  program should be  abandoned. The  program s till provides  a ll of the  bene fits  I te s tified

about earlie r and impacts  customer se rvice , customer cost and re liability of the  system.

1 7

1 8 c. Rate Case Expense (RUCO Adjustment No. 5).

1 9

20 Q. Has Mr. Moore addressed his adjustment for Rate Case expense in his Surrebuttal

2 1 testimony?

22

23

24

Ye s . Mr. Moore  continue s  to de fe nd his  pos ition of ba s ica lly compa ring UNS  Ele ctric to

S WG while  ignoring the  cle a r diffe re nce s . I dis a gre e  with RUCO's  propose d a djus tme nt

for the  same  reasons  as  I discuss  ea rlie r in my Re joinder Testimony address ing S ta ff's  ra te

25 case expense adjustments.

26

27

A.
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D. Postage Expense (RUCO Adjustment No. 8).1

2

3

4

Q- Has Mr. Moore addressed his adjustment for Postage expense in his Surrebuttal

A.

tes timony?

Ye s . Mr. Moore  continue s  to de fe nd his  pos ition of ba s ica lly only a llowing re cove ry of

te s t ye a r le ve ls  a djus te d for known ra te  cha nge s . Aga in RUCO is  a rguing tha t the  cos t of

pos ta ge  e xpe ns e  doe s  not fluctua te  e nough to me rit norma liza tion tre a tme nt a nd a ga in

RUCO ignore s  the  informa tion provided to them within workpape rs . The  pos tage  expense

has  va ried from $415,524 to $257,881 to $365,567 ove r the  pas t three  yea rs , a ll the  while

cus tome r counts  a nd cus tome r's  bills  ma ile d ha ve  s te a dily incre a s e d. This  is  be ca use

cus tome r count is  not the  only drive r of the se  cos ts . This  is  why the  Compa ny norma lize d

the s e  e xpe ns e s  a nd S ta ff a cce pte d our a djus tme nt modifie d to re fle ct the  pos ta ge  ra te

increase  in 2007.

E. SERP (RUCO Income Statement Adjustment 16).

Q- Has Mr. Moore addressed his adjustment for SERP expense in his Surrebuttal

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

tes timony?

Ye s . Mr. Moore  continue s  to de fe nd his  propos e d e limina tion of S ERP  cos t incurre d by

the  Company during the  tes t year.

Q- Do you have any additional comments about Mr. Moore's position?

23

24

25

26

27

A. Ye s . I ha ve  a ddre s s e d mos t of Mr. Moore 's  a rgume nts  in my Re butta l Te s timony a nd in

re s ponding to Mr. S mith's  a rgtune nts  e a rlie r in my Re joinde r Te s timony. For a ll of thos e

rea sons , I continue  to disagree  with Mr. Moore 's  pos ition.

A.
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1 F. Overhead Line Maintenance (RUCO Income Statement Adjustment 18).

2

3

4

Q- Has  Mr. Moore  addres s ed  h is  ad jus tment for Ove rhead  Line  Ma intenance  expens e  in

his Surrebuttal testimony?

Ye s . Mr. Moore  continue s  to  de fe nd  h is  p ropos e d  norma liza tion  of ove rhe a d  line

maintenance  cost incurred by the  Company during the  test year.

Q. Do you have any additional comments about Mr. Moore's position?

A. Ye s . In Mr. Moore 's  S urre butta l te s timony he  implie s  tha t the  Compa ny's  re s pons e  to

RUCO 2.12 wa s  s ome how incomple te  or knowingly ina ccura te . Be low is  the  que s tion

RUCO 2.12 and it cle a rly reques t the  yea r-end ba lances  for 2003 through 2006 for FERC

593.

Opera ting Income .- P lease  provide  the  year-end ba lances for 2003, 2004, 2005
a nd 2006 for FERC a ccount 593 - Ma inte na nce  of Ove rhe a d Line s  a nd a ls o
ple a se  provide  the  month-e nd ba la nce s  of this  a ccount for e a ch month of the
test year.

6

7

8

9

10

1 1

12
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17
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19

2 0

2 1

2 2

RUCO wa s  provide d the  informa tion the y re que s te d. It is  common knowle dge  to  the

pa rtie s  of this  ca se  tha t the  ye a r of 2003 is  a  pa rtia l ye a r a nd tha t a ny income  s ta te me nt

a ccounts  would only re pre s e nt jus t a ctivity from Augus t ll, 2003 through De ce mbe r 31,

2003. UNS Electric did not a cquire  the se  a sse ts  until Augus t ll, 2003 .

23

2 4

25

2 6

2 7

Mr, Moore  a lso re fe rs  to the  2003 FERC Form 1 a nd sa ys  the re  is  no footnote  or nota tion

to indica te  tha t it re pre s e nts  a  pa rtia l ye a r. Tha t is  jus t untrue , throughout the  re port it

indica te s  tha t the  Compa ny be ga n ope ra tion on Augus t 11, 2003. S pe cifica lly, on pa ge

123.1 the re  is  a  note  tha t specifica lly s ta te s  tha t a ll s ta tements  a re  re flective  of activity for

the  pe riod August 11, 2003 through December 31, 2003. P lease  see  exhibit DJD-11 to see

pa ge  123.1 of the  FERC Form 1 for 2003. The  te s t-ye a r le ve l is  re fle ctive  of norma l a nd

5 A.

22



1 recuning leve ls  and Mr. Moore 's  norma liza tion adjus tment should be  ignored based on the

inhe rit e rror in the  computa tion.2

3

4 G. Pavroll Expense (RUCO Income Statement Adjustment 25).

5

6 Q- Has Mr. Moore addressed the adjustment for Payroll expense the Company proposed

in its Rebuttal Testimony?7

8 Ye s . Mr. Moore  a rgue s  tha t it is  re a ching out be yond the  te s t ye a r a nd s hould not be

accepted. I d is a gre e  with  Mr. Moore 's  a rgume nt ba s e d on the  re a s ons  I provide d in

re s ponding to S ta ff's S urre butta l Te s timony. I a ls o  fin d  Mr.  Mo o re 's  a rg u m e n t

contradictory to his  own proposed adjus tment to re flect a  property tax assessment ra te  tha t

won't be  in e ffe ct until 2008, which is  we ll be yond the  e ffe ctive  da te  of the  wa ge  ra te

increases a lready in place .

Q, Does this conclude your Rejoinder Testimony?

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Yes.

22

23

24

25

26

27

A.

A.

23
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UNS ELECTRIC, INC.

FERC 925 ACTIVITY
Exhibit DJD-8

Page 1 of 2

TME 6/30/07

Test Year

TME6/30/06 TME 12/31/06 TME 12/31/05 TME 12/31/04

542,228.58

$0.00

$3,593.23

$7,848.94

$0.00

$10,670,09

$7,392.70

$165.85

$852.52

50000 Wages 0925 Injuries 8. Daman

50010 Vacation & Sick 0925 Injuries & Daman

50250 Workers' Compen 0925 Injuries a. Daman

51500 Materials & Sup 0925 Injuries 8. Damag

52000 Outside Service 0925 Injuries 8. Daman

52020 Outside Serv-Co 0925 Injuries & Daman

52100 Outside Service 0925 Injuries & Damag

55000 Transportation 0925 Injuries & Daman

58000 Facilities Rent 0925 Injuries & Daman

78000 Offlcers a Dire 0925 Injuries 8- Daman

18010 General Llablli 0925 Injuries s. Daman

78040 Workers' Compen 0925 Injuries a Daman

78100 Injuries & Dama 0925 Injuries & Damag

79010 Travel 0925 Injuries & Damag

79070 Printing & Mail 0925 Injuries & Dam8g

79120 postage 0925 Injuries & Damag

79200 Other AaG Expert 0925 Injuries & Damag

79300 A&G Expense Tra 0925 Injuries & Daman

$30,000.19

$0.00

$20,710.62

($380.00)

50,00

$14.803.70

$0.00

$103.71

$85081

5138,852.00

8221,029.49

(545,739.53)

$17,888.81

$0.00

$0,00

$0.00

$0.00

$1 .95

$120,071.83

$203,527.90

5173,456.03

($7.824.88)

$406.83

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$3.73

$49,669.25

s0.00

512,803.12

($713.73)

$0.00

$13,266.79

$498.00

$207.48

$778.65

$1301329.56

$202,092.70

5811037.33

$10,063.93

$406.83

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.35

$12,250.13

$0.00

$11 ,443.99

513,167.10

s0.00

$1 ,081 .50

$17,549.22

$134.75

$524.60

$88,604.79

$180,051.76

$31,519.70

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$4.74

$9,888,49

s395.a1

516,187.54

$8,117.29

$780.50

$581 .ea

$10,876.67

$1 ,692.78

$393.62

$22,032.32

$169,604.93

$113,266.73

($1,228.77)

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$398,031 .75 $562,403.15 $500,440.26 5356,992.28 5352,589.04

78000 Officers & Dire 0925 Injuries & Daman

2004

522,032.32

2004/2005 A

$56,572.47

2005/2006 A

$41 ,724.77

1. 2004 amount low because allocation Io UNSE did not start until July 2004 - using lnvoloe for AEGIS

2. 2005 amount increase . 1) fol! year amount , 2) additional invoice added in Jul 05 to the allocation for ElM (Energy Insurance Mutual) for a total
increase of $29.227.98. 3) % amount to be allocated to UNSE increased from 7.71 % to 8.13% - (Three Factor Mass Formula being used)

3. 2006 amount increase due to increaseIn Insurancepremiumsand increase in% to UNSE through Mass formula(from 8.13% to 8.86%)

Page 1 of 1 8/28/2007 9:51 AM



UNS ELECTRIC, INC.

FERC 925 ACTIVITY
Exhibit DJD-8

page 2 of z

TME 6/30/07

Test Year

TME6/30/06 TME 12/31/06 TME 12/31/05 TME 12/31/04

50000 Wages 0925 Injuries & Daman

50010 Vacation & Sick 0925 Injuries & Daman

sozso Workers' Compen 0925 Injuries & Daman

51500 Materials & Sup 0925 Injuries & Daman

52000 Outside Service 0925 Injuries & Damag

52020 Outside Sew-Co 0925 Injuries & Damag

52100 Outside Sewlce 0925 Injuries & Daman

55000 Transportation 0925 Injuries & Daman

56000 Facilities Rent 0925 Injuries gt Daman

78000 Officers & Dire 0925 Injuries& Damag

78010 General Llablll 0925 Injuries & Damag

78040 Workers'compel 0925 injuries & Daman

78100 injuries & Data 0925 injuries & Daman

79010 Travel 0925 Injuries & Damag

79070 Printing gt Mail 0925 Injuries 8r Daman

79120 Postage 0925 injuries & Damag

79200 Other A&G Expert 0925 injuries & Damag

79300 A&G Expense Tra 0925 injuries & Damag

530,000.19

$0.00

$20,710.62

(538000)

$0.00

$14,803.70

$0.00

$103.71

$B60.B1

5138,862.00

$221,929.49

$76,294.59

517,888.81

$0.00

$0,00

$0.00

$0.00

$1 .95

$42,228.58

$0.00

$3_593_23

57,848.94

$0.00

$10,670.09

$7.392.70

$165.65

$862.52

$120,071.83

5203,527.90

875,294.59

($7.824.88)

$406.83

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$3.73

549,669.25

$0.00

$12,803.12

($713.73)

$0.00

$13,266.79

$498.00

$207.48

$778.65

5130,329.55

$202,092.70

$81,037.33

510,063.93

$406.83

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.35

$12,250.13

$0.00

$11 ,443.99

$13,167.10

$0.00

$1 .681.50

$17,549.22

$1M,75

$524.60

588,604.79

$180,051.76

$31,579.70

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$4.74

$9,888.49

$395.31

$16,187.54

58.11729

$780.50

$581 .63

$10,576.67

$1,692.78

$393.62

$22,032.32

$169,604.93

5113,266.73

($1 ,228.77)

$0.00

s0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

04-06 Average

$75,2945529

$520,065,87 $484,241.71 $500,440.26 5356,992.28 $352,589.04

78000 Officers & Dara0925 Injuries aDaman
2004

522,032.32

2004/2005 A

$65,572.47

2005/2005 A

$41 ,724.77

1, 2004 amount low because allocation to UNSE did not start until July 2004 - using invoice for AEGIS

2. 2005 amount increase 1) full year amount , 2) additional invoice added in Jul 05 to me allocation for ElM (Energy Insurance Mutual) for a total
increase of $29,227.98. 3) % amount to be allocated to UNSE increased from 7.71% to 8.13% - (Three Factor Mass Formula being used)

a. 2008 amount increase due to increase In Insurance premiums and Increase In % to UNSE through Mass formula (from 8.13% to 8.86%)

Page1 of 1 8/28/2007 9:49 AM
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ADJ USTMENT NAME: DSM

ADJUSTMENT TO: income Statement

DATE SUBWTTED: October 23, 2008

PREPARED BY: Janet Zaidenberg-Schrum 928,
CHECKED BY: zDallas Dukes l

REVIEWED BY'

FERC

ACCT FERC ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION DEBIT CREDIT

408 Taxes Other Than Income Taxes $5,283

548 Operation Supervision a Engineering $58,254

549 Miscellaneous Other Power Generation $107,473

588 Miscellaneous Distribution Expenses $7,022

908 Customer Assistance Expenses 144,338

909 Informational and Instructional Advertising Expenses 549,875

920 Administrative a General Salaries $107

923 Outside Services Employed $12,529

925 Injuriesand Damages $25

928 Employee Pension & Benefits $20.902

931 Rents $526

587 Customer Installations Expense $42,533

so $458,857

UNS ELECTRIC, INC.

INCOME STATEMENT PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENT

TEST YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

(

14

(Q

R

~l
»:»

Q

Q.,

if

(

444
5

|

I

l

ENTRY TOTAL

Reason for Adjustment

To reduce operating expenses for amounts related Io DSM activities, these are to be evaluated independently.

i
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UNS Electric, Inc.

DSM & Renewables Expense Detail

Test Year Ended June to. zoos

('

Description Amount FERC

Renewables » EPS
Renewables - EPS

Renewables - EPS

Renewables EPS

Renewables - EPS

Renewables - EPS
Renewables .. EPS

Renewables - EPS

408

54s

549

588

920

923

925

926

Qs l'8'q /
L ,

/

'QI
Q /

so ,875

$68,2M

$107,473

$7,022

$107

s1_00a

$4

$7,457

$193,197

4/
3 /

/

Weatherization

Wearherization

Weatherlzativav

408

sos

926

$29

$564

$112

$725
if

DSM Admim's\ratk>n

DSM Aximinisiration

DSM Admini$il'I1i0n

DSM Admlnishilion

DSM Administration

$345

$7,615

811,525

$4
$1,293

$20.782

408

908

923 ,

925 '

925

*\-AQ'

13
d

(
1

»

DSM

DSM

l'JaM

DSM

DS M

DSM

$3.033

$135,139

$49,875

s o

$12,040

$526

s201 ,son

408 5 . 3 3  q  f

908 b  r

909

925

i 926

M31

8 ,

4 /

Total $416,334

Z
; summary Bv FERC Account

FERC 408

FERC 546

FERC 549

FERC 588

FERC 9 ' S

FERC 909

FERC 920

FERC 923

FERC 925
FERC 926

FERC 931

L

$5,283 q

see.254 L
$107,473 4 ,

$7.022 _&

t $144,338 *s

549,875 €
$107 S

512,529 B

$25 4-

$20,902 J

$526
$416,334

(4

O~r\~A We Qmvn' \ \

10/19/2006 3:11 PM
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Name of Respondent

UNS Electric, Inc.

This Report is:
(1 )2(_ An Original
(2) A Resubmission

Date of Report
(Mo, Do, Yr)

04/30/2004

Year of Report

Dec31, 2003
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Purchase Price: -Thousands of Dollars-
Cash Paid $ 82,765
Transaction Costs 1,950

Total Purchase Price s 84,11 s

Allocation of Purchase Price: -Thousands of Dollars-
Property, Plant & Equipment $ 90,815
Current Assets 17,952
Other Assets 580
CurrentLiabilities 20,385
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 4,247

Total Purchase Price s 84.715

FERC FORM no. 1 Page 123. 1ED. 12-882

NOTES TO PAGES 120-122

Page 120 - Instruction 1:
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or

less.

The "Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year" on page 121 reconciles to the following amounts on the Comparative
Baiance Sheet on page 110.

Cash (Account 131)
Temporary Cash Investments (Account 135)
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents at Year End

$ 11,423,738
0

11,423,738

Page 120, Instruction 3:
Income Taxes Paid $ 573,000

Page 122, Instruction 2:
See Note 6, Commitments and Contingencies in the Notes to Financial Statements.

NOTE 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

UNS Electric, Inc. (UNS Electric) procures, transmits and distributes electricity to 81 ,000 retail electric customers in
the Mohave county of Northern Arizona and the Santa Cruz county of Southern Arizona. UniSource Energy Services, Inc.
(UES), an intermediate holding company, established UNS Electric on April 14, 2003, and owns all of the common stock of
UNS Electric. UniSource Energy Corporation (UniSource Energy) owns all of the common stock of UES.

On August 11, 2003, UNS Electric completed the purchase of the Arizona electric system assets from Citizens
Communications Company (Citizens). The operating results of UNS Electric have been included in UES' consolidated
financial statements since the acquisition date. The operating results in the attached "Statement of income For The Year"
Statement Of Retained Earnings For The Year" and "Statement Of Cash Flows" are for the period of August 11, 2003

through December 31, 2003.

1

I

The purchase price and the allocation of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair
market values as of the acquisition date are as follows for the electric system assets:
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BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION

COMMISSIONERS
MIKE GLEASON- CHAIRMAN
WILLIAM A. MUNDELL
JEFF HATCH-MILLER
KRISTIN K. MAYES
GARY PIERCE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF
UNS ELECTRIC, INC. FOR THE
ESTABLISHMENT OF JUST AND
REASONABLE RATES AND CHARGES
DESIGNED TO REALIZE A REASONABLE
RATE OF RETURN ON THE FAIR VALUE OF
THE PROPERTIES OF UNS ELECTRIC, INC.
DEVOTED TO ITS OPERATIONS
THROUGHOUT THE STATE OF ARIZONA
AND REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF
RELATED FINANCING.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

DOCKET NO. E-04204A-06-0783
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22 UNS  Ele ctric, Inc.

23

24 Augus t 31, 2007

25
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1 1 . INTRODUCTION.

2

3 Q- Please state your name and address.

4

5

My na me  is  Micha e l J . De Concini. My bus ine s s  a ddre s s  is  One  S outh Church Ave nue ,

Tucson, Arizona .

6

7 Q-

8

Are you the same Michael J. DeConcini who filed Rebuttal Testimony in this

proceeding?

9 A. Yes, I am.

10

11 Q- What is  the  purpos e  of your Re joinder Tes timony in  this  proceeding?

12

13

14

15

The  purpose  of my Re joinde r Tes timony is  to addre ss  Commiss ion S ta ff' s  Witness  Ra lph

C. S mith's  S urre butta l Te s timony on UNS  Ele ctric's  re vis e d P urcha s e d P owe r a nd Fue l

Adjus tme nt Cla us e  ("P P FAC") a s  file d in  my Re butta l Te s timony. I a ls o a ddre s s  the

Surrebutta l Tes timony of RUCO witness  Marylee  Diaz Cortez on this  same  topic.

16

17 Q- Pleas e  s ummarize  your Rejoinder Tes timony?

18

19

UNS  Ele ctric is  in a gre e me nt with the  ma jority of Mr. S mith's  re comme nda tions  on the

propos e d  P P FAC a nd  P OA, the  on ly e xce p tion  be ing  the  "Othe r Allowa ble  Cos ts "

20 category. Th e  Co mp a n y re q u e s ts  th a t th e  Co mmis s io n  in c lu d e  UNS  E le c tric 's

21

22

23

24

25

26

procure me nt, s che duling a nd ma na ge me nt cos ts  in the  "Othe r Allowa ble  Cos ts ". The

Compa ny dis a gre e s  with Ms . Dia z Corte z's  te s timony tha t a  P P FAC us ing a  his torica l

rolling a ve ra ge , a n a nnua l ca p, a nd a  s ha ring provis ion is  a  be tte r me cha nis m. With

re ga rds  to the  Bla ck Mounta in Ge ne ra ting S ta tion ("BMGS"), the  Compa ny s ta nds  by the

Dire ct a nd Re butta l Te s timonie s  tha t Mr. Ke vin P . La rson a nd I submitte d supporting the

specific trea tment of BMGS requested by the  Company.

27

A.

A.

A.

1



1 11. RES P ONS E TO S TAFF WITNES S  RALP H c . S MITH'S  S URREBUTTAL

2 TES TIMONY.

3

4 Q- P le a s e  S u m m a rize  Mr. S m ith 's  Re b u tta l Te s tim o n y o n  UNS  Ele c tr ic 's  P P FAC file d

5 in Mr. DeConcini's Rebuttal Testimony?

6

7

8

Mr. S mith  re comme nds  s e ve ra l cha nge s  to  the  P P FAC P la n  o f Admin is tra tion  ("P OA")

file d  by UNS  Ele c tric . Furthe r Mr. S mith  s ta te s  tha t a pplica tion of e ithe r a  90/10 s ha ring

provis ion or a n a nnua l ca p s imila r to AP S ' would be  ina ppropria te  for UNS  Ele ctric  a t this

time .9

10

11 Q-

12

Do you agree with Mr. Smith's view that the inclusion of a 90/10 sharing mechanism

and annual cap would be inappropriate for UNS Electric?

13

14

15

16

Ye s . Mr. S mith's  comme nts  a nd a na lys is  a ccura te ly re fle ct the  Compa ny's  pos ition on

these  issues . In  the  Compa ny's  curre nt tra ns itiona l pe riod from a  fu ll re quire me nts

contra ct to building a  portfolio of re s ource s  a nd contra cts  to s upply its  loa d, it would be

ina ppropria te  to a pply e ithe r a n a nnua l ca p or a  90/10 sha ring provis ion for the  following

17 reasons:

18

19

20

2 1

22

23

24

25

26

27

The power cost in base  ra tes  re flects  the  current full requirements  PPA.

Curre ntly, UNS  Ele ctric owns  only a  s ma ll a mount of ge ne ra tion tha t is  us e d for

pe a k powe r a nd re lia bility (mus t run a nd volta ge  s ta bility). UNS Ele ctric's  iiue l a nd

purchased power cos ts  will be  s ignificantly diffe rent than the  full requirements  PPA

a fte r its  e xpira tion a nd would not e xhibit the  s ta bility of a  ve rtica lly inte gra te d

utility with s ignificant, s table  cos t, base  load resources .

As  Mr. Smith s ta te s  in his  Surrebutta l Tes timony a t page  49 a t lines  19 through 21,

the  a pplica tion of the  s ha ring me cha nis m in the  AP S  s itua tion "wa s  more  in the

na ture  of a  continua tion of s imila r circums ta nce s  in te rms  of the  utility's  fue l a nd

purcha se  powe r procure me nt, the  UNS  Ele ctric s itua tion re pre se nts  a  s ignifica nt

A.

A.

2



1

2

change  once  the  full requirements  PPA expires ."

Mr. Smith and the  Company agree  tha t an annua l cap for the  UNS Electric PPFAC

is  not appropria te  a t this  time . We  gene ra lly agree  with Mr. Smith's  explana tions  in

his  S urre butta l Te s timony ,- pa ge s  53 through 54 -- with  re s pe ct to  why UNS

Electric should not have  an annual cap on its  PPFAC .

3

4

5

6

7

8

Q, Wh a t is  Mr. S m ith ' s  p o s it io n  o n  "o th e r  a llo wa b le  c o s ts "  in c lu d e d  in  th e  UNS

Ele c tric 's  P P FAC?

Mr. Smith be lieves  tha t these  costs  should not be  recovered in the  Company's  PPFAC.9

10

11

12

Q- How does Mr. Smith propose that these costs be recovered?

Mr. Smith s ta tes  tha t the  Company could request recovery of these  cos ts  in base  ra tes  and

tha t the y would be  tre a te d a s  a ny othe r utility ope ra ting e xpe nse s  tha t fluctua te  be twe e n13

14 rate cases.

Q- Do you agree?

15

16

17

18

19

2 0

2 1

No. The se s  cos ts  a re  dire ctly re la te d to fue l a nd purcha se d powe r procure me nt, a nd a s

such, should be  include d in the  PPFAC. UNS Ele ctric ha s  not incurre d the se  cos ts  in the

pas t due  to its  full requirements  PPA. Waiting until the  next ra te  case  for recovery of these

costs  could put an unfa ir financia l burden on the  Company.

22 Q- Can the Company accurately forecast these costs?

23

24

25

26

27

Not a ll of them. In re sponse  to S ta ffs  Da ta  Reques t No. STF 20.4, the  Company provided

a  forecas t of its  procurement, scheduling and management cos ts  a s  it would be  a lloca ted

from TEP 's  Whole s a le  Ene rgy group. This  group will pe rform a ll the  procure me nt a nd

sche duling functions  for TEP  a nd UNS Ele ctric a nd will a lloca te  cos ts  in proportion to the

two companies ' loads . The  othe r cos ts  a re  case  or s itua tion dependent which TEP cannot

A.

A.

A.

A.

3



1 e s tima te  with a ny de gre e  of ce rta inty a t this  point.

2

3 Q, What has Mr. Smith recommended for changes to the "Other Allowable Costs"

4 s e c tio n  o f th e  P OA?

5 Mr. Smith recommends  tha t they be  s tricken and replaced with "None  without pre -approva l

6 from the  Commiss ion in an Orde r".

7

8 Q. Does the Company request any such pre-approval in this case?

9 A.

10

11

Ye s . Give n tha t the  Com pa ny ha s  provide d a  fore ca s t of the  procure m e nt, s che duling a nd

m a na ge m e nt fe e s  in  re s pons e  to  S TF 20.4,  the  Com pa ny re que s ts  tha t re cove ry of the s e

cos ts  be  pre -a pprove d in this  Ra te  Ca s e . The  Compa ny's  re s pons e  to S TF 20.4 is  a tta che d

a s  Exhibit MJ D-6.12

13

14 Q- Has Mr. Smith made any additional changes to the POA filed by the Company?

15

16

17

Ye s . Mr. S mith provide d a  re d-line  of the  P OA tile d by the  Compa ny. The  cha nge s  he

made  are  summarized be low:

Inte re s t ra te  cla rifica tion - cla rifie s  tha t the  inte re s t ra te  sha ll be  a djus te d a nnua lly

18

19

20

on the  firs t bus ine ss  da y of the  ne w ye a r.

Com m is s ion  Approva l for unus ua l e ve nt - c la rifie s  tha t the  Com pa ny would  ne e d

Com m is s ion a pprova l prior to  a m e nding the  Forwa rd Com pone nt in  the  ca s e  of a n

u n u s u a l e v e n t with in  th e  P P F AC  Ye a r a n d  c la rifie s  th a t th e  C o m m is s io n  c o u ld2 1

22

23

24

25

26

order recovery over such period as  the  Commission de tennines appropria te .

Commis s ion De cis ion for ne w P P FAC ra te s  - a dds  la ngua ge  tha t a  Commis s ion

de cis ion, if ne ce s sa ry, would ne e d to occur prior to the  June  1 imple me nta tion of

new PPFAC ra tes .

Specific ca lcula tions  - should be  de te rmined upon review of illus tra tive  schedules .

Cre dit of whole sa le  re ve nue  -. the  POA indica te d 90% of whole sa le  re ve nue s  will27

A.

A.

4



1

2

3

4

5

6

be  credited to the  PFPAC, while  my Rebutta l Tes timony indica ted 100%.

P rude nce  re vie w - a dds  cla rity tha t the  Commis s ion ha s  the  right to re vie w the

prude nce  of fue l a nd powe r purcha s e s  a nd a ny ca lcula tions  a s s ocia te d with the

PPFAC a t any time .

Othe r Allowa ble  Cos ts  .- indica te s  tha t no othe r cos ts , be yond those  re corde d in

FERC Accounts  501, 547, 555 a nd 565, will be  a llowe d without pre -a pprova l from

the  Commiss ion in an Order.

Q- Please address the Company's position on these changes?

7

8

9

10

11

A.

1 2

The s e  cha nge s  a s  propos e d by Mr. S mith a re  a ll a cce pta ble  to the  Compa ny, with the

e xce ption of his  re comme nda tion re ga rding Othe r Allowa ble  Cos ts . I ha ve  a ddre sse d the

Company's  position on this  recommended change  in my Rejoinder Testimony above .

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

Re ga rding Mr. S mith's  re comme nda tion on s pe cific ca lcula tions , the  Compa ny will be

p le a s e d  to  wo rk with  S ta ff o n  d e ve lo p me n t o f d e fin itive  s ch e d u le s  a n d  s p e c ific

ca lcula tions .

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

Re ga rding Mr. S mith's  re comme nda tion on cre diting whole sa le  re ve nue s  to the  P P FAC,

the  Compa ny a gre e s . This  incons is te ncy wa s  a n e rror on the  Compa ny's  pa rt. The  P OA

should have  indica ted tha t 100% of revenues  from short-te rm off-sys tem wholesa le  sa le s ,

to the  extent they exis t, will be  credited to the  PPFAC .

22

23

24

25

26

27

5



1 111. RESPONSE RUCO

SURREBUTTAL TESTIMONY.

TO WITNESS MARYLEE DIAZ CORTEZ'S

2

3

4

5

Q- Wha t is  Ms . Dia z Corte z's  pos ition  on  the  P P FAC file d  in  the  Compa ny's  Re bu tta l

6

7

Tes timony?

Ms . Dia z Corte z be lie ve s  the  his torica l twe lve -month rolling a ve ra ge  P P FAC a s  origina lly

proposed by the  Company to be  a  superior methodology.

8

9

10

11

12

Q- What is  Ms . Diaz Cortez reas oning for th is  opin ion?

1 3

1 4

Ms. Diaz Cortez s ta te s  .- in he r Surrebutta l Tes timony on page  7, line  20, through page  8,

line  2 - tha t "the  rolling a ve ra ge  me thodology, a s  modifie d by RUCO, provide s  a  numbe r

of safeguards and protections including a  cap on the  magnitude  by which the  surcharge  can

move  in a  give n ye a r, a nd a  90/10 s ha ring me cha nis m tha t is  de s igne d to ince pt the

Company to control its  fue l and purchased power costs .

Q. Do you agree?

No. It is  both the  Compa ny's  a nd S ta ffs  pos ition tha t ca ps  a nd a  s ha ring me cha nis m

would be  inappropria te  a t this  time .

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

Q- Please comment on Ms. Diaz Cortez's statement on page 8 lines 10 through 13 of her

Surrebuttal Testimony that "UNS Electric is subject primarily to market prices and

purchased power contracts. The historical price of these procurements is a more

accurate measure of these costs than market projections?"23

2 4

25

26

27

Ms . Dia z Corte z is  corre ct tha t UNS  Ele ctric is  s ubje ct to ma rke t price s  a nd purcha s e d

powe r contra cts . Howe ve r, his torica l price s  ca n be  s ignifica ntly diffe re nt a nd, in fa ct, le s s

accura te  than projections  for UNS Electric a s  it converts  from his torica l cos ts  based on the

e xp iring  fu ll re qu ire me n ts  P P A to  ma rke t powe r pu rcha s e s ,  con tra c ts ,  a nd  a s s e t

A.

A.

A.

A.

6



1

2

a cquis itions . Furthe r, a ctua l his torica l cos ts  incurre d by the  Compa ny a re  use d to true -up

the  marke t projections .

Q- Does this conclude your Rejoinder Testimony?

3

4

5 Ye s .

6

7

8

9

10

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

25

26

27

23

24

1 3

1 4

1 1

1 2

A.

7
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UNS  ELECTRIC, INC.'S  RES P ONS ES  TO
S TAFF'S  TWENTIETH S ET OF DATA REQUES TS

DOCKET n o . E-04204A-06-0783
Augus t 21, 2007

S TF 20.4 Refe r to Exhibit MJD-3, the  UNS Electric, Inc. Purchased Power and Fue l
Adjus tme nt Cla use  P la n of Adminis tra tion file d with Mr. De Concini's
rebutta l te s timony. For each ite m of "Othe r Allowa ble  Cos ts " on pa ge  ll,
provide  the  following informa tion:

A comple te  de scription of UNS Electric's  unde rs tanding of
whether such costs  a re  included in the  APS PSA upon which the
UNS Ele ctric PPFAC wa s  mode le d?  Include  supporting
documents  re lied upon for your unders tanding.

A lis ting, by account, by ca lendar yea r (or portion of ca lendar
years  2003 through 2007), of the  actua l expenses incurred by UNS
Ele ctric for each ite m of "Othe r Allowa ble  Cos ts " on pa ge  l l,
from the  inception of ownership of UNS Electric in Augus t 2003
through June 30, 2007.

A lis ting, by account, of the  anticipa ted, es timated, and/or forecast
expenses  incurred by UNS Electric for e ach ite m of "Othe r
Allowa ble  Cos ts " on pa ge  ll, for e a ch of the  following pe riods :
(1) ca lendar 2007, (2) ca lendar 2008, (3) ca lendar 2009, (4)
ca lendar 2010, (5) June  l, 2008 through May 31, 2009, and (6)
June  1, 2009 through May 31, 2010. Provide  the  Company's  bes t
estimates. To the  extent tha t the  requested estimated or forecast
informa tion is  not ava ilable  in exactly the  form reques ted (by
FERC account), provide  the  bes t information the  Company has ,
and provide  it in the  form tha t the  Company has  it in.

RES P ONS E:

c.

b.

a.

a.

UNS Electric unders tands  tha t because  Arizona  Public Service
Company ("APS") had an exis ting PPFAC tha t was  opera tiona l,
APS recovers  the  requested "Other Allowable  Costs" in its  base
ra te s , ra the r than in the  PSA. Howeve r, UNS Electric is
trans itioning from a  full requirements  agreement into a  supply
portfolio, a nd the se  cos ts  will be  incurre d. Due  to the  full
requirements  agreement, these  costs  were  not in UNS Electric's
test-year, and therefore  not in the  base  ra tes , but will be  an actua l
cost incurred re la ted to replacing the  full requirements  agreement.

These costs have not been incurred to date  because UNS Electric
has been served under a  full requirements  Power Supply
Agreement with P innacle  West Capita l Corpora tion ("P innacle
We s t").

b.



UNS  ELECTRIC, INC.'S  RES P ONS ES  TO
S TAFF'S  TWENTIETH S ET OF DATA REQUES TS

DOCKET NO. E-04204A-06-0783
Augus t 21, 2007

Costs  for scheduling/administra tion of wholesa le  purchases a re  as
follows : (1) for 2007 - $0, (2) for 2008 - $259,368, (3) for 2009 -
$273,563; (4) for 2010 - $281,783; (5) for June  1, 2008 through
May 31, 2009 - $268,783; and (6) for June  1, 2009 through May
31, 2010 - $276,978. These  scheduling/adminis tra tion cos ts  could
e ither be  accounted for in Account 555 (Purchased Power) or
FERC O&M Accounts  depending on a lloca tion me thodology.
UNS Electric cannot anticipa te  the  timing of lega l or credit cos ts
with any certa inty and none  are  included in the  estimate  above .
Lega l fees  and credit costs  would continue  to be  recorded in FERC
Accounts  923 and431, re spective ly.

RES P ONDENT : Da vid Hutche ns

WITNESS : Micha e l De Concini

c.
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1 1. INTRODUCTION.

2

3 Q- Please state your name and address.

A.

5

My na me  is  Be ntle y Erdwurm, a nd my bus ine s s  a ddre s s  is  1  S outh Church Ave nue ,

Tucson, Arizona , 85701.

6

7 Q-

8

Are you the same Bentley Erdwurm who filed Rebuttal Testimony in this

proceeding?

9 A. Yes , I am.

1 0

11 Q- What is  the  purpos e  of your Re joinder Tes timony in  this  proceeding?

1 2

1 3

The  purpose  of my Re joinder Tes timony is  to support the  Company's :

Manda tory Time-of-Use  Proposa ls .

Purchased Power Alloca tion.1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

Mohave  and Santa  Cruz County Rate  Consolida tion.

Inve rte d (inclining) Block Ra te  De s ign.

Proposed Large  Power Service  Demand Charges, Under 69 kg.

CARES a nd Me dica l CARES.1 8

1 9

20 11. MANDATO R Y TIME -O F -US E  R ATE S .

2 1

22 Q. Are mandatory time-of-use rates in the public interest?

23

24

25

26

27

Ye s . For re s ide ntia l a nd s ma lle r comme rcia l cus tome rs , time -of-us e  ("TOU") ra te s

combine d with the  inve rte d (inclining) ra te  s tructure  provide  a n ince ntive  to cus tome rs  to

s hift loa d from highe r-cos t to lowe r-cos t time  pe riods . The s e  ra te  de s ign pos itions  a re

supported by RUCO witness  Diaz-Cortez, and a re  cons is tent with pas t Commiss ion orde rs

in ca se s  involving Tucson Ele ctric P owe r Compa ny ("TEP ") .-- UniS ource  Ene rgy's  othe r

A.

A.

1



1

2

3

e le ctric utility - a s  we ll a s  for s ome  Arizona  Ame rica n Wa te r s e rvice  a re a s  a nd Arizona

Wa te r Compa ny's  We s te rn Group. More ove r, S ta ff ha s  in the  pa s t e ncoura ge d TEP  to

increase  subscription to its  TOU programs.

4

5 Q- Is  the  ma nda tory TOU progra m s till oppos e d  by Mr. Ra diga n  of S ta ff?

6

7

8

9

10

11

Ye s . Mr. Ra diga n ha s  ta ke n s ome  ve ry re a ctiona ry a nd obs tructionis t pos itions  in this

p roce e d ing , wh ich  a re  con tra ry to  s ta te d  Commis s ion  po licy. If imp le me n te d , Mr.

Ra diga n's  pos ition will "s top the  clock" on TOU's  progre s s . In my Re butta l Te s timony, I

indica te d tha t cos t-be ne fit a na lys is  wa s  re le va nt to the  e va lua tion of TOU progra ms .

Howeve r, I neve r indica ted tha t more  informa tion was  needed to cos t-jus tify the  programs

proposed in UNS Electric's  direct and rebutta l te s timony.

12

13

14

15

16

Furthe r, Mr. Ra diga n se e ms  una wa re  of the  his tory of TOU in Arizona . The  e xpe rime nta l

phase  for TEP occurred from 1991 through 1994, with the  eva lua tion of TEP 's  Res identia l

TO U R a te  No .  2 1 ,  a n d  th e  s u b s e q u e n t e xp a n s io n  o f TO U p ro g ra m s  with  th e

imple me nta tion of Re s ide ntia l Time -of-Us e  Ra te  No. 70 a nd the  la te r imple me nta tion of

17 Ge ne ra l S e rvice  Time -of-Us e  Ra te  No. 76. The  c onc lus ion  d ra wn from TEP 's

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

expe rimenta tion with its  Ra te  No. 21 is  the  importance  of choos ing peak, off-peak, and

shoulder hours  and des igning TOU prices  that reduce both the  percentage of peak energy

cons umption a s  we ll a s  pe a k de ma nd. Ove rly-long pe a k pe riods  in Arizona 's  de s e rt

climate  can result in demand spikes  during the  las t hours  of the  on-peak period. Demand

spikes  push cos ts  up, because they can accelerate  capacity expans ion plans . Super-peak

ra te s , with peak hours  limited the  mos t critica l hours , he lp avoid demand s pike s . TEP

Ra te s  70 a nd 76, a s  we ll a s  the  UNS Ele ctric propos e d TOU ra te s  a re  a ll e xa mple s  of

super-peak rates.

26

27

A.

2



1 Q- Are  TOU ra tes  a ls o  we ll e s tablis hed a t o the r Arizona  e lec tric  u tilitie s ?

2

3

4

5

6

Ye s . Arizona  P ublic S e rvice  Compa ny curre ntly ha s  ove r 40% of its  re s ide ntia l loa d on

TOU. S a lt Rive r P roje ct a ls o ha s  a n e xte ns ive  a nd we ll-e s ta blis he d TOU progra m. The

P ublic Utility Re gula tory P olicy Act ("P URP A"), which s upporte d cons ide ra tion of TOU,

was  passed in 1978, a lmost thirty yea rs  ago. TOU is  an important program tha t should not

be  placed on hold.

Q. Mr. Radigan claims - in his Surrebuttal Testimony on page 4 at lines 4 through 6 -

that there is no cost justification for the proposed TOU rates. Do you agree?

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

A. No. The  proposed increase  in the  re la tive  price  of peak ene rgy should - othe r things  be ing

cons ta nt - ca use  a  shift in consumption a wa y from pe a k e ne rgy a nd towa rd off-pe a k a nd

shoulde r ene rgy. Tha t reduces  ene rgy cos ts . Assuming tha t peak demand does  not spike ,

the  a ve ra ge  cos t of providing e ne rgy will fa ll. Cos t re ductions  be ne fit cus tome rs . This

supports  immedia te  manda tory TOU implementa tion.

1 5

111. P O WE R S UP P LY ALLO CATIO N.1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

Q. Do  d iffe re n c e s  s till e xis t b e twe e n  yo u  a n d  Mr. Ra d ig a n  o f S ta ff o n  P o we r S u p p ly

Alloca tion?

22

23

24

25

26

27

Yes . Mr. Radigan's  pre fe rence  is  to a lloca te  purchased power cos ts  on a  l00% volume tric

(kph) ba s is . I pre fe r to s plit the  a lloca tion of purcha s e  powe r be twe e n volume tric (kph)

a nd the  a ve ra ge  a nd pe a ks  me thod. I provide d  de ta il o f th is  me thod in  my Re butta l

Te s timony. Mr. Ra d iga n  ba s e s  h is  me thod  on  the  s imple  fa c t tha t the  curre n t fu ll

re quire me nts  powe r supply contra ct with P inna cle  We s t Ca pita l Corpora tion ("PWCC") is

colle cte d from UNS  Ele ctric by a  s ingle , kWh-ba s e d cha rge . This  ove rly s implis tic

a rgument is  flawed, because  had UNS Electric exhibited a  much lower sys tem load factor

a t the  time  of the  price  ne gotia tion, P inna cle  We s t mos t like ly would ha ve  re quire d a

A.

A.

3

1



1

2

3

highe r price  pe r kph to  compe ns a te  it for unde rutilize d  Hie d  ca pita l inve s tme nt.

Volumetric contract pricing does  not imply tha t load factor is  absent from cos t causa tion.

The importance of load factor supports my allocation based in part on average and peaks.

5 Q- How will the  upc om ing  e xp ira tion  o f the  PWCC

agreement affect Mr. Radigan's  argument?

full requirements  power s upply

6

7 The expira tion neutra lizes  Mr. Radigan's  a rgument on purchased power a lloca tion. Given

this  coming uncerta inty, a  prudent approach is  to look a t how genera tion is  a lloca ted for a

vertica lly integra ted utility. My proposed technique , which uses both kph and average  and

peaks, strikes this balance.10

11

12

13

14

Iv . MOHAVE AND S ANTA CRUZ COUNTY RATE CONS OLIDATION AND UNS

ELECTRIC'S  P ROP OS ED INVERTED BLOCK RATE DES IGNS .

15 Q- Do differences still exist between you and Mr. Radigan of Staff on Mohave -- Santa

Cruz Rate Consolidation and Inverted Block Designs?16

17

18

19

20

21

Unfortuna te ly yes . Our two proposa ls  -- which RUCO a lso supports  -- a re  re jected by Mr.

Radigan to avoid a  s itua tion where  some  cus tomers  pay s lightly highe r bills  while  othe r

cus tomers  pay s lightly lower ones . The  Company mainta ins  its  pos ition as  a rticula ted in

my Dire ct a nd Re butta l Te s timonie s . I re comme nd Commis s ion a cce pta nce  of the s e

programs.

22

v . LARGE P OWER S ERVICE DEMAND CHARGES ;  UNDER 69 kg .23

24

25

26

27

o Do differences still exist between you and Mr. Radigan over Large Power Service

Demand Charges?

Yes. As Shave indicated, UNS Electric has not performed a  s tudy on appropria te  demand

A.

A.

A.

4



1

2

3

4

6

7

cha rge  diffe re ntia ls  he re . Howe ve r, the  curre nt de ma nd cha rge  for la rge  comme rcia l a nd

indus tria l cus tome rs  ta king se rvice  a t le s s  tha n 69 kV is  high re la tive  to de ma nd cha rge s

for comme rcia l a nd indus tria l cus tome rs  with 69 kV de live rie s . All the  cos t jus tifica tion

notwiths ta nding, the  curre nt "le s s  tha n 69 kg" de ma nd cha rge  is  incre dibly oppre ss ive  to

la rge r, low loa d fa ctor cus tome rs . This  s hould ca us e  the  Commis s ion conce rn. S uch a

high demand cha rge  could potentia lly prevent a  new, low load factor commercia l cus tomer

from loca ting within the  UNS  Ele ctric S e rvice  te rritory.

8

9 VI. CARES AND MEDICAL CARES.

10

11 Q-

12

Staff Witness McNeely-Kirwan of Staff proposes in her surrebuttal (Executive

Summary, point 1) that the current CARES and Medical CARES structure should

be retained. Please comment.13

1 4

15

16

17

I disa gre e . The  Compa ny's  pos ition is  de ta ile d in the  Compa ny's  re butta l te s timony.

S imply put .-- needy cus tomers  should not be  required to use  more  ene rgy to fully enjoy

the  dis counts . RUCO a gre e s  with the  Compa ny's  pos ition. Mr. Fe rry in his  Re joinde r

Tes timony furthe r addre sse s  Ms . McNee ly-Kirwan's  lis t of re commenda tions  on CARES

a nd Me dica l CARES.18

19

20 Q- Does this conclude your Rejoinder Testimony?

21 Ye s  it doe s .

22

23

24

25

26

27

A.

A.
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1 1. INTRODUCTION.

2

3 Q- Please state your name and address.

4 My na me  is  De nis e  A. S mith. My bus ine s s  a ddre s s  is  4350 E. Irvington Roa d, Tucs on,

Arizona .5

6

7 Q-

A.

Are you the same Denise Smith who filed Rebuttal Testimony in this proceeding?

8 Yes , I am.

9

1 0 Q- On whose behalf are you filing your Rejoinder Testimony in this proceeding?

1 1 My Re joinde r Te s timony is  file d on be ha lf of UNS  Ele ctric.

1 2

1 3 Q- What is  the  purpos e  of your Re joinder Tes timony in  this  proceeding?

1 4

1 5

The  purpose  of my Re joinde r Te s timony is  to re spond to ce rta in comme nts  Mr. Ma rsha ll

Magnlde r makes  in his  Surrebutta l Tes timony.

1 6

1 7 11. RES P ONS E TO MR. MAGRUDER.

1 8

1 9 Q-

20

How does UNS Electric respond to questions, comments, and allegations made by Mr.

Magruder in his Surrebuttal Testimony regarding Demand-Side Management

21

22

Programs ?

While  UNS  Ele ctric ha s  a gre e d with Mr. Ma grude r on a  fe w s e le ct s pe cific ite ms , the

23

24

Co mp a n y d is a g re e s  in  g e n e ra l with  Mr.  Ma g ru d e r's  DS M re co mme n d a tio n s  a n d

a lle ga tions . UNS  Ele ctric re ma ins  committe d to its  s e le ction of DS M progra ms , the  cos t-

25

26

27

bene fit ana lys is , and the  individua l program des igns  in the  DSM Portfolio P rogram filed on

J une  13, 2007. The  Compa ny's  pos ition with re ga rd to Mr. Ma gnlde r's  obje ctions  a nd

recommenda tions  a re  fully described in my Rebutta l te s timony.

A.

A.

A.

A.

1



1 Q-

2

3

On page 15 of Mr. Magruder's Surrebuttal Testimony he recommends a DSM

integration plan to summarize goals and objectives and centralized cost accounting of

DSM programs. Do you agree?

4 Ye s . This  informa tion ha s  be e n provide d in the  J une  13th filing in Docke t No. E-04204A-

07-0365 a nd ca n be  found in the  DS M P ortfolio P la n.5

6

7 Q-

8

On pa ge  22 o f h is  S u rre bu tta l Te s timony, Mr. Ma grude r a s s ume s  tha t UNS  Ele c tric

will im p le m e n t  a n d UNS  E le c t r ic  d id  n o t

9

incorporate recommendations that

specifically respond to in Rebuttal Testimony. Is that accurate?

10 No. J us t be ca us e  UNS  Ele c tric  did not re s pond to e a ch of the  myria d of s pe c ific  ite ms  in

11 Mr. Ma grude r's  Dire c t Te s timony, S upp le me n ta l Dire c t Te s timony, o r S u rre bu tta l

12 Te s timony doe s  not indica te  tha t we  a gre e  with his  re comme nda tions .

13

14 Q- Mr. Ma g ru d e r  c la im s  UNS  E le c t r ic ' s  DLC p ro g ra m  in c lu d e s  " p o te n t ia lly  life -

15 threatening structural flaws." Do you agree?

16

17 Second,

18

19

No . Firs t Mr.  Ma grude r p rovide s  no  re fe re nce  o r docume n ta tion  to  s uppo rt h is

infla mma tory a lle ga tion. the  UNS  E le c tric  DLC p rog ra m is  vo lun ta ry a nd

provide s  for a  cus tome r ove rride  of a  control e ve nt. Third, one  a dva nta ge  with the  two-

wa y communica tion is  UNS  Ele ctric ca n build a n individua l the rma l loa d profile  for e a ch

20 home . Thus , a ny e xce s s ive  te mpe ra ture  incre a s e  in a n individua l home  ca n be  mitiga te d.

21

22 Q- Does this conclude your Rejoinder Testimony?

23 Ye s .

24

25

26

27

A.

A.

A.

A.

2
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1 1. INTRODUCTION.

2

3 Q- Please state your name and address.

4 My name is Thomas N. Hansen.

5

6

7

Q, Are you the same Thomas N. Hansen who filed Rebuttal Testimony in this

proceeding?

A. Yes, I am.8

9

10

11

12

Q. What is the purpose of your Rejoinder Testimony in this proceeding?

The purpose of my Rejoinder Testimony is to respond to Mr. Maglllder 's Surrebuttal

Testimony regarding the Renewable Energy Program.

11. UNS ELECTRIC RENEWABLE ENERGY PROGRAMS.

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

Q. Do you agree with the Surrebuttal Testimony of Mr. Magruder in his Part VII - Issue

5, Environmental Portfolio Standard ("EPS") and Renewable Energy Standard and

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

2 6

2 7

Tariff ("REST") Surcharges?

No. While Mr. Magruder did recognize and correct many inaccuracies in his testimony, he

did not provide any additional information in his Surrebuttal Testimony to challenge or

change the statements made in my Rebuttal Testimony. For example, while the Magruder

Surrebuttal Testimony discusses ISO 14400 certification and adds ISO 9000 certification to

the discussion, there is still no evidence or example provided to create a link between such

certifications and improved environmental compliance for  electr ic utilit ies. In t he

remainder of my Rejoinder Testimony I will respond to specific points raised by Mr.

Magruder, including:

The structural insufficiency of funding for the EPS included in the EPS rule,
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Mr. Ma grude r's  re vise d Ta ble  14,

Mr. Ma grude r's  a ppa re nt mis unde rs ta nding  of the  UNS  Ele ctric 's  S unS ha de

program approved by the  Commission on December 21 , 2006,

Mr. Ma gnlde r's  four fina l RES T re comme nda tions .
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Q, Has the structural program design insufficiency of EPS funding been the primary

cause of failure of any Arizona utility to meet the EPS requirements?
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Absolutely. During the EPS Rulemaking process, many parties provided testimony that the

EPS surcharge was very likely insufficient to generate the revenues needed for meeting the

EPS annual solar energy requirements, given the relatively high initial cost of solar

generation. The Commission recognized this structural program design flaw and in

response, Decision No. 63364 on page 4 at lines 18 through 20 states "It is not the

Commission's intent that the ratepayers of Arizona pay the surcharge and also be faced

with high deferred costs if it turns out the surcharge is not sufficient to allow an utility that

is taking prudent measures to meet the portfolio percentage." Thus, utilities were allowed

to only spend the EPS surcharge funds towards meeting compliance with EPS goals. If

shareholder funds were to be spent towards EPS compliance, they could not be recovered

through future rates. Additionally, the surcharge caps in the EPS rule were set as

maximums which could not be increased, even by the Commission. See Decision No.

63364 at page 13, lines 26 and 27. Two utilities, APS and TEP were allowed to use

existing DSM program funding in their EPS programs. This nearly doubled the amount of

funds available. Even so, the funding was still not sufficient to meet EPS goals for those

two utilities. UNS Electric has not had the benefit of any additional funding source and

has been consistently dismayed, not excited as Mr. Magruder opines, that it has not been

able to meet the EPS annual renewable energy goals. But given the limited funding that

could be spent on the EPS program, the funds did not allow the goals to be met. This was

recognized unanimously by the EPS Cost Evaluation Working Group in its report entitled
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1 "Cos ts , Bene fits , and Impacts  of the  Arizona  Environmenta l Portfolio S tanda rd" submitted

on June  30th, 2003. S pe cifica lly, the  Exe cutive  S umma ry a t pa ge  2 of tha t re port s ta te s :

"However, given the  limited revenues  ava ilable  unde r the  EPS  rule , no utilitie s  will be  able

to me e t the  a nnua l re ne wa ble  e ne rgy ta rge ts  e s ta blis he d by the  EP S  on the  e xis ting

time line ."
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Cle a rly, this  s ta te me nt shows  tha t the  EPS  ha d a  s tructura l progra m de s ign funding fla w,

which did not provide  sufficie nt funding for the  sola r ge ne ra tion portion of the  EPS  goa ls

to be  me t. UNS  Ele ctric ha s  me t a ll of its  EP S  non-sola r goa ls  in e ve ry ye a r of the  EP S

progra m for which UNS  Ele ctric file d the  a nnua l re port. Ye t, Mr. Ma grude r continue s  to

bea t the  dead horse  of UNS Electric be ing noncompliant with the  EPS sola r goa ls , without

regard to the  s tructura l program des ign funding flaw in the  EPS tha t re sulted in inadequa te

EPS  program funding. No utility ha s  eve r me t the  EPS  annua l sola r ene rgy requirements .

Mr. Magruder fa ils  to note  any of these  facts  in his  te s timony.
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Q. Is  the  re vis e d  Ta b le  14 Mr. Ma grude r p rovide d  in  h is  S u rre bu tta l Te s timony a  va lid

re flec tion of the  s ta tus  of UNS Elec tric  compliance  with the  EPS?
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Not a t a ll. The  revised Table  14 does  not re flect: a ) tha t not a ll EPS ene rgy was  to be  from

sola r re sources , and b) tha t multiplying factors  were  an e ssentia l pa rt of the  EPS  program

formula . Thus , the  re vis e d Ta ble  14 ha s  no more  be a ring on EP S  complia nce  tha n the

origina l Ta ble  14. Any compa ris ons  dra wn be twe e n Ta ble  14 a nd EP S  complia nce  a re

inherently invalid. Moreover, my obi sections to the  use  of Table  14, even as  revised, a re  not

re solved.
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1 Q- Is  th e re  a n y s ig n ific a n t  d iffe re n c e  b e twe e n  th e  c u r re n t  UNS  Ele c tr ic  a n d  TEP

2 SunShade program offerings that would support increased interest by UNS Electric

residential customers in the first six months of 2007?3
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No . UNS  Ele ctric 's  re s ide ntia l S unS ha re  progra m a pprove d by the  Commis s ion on

De ce mbe r 21, 2006 is  e ffe ctive ly ide ntica l to the  Option 3 re s ide ntia l progra m offe re d by

TEP, and only margina lly diffe rent from UNS Electric's  SunShade  program offe red prior to

De ce mbe r 21, 2006. The  incre a se d pe r ca pita  inte re s t in the  UNS Ele ctric progra m in the

8 firs t s ix months  of 2007 is  a  re sult of the  increase  in incentive  ra te s  offe red in 2007. Othe r
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cha nge s  ma de  to UNS  Ele ctric's  S unS hine  progra m in De ce mbe r 2006, including the

increase  in the  incentive  ra te s  and minor revis ions  to equipment qua lifica tions  a re  identica l

to the  Option 3 re s ide ntia l TEP  ince ntive  ra te s  a nd e quipme nt qua lifica tions  re vis ions

ma de  in Nove mbe r of 2006. UNS  Ele ctric ha s  s upporte d a nd continue s  to s upport its

SunSha re  program to its  cus tomers  to the  extent tha t EPS  annua l SunSha re  expenditure

limits  ha ve  ne a rly be e n re a che d a lre a dy in 2007. To s pe nd a dditiona l funds  to provide

outreach support to a  program tha t has nearly exceeded its  spending cap in mid year, would

not be  cos t e ffe ctive  or prude nt. We  do a ppre cia te  Mr. Ma grude r re cognizing tha t UNS

Electric has  adminis te red its  EPS program in a  most cos t e ffective  manner to maximize  the

funds  ava ilable  for customer incentives .18
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Would you please respond to the four recommendations made by Mr. Magruder in

his Surrebuttal Testimony?
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Certainly.

Magruder Recommendation #1: That [UNS Electric] continue to invigorate its

"SunShare" program, as upgraded on 21 December 2006 and as expanded in its

REST Implementation Plan expected fling during September 2007. UNS Electric

looks forward to Commission approval of its REST Implementation Plan.
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Magruder Reeommendation #2: That [UNS Electric] present in its REST

Implementation Plan details on Now it will transition from EPS to REST, as

required by the ACC Decision No. 69127 and its rules in Appendix A of this

Decision to comply with or exceed all REST requirements, summarized in Table 15

or as presented by [UNS Eleetrie] to the Commission in its REST Implementation

6 P la n. While  UNS  Ele ctric  doe s  no t a cce pt Mr. Ma grude r's  Ta ble  15  a s  the
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de finitive  RES T complia nce  a nnua l e ne rgy re quire me nt de finition, UNS  Ele ctric

plans  to file  an REST Implementa tion P lan for Commiss ion approva l.
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Ma grude r Re comme nda tion #3: Tha t [UNS  Ele ctric] pre s e nt its  RES T Ta rs ' not

la te r tha n  14  Octobe r 2007  a nd  imp le me n te d  a s  re qu ire d  by the  re s u lta n t

Commis s ion Orde r or De cis ion. S ince  Octobe r 14, 2007, is  a  S unda y, UNS

Ele ctric sha ll pre se nt its  RES T Ta riff on or be fore  Octobe r 12th for cons ide ra tion

a nd a pprova l by the  Commis s ion. UNS  Ele ctric s ha ll not imple me nt the  RES T

Tariff prior to such an approva l orde r of the  Commiss ion.
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Ma grude r Re comme nda tion #4: Tha t a ll future  ACC RES T Re ports  be  route d

through a nd s igne d by Mr. Ha ns e n, whos e  job  title  re fle cts  th is  a re a , be fore

s ubmis s ion to the  ACC a nd Docke t Control. I ha ve  re vie we d pa s t UNS  Ele ctric

EP S  re ports  be fore  s ubmis s ion to the  Commis s ion. We  e xpe ct to continue  tha t

practice  while  I enjoy my current pos ition re spons ibilitie s .
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Does this conclude your Rejoinder Testimony?

24 Ye s , it doe s .
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